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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEwE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019 to all the shareholders.

The new management has conscientiously implemented the
resolutions of the Board, as well as actively developed the core values
idea of business priority, under the philosophy of market force. The
Group strived to overcome numerous difficulties to achieve business
targets under the market-directed, customers-centred and service-
oriented approaches. Despite insufficient resources, the Group
focused on optimizing sales and marketing efforts. In response to the
increasingly competitive and changing market, the Group successfully
managed to overcome various unfavourable factors and advanced
forward with innovation and enthusiasm.

During 2019, the Group made several major measures to further
improve the business profile. These measures include:

1. Strengthening the management team with strong talents and
broad experience in development and application aspects of
biotechnology;

2. Expanding the current tissue engineering product lines to anti-
aging and cosmetic applications; and

3. Continuing to develop the stem cell product line with a clear
strategy to capture the stem cell storage market and medical
beauty applications.

| am confident that these major management and strategic
adjustments will start to generate results in coming years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEwRE

FUTURE PROSPECT

In the first quarter of 2020, China and eventually the world,
encountered a sudden outbreak of “novel coronavirus pneumonia”
pandemic, which put people’s lives in grave danger and affected the
social economy.

The impact of the pandemic on economic activities is expected
to be temporary. The long-term positive development trend of
China’s biomedical industry will not change, neither will the business
fundamentals of the Group. We believe that under the leadership
of the Board, with the efforts of the management team and all
employees, and by focusing on the key principal of “Creating
Regeneration for the Future” and “Synergetic Development of the
Dual Cores and Two Wings”, the Group will continue to prosper.

The Group will continue to adopt a positive but prudent approach
towards its investment strategy, to review and monitor the
performance of the existing operation, explore the feasibility
of restructuring and resizing the existing operation to enhance
profitability an/or expansion into other business segments with a
view to improve the Group’s business portfolio and increase the
shareholders’ value in the long run.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, acting on behalf of the Board, avail this opportunity to express my
sincere appreciation for the long-term support from our shareholders,
investors, customers, suppliers, and business partners to the Group,
as well as the prolonged and committed hard work and contribution
by our employees.

By the order of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman
30 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S AT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group continued
to follow the principle of “Creating Regeneration for the Future”
and “Synergetic Development of Dual Cores and Two Wings”. The
Group continued to build an innovative industry model for “Internet
+Regenerative Medicine” and established a platform for the bio-
medical and healthcare industries in China, which integrated
“Production, Study, Research and Medicine” on the basis of biological
resource storage, with genetic testing and disease screening as its
foundation, tissue engineering products as its instrument, healthcare
and medical beauty as its initiative, big data and artificial intelligence
as its carrier and scientific research centers as its guarantee. The
Group strengthened various management systems, continued
its effective promotion of the five main lines of management and
control, namely operation management, marketing management,
financial management, human resources management and technical
management, to continuously improve the management standards of
the enterprise.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

. Completed the reorganization of the Group's internal
structure and constantly improved systerns

The Group implemented in the first half of 2019, the
corporate reorganization of its subsidiaries’ structure, vertical
management, and constantly improved various systems to
improve the level of standardized operation for each subsidiary
to adapt to the rapid and ever-changing market environment.
The Group continued to strengthen its operation and
management of its subsidiaries.

By constantly consolidating the foundation of the Group’s
management, the Group was able to clearly define the rights
and responsibilities of its organizational system and hence
facilitated a smoother communication and improved the
management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

IIl.  Rationalized the industrial layout, optimized the
product structure and formed the Group s advantages

1.

Reorganization of the Group’s existing corporate
structure and products and redefinition of its
product lines

The Group formulated and gradually implemented its
development plans for the next five years according to
its overall operation and development strategy. On the
basis of the Company’s existing industrial foundation
and technological advantages and the national industrial
policies, the Group put forward the overall development
strategy of “Dual Cores and Two Wings” as two strategic
growth points of the Company in the future. Driven by
the products and technologies of the Dual Cores, the
Company will develop rapidly in Two Wings. Under
the guidance of such plans, the Company has formed
its existing business lines of “activated cells”, “tissue
engineering corneas” and “tissue engineering oral
materials”, which will help the Company to focus more
on its existing advantages and concentrate on achieving
business breakthroughs in the future.

Comprehensive launch of cell segment with the
synergy of each base

Focusing on stem cell storage business, the segment
provided uniform production processes, quality control
standards, production materials and personnel storage
in Hong Kong and China. Meanwhile, the layout of
domestic regional markets has been primarily completed.
Through service function improvement and service flow
optimization of the Hong Kong International Regenerative
Center and BioCell Technology Limited, we have formed
a synergy for the cell businesses in China and Hong
Kong. With the combination of Obagi Medical Products,
a U.S. cosmeceutical brand, Ascara, a Swiss brand
and AMYbio, a biomedical active cosmetic, the Group
provided a comprehensive product line of medical testing,
medical beauty treatments and daily maintenance for the
whole life cycle, which will continue to contribute to the
Company’s performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

1.

.

Rationalized the industrial layout, optimized the
product structure and formed the Group s advantages
(Cont’d)

3. Vigorously encouraged the development of tissue
engineering product segment

The Group actively encouraged AiNear to promote the
sales of corneal products through flexible and market-
oriented incentive policies, to adapt to market demand;
encouraged Reshine to further strengthen the market
development for its products; and encouraged the
companies in the tissue engineering product sector to
actively introduce other products as supplement for the
existing products.

Optimized and expanded the domestic industrial
layout

In order to realize the effective integration and rational
distribution of existing industries and future businesses of the
Group, the Group established an industrial park in Shanghai
as an important strategic foothold for (i) the related tissue
engineering; (i) cell and cosmetic segments; and (iii) future
potential product lines proposed to be to achieve the Group’s
new industrial strategic layout in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V. Continuously optimized the Group's existing products
through great investment in research and development

1.  Carrying out the storage business in respect of fibro
blasts and dental pulp stem cells

The Group has formed a set of industry-leading
production processes for fibroblast and dental pulp stem
cell storage, which was put into operation in Shaanxi Base
in Fiscal Year 2018 with the storage of various samples.
The storage business in respect of fibroblasts and dental
pulp stem cells has enhanced the Group’s technical level
in research and economic benefits in operation.

2 Third-generation corneas of AiNear entering the
approval process

Acornea, a tissue engineering cornea self- developed by
Shenzhen AiNear Cormnea Engineering Company Limited.
Its commercial launch will greatly expand the application
of artificial corneas, improve the success rate, and also
greatly reduce the difficulty, of tissue engineering corneal
transplantation.

3.  Application of cell detection and preparation kits as
well as stem cell drugs

After constant research and exploration as well as update
unremitting efforts, the Group has completed its research
and development on several types of cell detection and
preparation kits in during the year ended 31 December
2018. Currently, it has submitted approval information
to relevant competent authorities, and has entered the
approval process. The drugs in respect of umbilical cord
mesenchymal stem cells, self-developed by the Group
for the treatment of acute-on-chronic liver failure, has
been completed and submitted to FDA through a third
party agency. Once approved, it will be an epoch-making
initiative and product in the history of stem cells in China,
and also the first drug to treat acute-on-chronic liver
failure with umbilical cord mesenchymal stem cells.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S AT

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D) EREEE (8)

V. Internet + Healthcare Stations V. B+ EEE
For 2019, further results have been achieved in line with the ZE-NF CAEREZZT-N\FREN[—
Group’s innovative business model of “Healthcare Stations on KRB MK EER  BEERSE
the One Belt and One Road” proposed in 2018. Therefore, it TH#E—ZEI - BEERKEEFPFK 020
is believed that the integrated online to offline (020) Internet MR E BT Bl EME+ KEREET
+ healthcare industry platform will be gradually formed in the B e
future.
Currently, the products and businesses of the Group’s various BRIAEESEXENERLERS

industrial chains include:

1. Activated cell product line 1. JEIEHEE B
The business under the Group’s activated cell product AEEFCCHEPERGEBBEILR
line will be operated in our Beijing Center, Shaanxi Base, b PREEEM - RIFEEM  TEHE
Tianjin Base, Jiangsu Base and Hong Kong Base, and HMEEASEMFE HRENERS :
cover the products as below:
(1) Tissue Engineered Skin with Living Human Cells — (1) ABETHIREAA B T 12575 —
ActivSkin ZRE

ActivSkin, being the first tissue-engineered skin
approved by China Food and Drug Administration,
is the only tissue-engineered skin containing living
cells in China. It is mainly used for healing deep 2nd
degree and 3rd degree burn and scald wounds. It
can relieve pain, shorten healing time and reduce
scars in treating burns and scalds.

\ 12 8 China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T T

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

1.

Activated cell product line (Cont’d)

@

3
4
©)

©)

Neonatal biological resource storage

Perinatal hematopoietic stem cell storage;
Umbilical cord mesenchymal stem cell storage;
Early childhood hematopoietic stem cell storage;
Placental subtotipotent stem cell storage.
Dental pulp stem cell storage

Fibroblast stem cell storage

Medlical beauty related products

Skin bank project;

Facial living cell implant preparation;

Skincare cosmetics brand — Ascara;

Obagi cosmeceutical products;

Biomedical active cosmetic — AMYbio.
Healthcare related products

Autoimmune cell storage;

Autoimmune cell return;

Mesenchymal stem cell preparations.

=% oIR8 (%)
V. EHH+EEEL (F)
1. EMEERR M)

@

3
4
©)

©)

HERLEYER#FF

B = B m S AR T
EEHETEBARGET
ByEmBapeET

AR TR RERARGETT

FEHBAE

R B
A B EBES
BERTIEE
R A A I
BERTIEE

BLEE o

EYEEE et m KT -

A 12 E1H B Z
HEeRARET
ki) nk i

RFEE SRS A -

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

1.

Activated cell product line (Cont’d)

(7)

Genetic testing related projects

The companies involved in the above businesses
include:

(1)

Tianjin Weikai

The Group’s subsidiary Tianjin Weikai focuses
on the R&D and applications of cell culture
equipment and cell products, as well as
providing cell-related outsourcing technical
services. The selfdeveloped 3DFlo cell
culture instrument ensured the high quality
cell reproduction and established an in vitro
model to simulate in-vivo physical condition
by utilizing automated continuous perfusion
cell culture technology. Meanwhile, Tianjin
Weikai has established a close cooperation
relationship with Institute of Chemical Physics,
Chinese Academy of Sciences and other
scientific research institutes at home and
abroad.

AK Suzhou

The Group’s subsidiary AK (Suzhou) provides
high standards of service and equipment for
cell clinical research, testing and applications
leveraging on the Oxford R&D team’s unique
cell processing technology and reagent
formula. Its core technologies include human
cell separation, purification, cultivation,
amplification, storage and transportation, as
well as the development and production of
automated closed cell bioreactors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

1.  Activated cell product line (Cont’d)

(7)

Genetic testing related projects (Cont’d)
(8) Hong Kong International Regenerative Centre

The Hong Kong International Regenerative
Centre (“HKIRC”), being the first large-scale
comprehensive health care base for precision
medicine in Hong Kong, was established by
the Group at the Miramar Center in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Hong Kong. In possession of precise
medical technology, combining with precise
physical examination and genetic testing, the
centre aims to provide precise healthcare to
meet the physical and mental needs from
customers, including precise cellular therapy
and precise medical beauty.

(4)  BioCell Technology Limited

Located at Phase 3 of Hong Kong Science
Park in Shatin, our China Stem Cell Clinical
Applications Centre has become operational.
Stem cell clinical application facilities meet
the clean room standards from EMA, FDA,
CFDA, TGA and GMP PIC/S, as Asia’s first
international cell and gene preparation center.

2. Tissue engineering corneal product line

(1)

Acellular Corneal Stroma — Acornea

Acornea is the world’s first bio-engineering cornea
that has completed clinical trials and has been
successfully launched to market, establishing
China’s leading position in regenerative medicine
research of corneal disease in the world. The total
effective rate of clinical trials of Acornea reached
94.44% with the healing effect similar to that of
donated cornea. In 2016, Acornea was reported
by BBC as one of the five major scientific and
technological revolutions from China, which had
great contributions to the world. Its academic status
allowed China to seize the initiative in the field of
biomedical competition in the world.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)

V.

Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

3.

Tissue engineering oral material product line

(1)

@)

S

Calcined Bovine Bone — Gegreen

Gegreen is a protein-detracted bone substitute
material for inducing natural bone regeneration,
which is the first independently developed material
for oral bone grafts in China. It is made by extracting
material from epiphysis cancellous bone of bovine
femur, and then goes through the process of virus
inactivation, degreasing, protein detracting and
low- temperature calcination. It is extensively used
for jawbone defect restoration, particularly in dental
implantation and treatment of periodontal defects.

Acellular Anal Fistula Repair Stroma — Asiunin

Asiunin is applied to simple anal fistula disease
without going through fistulotomy operation which
is traditionally used to cure anal fistula in western
medicine. Fistulotomy operation has a chance to
harm the sphincter muscle and causes relapses.
It is believed that the relapse rate when using
Asiunin for simple anal fistula is comparatively lower,
bringing in revolutionary changes to anal fistula
treatment. It can completely reshape the perianal
tissue and protect the anal sphincter mechanism.
Through minimally invasive operation, it can speed
up the healing rate and shorten the hospitalization
period.

Oral Cavity Repair Membrane with Excellent
Regeneration Capacity — Megreen

Megreen, a new product developed by Shaanxi
Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group,
after the completion of application and registration
procedures, is currently in the process of pending
approval with great possibility of being approved.
Megreen is made from the bovine pericardium
tissue with collagen as the main component
through decellularization, virus inactivation and
other treatments, which retains a natural three
dimensional structure. Megreen can be widely used
in the repair of oral cavity tissue with its advantages
of natural double-layer membrane structure,
superior mechanical performance and longer
degradation time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

OPERATIONS REVIEW (CONT’D)
V. Internet + Healthcare Stations (Cont’d)

3. Tissue engineering oral material product line
(Cont’d)

(4)  Cell Sheet-Autologous Chondrocyte Implantation —
CS-ACI

CS-ACI is a cartilage repair technology based
on the world’s leading cell sheet preparative
technology. It is used for tissue repair and functional
reconstruction of damaged articular cartilage. As
the first 4th generation of autologous chondrocyte
treatment technology developed by China, CSACI
is used to produce transparent cartilage as a
substitute for exogenous material to avoid cell
loss. In addition, since suture is not necessary
and it takes shorter time in the operation, it has
a broad clinical prospect. Since 2018, the Group
has cooperated with Dalian Medical University, and
achieved further results in the first half of 2019.

4. Overseas Business Division of the Group

The Group has completed the establishment and began
operation of its offices in the United States and the United
Kingdom, and the Japanese office is being set-up. In
Fiscal Year 2019, with active expansion of overseas
offices, it has established contacts with a number of
companies and channels. The overseas sales of its
tissue engineering products have already entered the
implementation phase.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group continues to strive for opportunity to widen its business
scope in the medicine industry and reallocate its resources when
appropriate, to strengthen and maintain as one of the leading
pioneers in the medical and related industries. The Chinese
government has committed to provide support towards hi-tech
industries, including regenerative medicine, a sub-division of the bio-
medical industries. We will continuously strive for more assistance
from the Chinese government to provide additional resources for
broadening our R&D coverage in regenerative medicine and related
medical device spectrum. Stem cell therapy and research and
development of stem cell pharmaceutical products, precision disease
detection and prevention in massive health as well as precision
treatment have already been initiated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Result

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$48 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of 34.2%
from last year (2018: HK$73 million). Gross profit increased by 7.1%
to approximately HK$28.9 million from last period (2018: HK$27.0
million), whereas gross profit margin increased from 37.0% of last
year to 60.3% of this year. The Group recorded a loss for the year
ended 31 December 2019 of approximately HK$447.7 million (2018:
HK$1,283.9 million).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$9.5 million from
the sales of dermatology, cosmetic products and others for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of 24% from
last year (2018: HK$12.5 million). Such decrease was due to the fact
that the Group had focused to manage the credit risk of cosmetics
products and others.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$4.4 million from
sales of ophthalmology products for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a decrease of 17% from last year (2018:HK$5.3
million). This was due to the change in the distribution strategy of the
products during the year.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$21.5 million
from sales of stomatology products and others for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase of 10.8% from last year
(2018: HK$19.4 million) which was mainly attributable to promotion
efforts during the year.

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$12.5 million
from sales of cell and healthcare products and services for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of 81.2%
from last period (2018: HK$6.9 million). This was mainly attributable
to continued efforts by the subsidiaries named HK International
Regenerative Centre Limited and BioCell Technology Limited.

Sales of medical equipment for the year ended 31 December 2019
was approximately HK$0.06 million, representing a decrease of
99.8% as compared to last period (2018: HK$28.9 million) as the
Group continued to reduce less profitable medical equipment trading
business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Result (Cont’d)

During the year under review, the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$395.0 million, as
compared to a loss of approximately HK$1,193.5 million for last
period. Loss for the Group decreased from last period, which is
mainly attributable to the corresponding (i) decrease in expected
credit loss on trade receivables of approximately HK$137.9 million;
(i) decrease in impairment loss of property, plant and equipments,
goodwill, intangible assets and right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$429.8 million; and (iii) decrease in the fair value loss on financial
assets of fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$115.0
million. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the per share loss
attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$0.449 (for the
year ended 31 December 2018: HK$1.357 as restated).

The Group’s total operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$257.3 million,
representing a decrease of 43.9% as compared to last year (2018:
HK$458.7 million), which mainly consisted of, employee benefit
expenses of approximately HK$70.3 million (2018: HK$110.7 million),
amortisation and depreciation expenses of approximately HK$51.7
million (2018: HK$69.6 million), research and development costs of
approximately HK$16.3 million (2018: HK$32.4 million), advertising
and marketing expenses of approximately HK$37.9 million (2018:
HK$102.2 million) and exchange gain of approximately HK$0.4 million
(2018: exchange loss of HK$21.1 million).

Net Assets

Net assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$17.6
million as at 31 December 2019, as compared to net assets of
approximately HK$567.3 million as at 31 December 2018, the
decrease in net assets was mainly attributable to the loss incurred for
the year and fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$19.2 million (2018: HK$20.1 million).

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$344.0 million (2018: HK$866.6 million), while its
current liabilities stood at approximately HK$301.2 million (2018:
HK$623.1 million), representing a net current assets position with a
working capital ratio (current assets to current liabilities) of 1.14 (2018:
1.39). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
calculated as total bank and other borrowings to total equity was 3.1
(2018: 0.7).

Capital Structure

On 16 May 2019, the Company completed the share consolidation
by every twenty existing shares of HK$0.01 each consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.2 each. Apart from that, there was
no other material change to the Group’s capital structure during the
year ended 31 December 2019. As at 31 December 2019, the total
number of issued shares of the Company was 879,289,500 (31
December 2018: 879,289,500 (adjusted after share consolidation)).
The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
primarily with the proceeds from fund raising activities and through
working capital from shareholder’s loan.

In May 2020, upon the completion of share placing, 500,000,000
new shares of the Company were issued at HK$0.2 per share. The
Company also allotted and issued 200,000,000 ordinary shares to
the holder of convertible bonds as the Company received conversion
notices in respect of the conversion of the convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 at the conversion price of
HK$0.2 per share.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The Directors
consider the risk of foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
manageable. The management will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure of the Group and is prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when appropriate actions are required.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group has no material
acquisitions/disposals of subsidiaries and associate during the year.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

In April and August 2015, the Group completed the respective
acquisitions of Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou through contractual
arrangements. Save as disclosed in this report, there have been no
changes to such Contractual Arrangements since the respective
completion dates.

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the power
of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into among
() AK Subsidiary (BN B Sl MR MABEARBEREERF
(Suzhou Bo Kai Biomedical Consultation Service Ltd.*)), a company
established in the PRC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Frame
Sharp Limited (a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
being owned as to (a) 70% (increased to 90% with effect from 20
June 2019) by CRMI Medical Bio-Tech Limited (“CRMI Medical”),
formerly known as Enlighten On Enterprise Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and (b) 30% (decreased to
10% with effect from 20 June 2019) by Remed Tiger Limited (“Remed
Tiger”), a company incorporated in the Republic of Seychelles, being
owned as to 100% by Mr. Zhang Xumao) respectively as at the date
of this report), (i) AK Suzhou (B 8| (& JN) & ¥ £ i1 B IR 2 7] (AK
(Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd.), a limited liability company established
in the PRC to engage in the business of providing services and
equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical applications
in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on human stem cell
technologies and equipment for human stem cell processing and for
trading of its related equipment), the then (iii) registered shareholders
of AK Suzhou and their spouses (if any).

*

for identification purposes only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)
Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, AK Suzhou is currently owned as to 30% by
Ms. Cui Keyan and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (the former executive
Director of the Company, which had resigned from his directorship of
the Company with effect from 30 April 2016) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders”). AK Suzhou is
controlled by the Group through AK Subsidiary by way of AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which AK Subsidiary controls
AK Suzhou.

AK Suzhou is established to engage in the business of providing
services and equipment for human cell and stem cell related clinical
applications in the PRC, including but not limited to the R&D on
human stem cell technologies and equipment for human stem cell
processing and for trading of its related equipment.

(@ Irrevocable power of attorney
Parties:
Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the contracts under AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
including their respective supplemental agreements (“AK
Suzhou Main Obligations”) have been terminated or discharged
in full.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise AK Subsidiary and its respective
successors to act on their behalf on all matters in relation
to their equity interests in AK Suzhou, including attending
shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of shareholders’
meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising their full
shareholder’s rights under the articles of association of AK
Suzhou and applicable PRC laws and regulations, including
but not limited to shareholders’ voting right, appointment
of the legal representative, director, supervisor and senior
management of AK Suzhou, filing documents with the relevant
governmental authorities or regulatory bodies, acquisition and
disposition of the equity interest of AK Suzhou held by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders or making decision on the liquidation
of AK Suzhou and the formulation of the profit sharing plans
of AK Suzhou, provided that the exercise of the power(s) of
attorney shall not cause breach to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)
Particulars and main business of the operating entity (Cont’d)
(b)  Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:
(i) AK Subsidiary
(i)  AK Suzhou
Terms:
10 years commencing from 7 August 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10-year extension

will continue until AK Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

AK Suzhou should appoint AK Subsidiary as exclusive service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.

CRIES A
B (M) e L (.
BEEBZHER B (A)

BREHEIFHH

HERE

H-ZE-—AF \ALtBERHBI0F - HH
BRERERIMBARPEARIENBRARTE
APEREXBEEBES B BTHI0F - 1t
BETEHPI0OFH/FHELT B2 RINE
NEMEH R L HIRERR -

THRER:

R (BN SR RIME AR REER
LECERRGREAR  BRETRREK
My A 2 ~ BT STIR - BT RE A - B B
NEMABME R R FEEARSE -

2019 3 FEBEBEEERERAT K 23

]

A
y

—’



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

BHRZH (&)
R (M) &R ZHE (E)

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Particulars and main business of the operating entity (Cont’d) EEERHIERFTEER (1)
(c)  Exclusive option agreements © BEBREGZ

Parties: BEE

()  AK Subsidiary ) RILE

(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(i)  AK Suzhou
Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if AK Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic
10-year extension will continue until AK Subsidiary gives
confirmation regarding termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou irrevocably
agreed, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by AK
Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part of their
equity interests in AK Suzhou, or all or part of the assets of AK
Suzhou.

AK Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
AK Suzhou and/or Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to AK Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
AK Subsidiary.

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou jointly and/
or severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the prior written consent from AK Subsidiary, they
will not (i) amend the articles of association of AK Suzhous; (i)
increase or decrease the registered capital of AK Suzhou; (i)
dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest or
third party rights in its equity interests in AK Suzhou; (iv) appoint
any director(s) or executive director(s) of AK Suzhou; and (v) pay
dividends in any manners. Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from AK Subsidiary, they and their respective related
persons will not engage in any business which is in competition
with the business of AK Suzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Particulars and main business of the operating entity (Cont’d)

(@)

Equity pledge agreements

Parties:

(i) AK Subsidiary

(i)  Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(i) AK Suzhou

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders and AK Suzhou
(including but not limited to AK Suzhou Main Obligations) are
satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged
equity interests under the equity pledge agreement at the
relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce has
been completed.

Main Subject:

Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders pledged all equity interests
in AK Suzhou legally held by Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
(including present or future registered capital and their rights
and benefits, whether through increase of capital and/or
transfer of equity interest) to AK Subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)
Particulars and main business of the operating entity (Cont’d)
(e)  Consent letter of spouse

Parties:

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be valid
until the AK Suzhou Main Obligations are satisfied or discharged
in full.

Main Subject:

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders
unconditionally agreed to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements.

The spouses of Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders undertake
and declare that the equity respectively owned by Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders in AK Suzhou contemplated on AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements shall be Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements.

Reason for using the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou involves technology for human stem cell
research & development and applications which is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in AK Suzhou at that
time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
AK Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of AK Suzhou and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in AK Suzhou.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Revenue and assets subject to the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements

CRIES A
B (M) e L (.
B (M) AR L2 Rt REE

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the AK Suzhou B8 (FM) SO LHEZ Wz - FEENMNEEES
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: FIGAR ¢
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE HZE
—E-NEF —E-N\F
t=RA=+—-8B +ZA=1+—H
IEFEE EFE
(HK$°000) (HK$’000)
(F#&x) (F&T)
Revenue e 3,791 3,244
Net loss FEE 8,383 53,256
Total assets BEE 725 28,590

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue and net loss
subject to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 7.9% and 1.87% of the revenue and net loss of the
Group respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the total assets subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
0.13% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue and net loss
subject to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 4.45% and 4.15% of the revenue and net loss of the
Group respectively. As at 31 December 2017, the total assets subject
to AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements amounted to approximately
2.01% of the total assets of the Group.

Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Ak Suzhou Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any
failure to unwind any AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements are removed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Collectively, the exclusive business cooperation agreement, the
exclusive option agreement, the equity pledge agreement, the
power of attorney and the consent letter of spouse, entered into
among (i) Tianjin Subsidiary (Tianjin Weisheng Biotechnology
Consulting Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC with Royal
Noble Development Limited as its sole shareholder (a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with Passion Stream Limited as its sole
shareholder, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
being owned as to 70% (increased to 90% with effect from 20 June
2019) and 30% (decreased to 10% with effect from 20 June 2019)
by the CRMI Medical and Remed Tiger respectively)), (i) Tianjin
Weikai (X2 & 5l £ %) T12 £ R 2 & (Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd.”),
a company incorporated in the PRC to engage in the business of
designs and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related
equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors and their related
consumables, as well as providing CRO services i.e. contract
research services which mainly include drug screening, drug efficacy,
toxicity assays in the drug development services to local institutions
and hospitals), the then (jii) registered shareholders of Tianjin Weikai
and their spouses (if any).

Particulars and main business of the operating entity

At the date of this report, Tianjin Weikai is currently owned as to 30%
by Mr. Cui Zhanyong and as to 70% by Mr. Dai Yumin (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Tianjin Weikai Shareholders”). Tianjin
Weikai is controlled by the Group through Tianjin Subsidiary by way
of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements pursuant to which Tianjin
Subsidiary controls Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Weikai engages in the business of design and manufacturing
of pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment, especially in 3D
cell culture bio-reactors and their related consumables as well as
providing CRO services.

for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(a)  Irrevocable Power(s) of Attorney

Parties:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders

Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the contracts under Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements including their respective supplemental
agreements (“Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations”) are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall, among other things,
irrevocably authorise any representative and its respective
successors appointed by Tianjin Subsidiary to act on their behalf
all matters in relation to its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai,
including attending shareholders’ meeting, signing minutes of
shareholders’ meeting and shareholders’ resolutions, exercising
their full shareholder’s rights under the articles of association
of Tianjin Weikai and applicable PRC laws and regulations,
including but not limited to shareholders’ voting right,
appointment of the legal representative, director, supervisor
and senior management of Tianjin Weikai, filing documents
with the relevant governmental authorities or regulatory bodies,
acquisition and disposition of the shareholdings of Tianjin Weikai
held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders or making decision on the
liquidation of Tianjin Weikai and the formulation of the profit
sharing plans of Tianjin Weikai, provided that the exercise of the
power(s) of attorney shall not cause to breach the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

®)

Exclusive business cooperation agreement
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary

(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from 17 April 2015. The exclusive
business cooperation agreement will be automatically extended
for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary has no intention to
terminate upon its expiry. The said automatic 10- year extension
will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary gives confirmation regarding
the termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai should appoint Tianjin Subsidiary as service
provider for its business operations, including but not limited
to, technical R&D, technical support, technical consultation,
technical training and other management and corporate
consultation services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

(©

Exclusive option agreements
Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary

(i) Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

10 years commencing from the date of the respective exclusive
option agreements. The exclusive option agreement will be
automatically extended for another 10 years if Tianjin Subsidiary
has no intention to terminate upon its expiry. The said
automatic10-year extension will continue until Tianjin Subsidiary
gives confirmation regarding termination of the term.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai shall irrevocably
agree, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC, to
transfer to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated by
Tianjin Subsidiary at any time and from time to time, all or part
of its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai, or all or part of the assets
of Tianjin Weikai.

Tianjin Subsidiary may exercise its rights under the paragraph
above at any time and in any manner at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price of each
of the rights under the paragraph above shall be the lowest
price permitted under the laws of the PRC, subject to any other
price as required by the PRC government authorities. Upon
Tianjin Weikai and/or Tianjin Weikai Shareholders receive(s)
the said consideration, they unconditionally transfer the said
consideration to Tianjin Subsidiary or any person(s) designated
by Tianjin Subsidiary.

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai jointly and/or
severally undertake that, among other things, without having
obtained the written consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they will
not (i) amend the articles of association of Tianjin Weikai; (i)
increase or decrease the registered capital of Tianjin Weikai;
(i) dispose of, transfer, mortgage, create any security interest
or third party rights in its equity interests in Tianjin Weikai; (iv)
appoint any director(s) or executive director(s) of Tianjin Weikai;
(v) pay dividends in any manners. Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
further undertake that, without having obtained the written
consent from Tianjin Subsidiary, they and their respective
related persons will not engage in any business which is in
competition with the businesses of Tianjin Weikai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

@

Equity pledge agreement

Parties:

(i) Tianjin Subsidiary

(i) Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
(i) Tianjin Weikai

Terms:

Effective from the registration of the pledged equity interests
under the equity pledge agreement at the relevant PRC
administration for industry and commerce until all the
obligations of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders and Tianjin Weikai
(including but not limited to Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations) are
satisfied or discharged in full. The registration of the pledged
equity interests under the equity pledge agreement at the
relevant PRC administration for industry and commerce has
been completed.

Main Subject:

Tianjin Weikai Shareholders pledged all equity interests in Tianjin
Weikai held by Tianjin Weikai Shareholders (including present or
future registered capital and their rights and benefits, whether
through increase of capital and/or transfer of equity interest) to
Tianjin Subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Major terms of the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
(Cont’d)

(e)  Consent letter of spouse
Parties:
The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
Terms:

An indefinite term upon execution and shall continue to be
valid until the Tianjin Weikai Main Obligations are satisfied or
discharged in full.

Main Subject:

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders shall unconditionally
agree to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

The spouses of Tianjin Weikai Shareholders undertake and
declare that the equity respectively owned by Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders in Tianjin Weikai contemplated on the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements shall be Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders’ personal property respectively; and further, the
said spouses undertake that they shall not take any act that
causes or will cause any conflict and/or impediment to the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm S AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)

Reason for using the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
and the significance to the Group

As advised by the legal adviser of the Company, the principal
business of AK Suzhou which involves technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications is regarded as
prohibited business for foreign entity under the PRC Law. As such,
the Group cannot acquire the equity interest in Tianjin Weikai at
that time. Having regard to such foreign investment restrictions, the
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were designed to provide
Tianjin Subsidiary and, thus the Group, with effective control over the
financial and operational policies of Tianjin Weikai and (to the extent
permitted by PRC laws and regulations) the right to acquire the equity
interest in Tianjin Weikai.

Revenue and assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements

BRZH (&)
XREFNEH LI ()

AR EGHNEHNLHZEAR KX EEz
EEMT

BARNBERERS A - B (FMN) T EEK
w R A Re B A MR 2 I R - R BDE R
WRBINECEZEIER - Fit - AREE
By XU R RO B Sl 2 B 5T axF B IMR
BERS RUKXREISGORFEZBNTIBRZE
MERARNERNEBRHEROPEIM G LEE
RBE 2 A RS Ko (R BDAR ROA R ERF 2 8
ElW) Y fis KRBTSR Z R R -

BXREHNENECHBERZ Kz REE

The revenue, net loss and total assets subject to the Tianjin Weikai R 3Z&E AN LTH 2 W  FEE R EEES S
Contractual Arrangements are set out as follows: s
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B=E HZE
—ZE—-hEF —ZE-N\F
t=A=+-8 +-A=+—8
L I
(HK$’000) (HK$°000)
(F#&x) (F&1)
Revenue Yoz 2,005 1,643
Net loss FEE 8,607 107,385
Total assets mEE 3,929 10,665

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue and net loss
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 4.18% and 1.92% of the revenue and net loss of
the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the total assets
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.71% of the total assets of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue and net loss
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 2.25% and 8.36% of the revenue and net loss of
the Group respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the total assets
subject to Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements amounted to
approximately 0.75% of the total assets of the Group.

BE_Z-—hhEFE+_A=+—HIEE - K24
PAENTHZWE R FBED A AEBRE R
SEETIB 2 H418% K 1.92% - M E—hE+=
B=+—H8B REHIEHNLTHZ2BEEMASE
BBEEL0.71% -

BE_Z-—N\E+_A=1+—RHIEE K24
IENTHhZWE L FEED MG AEBIKRE R
SEETIE 2 492.05% K 8.36% c N —_E— NEFE+ =
A=+—H REFYEOTHZBEERAE
B EEN0.75% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements (Cont’d)
Material changes

Save as disclosed in this report, there has not been any material
changes in Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of
any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been
any failure to unwind any Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are removed.

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks

The Group does not have any direct equity ownership in AK Suzhou
and/or Tianjin Weikai and has relied on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and/or Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
as the case may be, to control, operate, and be entitled to the
economic benefits and risks arising from the respective businesses
of AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai in the PRC. However, there are
risks involved with the operations of AK Subsidiary and/or Tianjin
Subsidiary under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and/or
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, as the case may be.

BRZH (&)
XREFNEH LI ()

EAZE
BRARERBESIN  REFNEHTHR, 3L

FNRZRORHOERLBETEARD -
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BRG] (FM) 2 LR X FEEH A

LZHEEZEFRR AL AR 2 FEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

)

There is no assurance that the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements could comply with future changes

in the regulatory requirements in the PRC and the

PRC government may determine that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with applicable regulations

Current PRC laws and regulations prohibit foreign ownership of
companies engage in the businesses concerning technology for
research & development and applications of human stem cells,
gene diagnose and therapy. The businesses of AK Suzhou and
Tianjin Weikai are regarded as design and manufacturing of
pre-clinical cell and stem cell related equipment which involves
in technology for human stem cell research & development and
applications, in addition to providing contract research services.
The Company is a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman lIslands. AK Subsidiary and Tianjin Subsidiary may not
engage in the businesses concerning technology for human
stem cell research & development and applications in the PRC
under current PRC laws. As a result, the Group will have to
conduct the business of AK Suzhou and Tianjin Weikai in the
PRC through the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements respectively.

Despite the fact that there is no indication that the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements will be interfered or objected by any PRC
regulatory authorities, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
there is a possibility that the Ministry of Commerce and other
competent authorities may have different opinions on the
interpretation of the relevant regulations and would not agree
that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements comply with the current
PRC laws, regulations or rules or those that may be adopted in
future, and the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements.

If the authorities may deny the validity, effectiveness
and enforceability of any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
it could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s
businesses, financial condition and results of operations.

BHRZH (&)

BRG] (B M) e LR KR E G S

LZHEEZEFRR AL AR 2 FEE
EBgz 15t (E

()

BT BERFZERE] (M) ERZHER KB
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B T T

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual

BHRZH (&)

BRG] (B M) e LR KR E G S

LZHEEZEFRR AL AR 2 FEE

Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to B2 1Bt (48
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)
(i) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin (i) B (FM) BHZHRXEEFNEHZH

Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing
the Group with control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company as direct ownership. If AK
Subsidiary had direct ownership of AK Suzhou, AK Subsidiary
would be able to directly exercise its rights as a shareholder
to effect changes in the board of directors of AK Suzhou.
However, under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
AK Subsidiary can only look to and rely on AK Suzhou and the
Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders to perform their contractual
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
such that AK Subsidiary can exercise effective control over AK
Suzhou. The Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may not act in
the best interests of AK Suzhou or may not perform its/their
obligations under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements,
and in that case, AK Subsidiary may replace the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders by its other nominees pursuant to
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements. However, if any
dispute relating to the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
remains unresolved, AK Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights
under the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and seek to
interpret the terms of the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements
in accordance with the PRC laws and will be subject to
uncertainties in the PRC legal system.
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Flas G E AT E A REA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

It will be the same situation for the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. If Tianjin Subsidiary had direct ownership of
Tianjin Weikai, Tianjin Subsidiary would be able to directly
exercise its rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the
board of directors of Tianjin Weikai. However, under the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary can
only look to and rely on Tianjin Weikai and the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders to perform their contractual obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements such that Tianjin
Subsidiary can exercise effective control over Tianjin Weikai. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may not act in the best interests
of Tianjin Weikai or may not perform its/their obligations under
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements, and in that case,
Tianjin Subsidiary may replace the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
by its other nominees pursuant to the Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. However, if any dispute relating to the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements remains unresolved, Tianjin
Subsidiary will have to enforce its rights under the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements and seek to interpret the terms of
the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements in accordance with
the PRC laws and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC
legal system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(ii)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the economic
interests in the Project Company (“either AK Suzhou or
Tianjin Weikai or both as the case may be”) as direct
ownership (Cont’d)

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements are governed by the PRC laws.
When a dispute arises under any of the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements,
the relevant parties thereto shall settle the dispute through
negotiation in an amicable manner. In case the dispute is not
resolved, the parties to the dispute may have to rely on legal
remedies under the PRC laws. The AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements
provided that dispute will be submitted to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission for arbitration to
be conducted in Beijing. The decision of such arbitration is final
and binding on the parties to the dispute.

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from that
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, the uncertainties in the
PRC legal system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce
the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements. There is no assurance that such
arbitration result will be in favour of the Group and/or that
there will not be any difficulties in enforcing any arbitral awards
granted, including specific performance or injunctive relief and
claiming damages by the Group. As the Group may not be
able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely manner, its ability
to exert effective control over AK Suzhou and/or Tianjin Weikai
and the conduct of the businesses concerning technology for
human stem cell research & development and applications
could be materially and adversely affected, and may disrupt the
business of the Group and have a material adverse impact on
Group’s business, prospects and results of operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iij)  Potential conflicts of interest among the respective
shareholders and the Project Company may exist

@)

Potential conflicts of interest among AK Subsidiary, AK
Suzhou, the Suzhou Biomedical Shareholders may exist

AK Subsidiary shall rely on the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements to exercise control over and to draw the
economic benefits from AK Suzhou. AK Subsidiary may
not be able to provide sufficient incentives to the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders for the purpose of encouraging
them to act in the best interests of AK Subsidiary, other
than stipulating the relevant obligations in the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements. The Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders may breach the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements in the event of conflicts of interest or
deterioration of its/their relationship with AK Subsidiary,
the results of which may have a material adverse impact
on AK Subsidiary’s business, prospects and results of
operation.

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Suzhou
Biomedical Shareholders will act in the best interests
of AK Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in
favour of AK Subsidiary. If any of the Suzhou Biomedical
Shareholders fails to perform its obligations under the
respective AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements, AK
Subsidiary may have to rely on legal remedies under
the PRC laws through legal proceedings, which may
be expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to AK
Subsidiary’s operations and will be subject to uncertainties
as stated above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iij)  Potential conflicts of interest among the respective
shareholders and the Project Company may exist (Cont’d)

®)

Potential confiicts of interest among Tianjin Subsidiary,
Tianjin Weikai, the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may exist

Tianjin Subsidiary shall rely on the Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements to exercise control over and
to draw the economic benefits from Tianjin Weikai. Tianjin
Subsidiary may not be able to provide sufficient incentives
to the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders for the purpose of
encouraging them to act in the best interests of Tianjin
Subsidiary, other than stipulating the relevant obligations
in the Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements. The
Tianjin Weikai Shareholders may breach the Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements in the event of conflicts
of interest or deterioration of its/their relationship with
Tianjin Subsidiary, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on Tianjin Subsidiary’s business,
prospects and results of operation.

It is not assured that if conflicts arise, the Tianjin Weikai
Shareholders will act in the best interests of Tianjin
Subsidiary or that the conflicts will be resolved in favour of
Tianjin Subsidiary. If any of the Tianjin Weikai Shareholders
fails to perform its obligations under the respective Tianjin
Weikai Contractual Arrangements, Tianjin Subsidiary
may have to rely on legal remedies under the PRC laws
through legal proceedings, which may be expensive,
time-consuming and disruptive to Tianjin Subsidiary’s
operations and will be subject to uncertainties as stated
above.

BHRZH (&)

BRG] (FM) LR X ZEEH A

LZHEEZEFRR AL AR 2 FEE
EBgz 15t (E

(i) BFHEBRRERIEE A GZEJEFEEE
Fil 25 15 2% (48)

() XZEHE A XBEHHRKXZEEG I
AR 2 [B] A] BE 7 FE B 1E 5 18 58

REMBLARBEERZHEIANE
BEE RO B TR SR L 8 A
RENR - BRRXEFIAHNRHF
FIRBEERIN  REWEB AR A8
B Th BB RO ET S IR AR ORI B
NAEZ &EMEITEMRREEFIR
RIS - RO IIBER AT B
REBRNEFRIEERZHBE LA
ZBRERERERREFINENLH -
HERFMRHRXZMB AR Z %5
AR MEEREELBEATNZE -

BARE S BHAEERE - XEHIK
REURZMB AR 2 HZENEITE
SEREAG R ZME AR AN 27
R o W ER R F IR RERE
TEREODREFNEGHLEHET 2
B REWBLRRIARRBBER
RAAMKIE R BDUER T OREEK - it
RUESE  RERTEHRZNER
Al 2E - BAjsEm bR Xt 2 &
FBARE = o

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT K 41



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(iv) The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin

Weikai Contractual Arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed

The AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the
PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed on the
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be.
Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the case may be,
may face adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered into
based on arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities
determine that the AK Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and
Tianjin Weikai Contractual Arrangements were not entered
into on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the income and
expenses of Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary, as the
case may be, for the PRC tax purposes, which could result in
higher tax liabilities on Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK Subsidiary,
as the case may be.

The operation results of the Tianjin Subsidiary and/or AK
Subsidiary, as the case may be, may be materially and
adversely affected if the tax liabilities of AK Subsidiary, Tianjin
Subsidiary, Tianjin Weikai or AK Suzhou increase significantly or
if they are required to pay interest on late payments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B ER R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company

@)

AK Subsidiary’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests
in or assets of AK Suzhou may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs

In case AK Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire all
or part of the equity interests and/or assets of AK Suzhou
under the relevant exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of AK Suzhou may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of AK Suzhou) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time
may be involved in transferring the ownership of AK
Suzhou, which may have a material adverse impact on
AK Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B EH R

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (CONT’D)

Risks associated with the AK Suzhou Contractual
Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements and actions taken by the Company to
mitigate the risks (Cont’d)

(v) Ability to acquire the entire equity interests in or assets
of the Project Company (Cont’d)

©®)

Tianjin Subsidiary's ability to acquire the entire equity
interests in or assets of Tianjin Weikai may be subject to
various limitations and substantial costs

In case Tianjin Subsidiary exercises its options to acquire
all or part of the equity interests and/or assets of Tianjin
Weikai under the exclusive option agreement, the
acquisition of the entire equity interests in or the assets
of Tianjin Weikai may only be conducted to the extent as
permitted by the applicable PRC laws and will be subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC laws. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in or all assets of Tianjin Weikai) or other limitations as
imposed by applicable PRC laws. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time may
be involved in transferring the ownership of Tianjin
Weikai, which may have a material adverse impact on
Tianjin Subsidiary’s businesses, prospects and results of
operation.

In light of the above risks associated with the AK
Suzhou Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has adopted
a set of procedures, systems and internal control
measures to ensure the sound and effective operation
of the Group and the implementation of the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements. Such procedures, systems and internal
control measures include (i) regular discussions of matters
relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries from
governmental authorities, if any, by the board of directors
of the Company at board meetings; and (i) retaining legal
adviser and/or other professional to assist the Group
to deal with specific issues arising from the AK Suzhou
Contractual Arrangements and Tianjin Weikai Contractual
Arrangements, if so required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B R wm L AT

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital and other
commitments as follows:

BARR H AR

RIE—NE+_A=+—H £EENEAK
HAENT

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FET
Capital commitments for property, plant and BB  BERREEREE:
equipment:
Contracted but not provided for: BRT4BE R -
Purchased of property, plant and equipment BEWME - BEM&E 654 1,125
Total HEr 654 1,125

The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the University
of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and tissue engineering.
The Company agreed to provide GBP9 million (equivalent to HK$93
million) to the University of Oxford by instalments over the period
covered by agreements. Up to 31 December 2019, the Company has
paid GBP5.05 million (equivalent to HK$55.90 million (2018: GBP5.05
million (equivalent to HK$55.90 million)) to the University of Oxford. As
the agreements are executory, no liability should be recognised at the
date of signing of the agreements.

CHARGES OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, no bank loans (2018: HK$389.3 million)
were secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits (2018:
HK$417.6 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).

AABHFERERBARAERASETRED
WMERT LMD EIRE - AR BRE R 1HER
= B M2 K 2 5 B 12 449,000,000 H £ (48
& 703,000,000/ 7L) c HEZTE—NF+=A
=—+—8  ARQRBEMFEKNEZ 5,050,000
(B 555,900,000 7T) (T — )\ ¢
5,050,000 % £ (#8 & 7 55,900,000/ L)) ° @R
ZEWBHFNT RELIHEB T ERREE -

EEHRARIEBEE

R-B-NF+_A=+—8 #HECZE-N
£ : 389,300,000/ 70) SRITE K A AEE D K
$RITER (ZF—/\F : 417,600,000 7T ) fEHE o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this announcement, the Group did not have
any concrete plans for material investment or capital assets as
at 31 December 2019. However, the Group will continue to seek
investment opportunities in line with the strategic development of
the Group both at home and abroad to promote the sustainable and
steady development of the Group.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 213 (2018: 334) employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was approximately HK$70.3
million (31 December 2018: HK$110.1 million). In addition, the Group
may offer options to employees as a recognition of and reward for
their efforts and contributions to the Group.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed below, there has been no other material event
affecting the Group since the end of the reporting period.

On 6 January 2020, China Regenerative Medicine Limited (“CRML”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement to dispose 15% of its Class B limited partnership interest
in ZhongHua Finance Acquisition Fund I, L.P. (the “Fund”), a sector
fund focusing on investments in the skincare and medical products
industries, to Mr. Xiong Qiangen (“Mr. Xiong”) for US$5,800,000 in
cash. The Company plans to use such proceeds generated from the
disposition for general working capital purposes.

On 30 January 2020, the Company announced that with effect
from 30 January 2020, (i) Dr. Ray Yip has tendered his resignation
as a non-executive Director; (ii) Ms. Wang Danjuan has tendered
her resignation as an independent non-executive Director; (iii) Mr.
Tsang Ho Yin has been appointed as a non-executive Director and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board; and (iv) Ms.
Huo Chunyu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, and a member of each of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Board.
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8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONT’D)

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 6 February
2020 in relation to, among other things, the proposed offer (the
“Proposed Open Offer”) for subscription by qualifying Shareholders
for 1,758,579,000 offer shares at the subscription price of HK$0.2
per offer share on the basis of two (2) offer shares for every one
(1) Share held on the record date, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$351.72 million, before expenses. The Proposed
Open Offer was subsequently terminated on 18 February 2020 as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18 February
2020.

On 21 February 2020, CRML entered into an agreement to dispose
the remaining 85% (the “Further Disposal”) of its Class B limited
partnership interest in the Fund to Mr. Xiong for US$32,900,000
in cash. As one of the applicable percentage ratios calculated in
accordance with Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules in relation to
the Further Disposal exceeds 75%, the Further Disposal constitutes
a very substantial disposal of the Company under Chapter 19 of the
GEM Listing Rules. In this regard, the Further Disposal is subject to
the reporting, announcement, circular and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 7 May 2020, the Further
Disposal was approved. The Company announced on 29 May 2020
that the Further Disposal was completed on 29 May 2020.

On 2 March 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
(“Placing Agreement”) with SBI China Capital Financial Services
Limited (“SBI”) and Grand Partners Securities Limited (“Grand
Partners”), pursuant to which SBI and Grand Partners agree, as joint
agents of the Company, to procure, on a best effort basis, not less
than six placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners will be
independent third parties, to subscribe for up to 500,000,000 placing
shares (each a “Placing Share”) at the placing price of HK$0.20 per
Placing Share. The Placing Shares will be issued under the specific
mandate obtained from the Shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) held on 15 April 2020 to approve the Placing
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder. The
placing was also conditional upon the Stock Exchange granting the
Company the approval for the listing of, and the permission to deal in,
the Placing Shares. The Company announced the completion of the
allotment and issue of Placing Shares on 15 May 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONT’D)

On 2 March 2020, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription and settlement agreement (the “Subscription and
Settlement Agreement”) with All Favour Holdings Limited (the
“Subscriber” or “All Favour”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agrees to issue and the Subscriber conditionally agrees
to subscribe for or procure the subscription (the “Subscription”)
by its nominee(s) of a three-year zero coupon unsecured unlisted
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount of
HK$120 million at its face value and pay the subscription price at
completion by setting off against the part of the shareholder’s loan
due by the Company to the Subscriber in the amount of HK$120
million. The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bond was set at
HK$0.20 per Share (each a “Conversion Share”).

The Subscription is conditional upon the Stock Exchange granting
the Company the approval for the listing of, and the permission
to deal in, the Conversion Shares and the passing of necessary
resolution(s) by the independent shareholders at the EGM, to approve
the Subscription and Settlement Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder. The necessary resolutions were obtained
by the independent shareholders at the EGM held on 15 April 2020
and the Company announced on 21 April 2020 the completion of the
Subscription and Settlement Agreement. Pursuant to a conversion
notice dated 21 May 2020 issued by All Favour, 200,000,000
Conversion Shares were issued on 22 May 2020 to All Favour at
issue price of HK$0.2 per each Conversion Share.

On 20 May 2020, the Company announced the appointment of
Mr. Qiu Bin as an executive Director with effect from 20 May 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
SZNMEETTHAERBMN

Mr. Wang Chuang (“Mr. Wang Chuang”), aged 40, is an executive
Director and chairman for the Company. Mr. Wang Chuang joined
the Group in October 2019. Mr Wang Chuang was accredited as
a grade 1 health management professional by the Hubei Provincial
Department of Human Resources and Social Security of China in
May 2016 and a psychological consultant by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of China in March 2019. He served
as the chairman of Hong Kong Bomei (China) Company Limited* (&
B FEH B 5 A A) between 2008 and 2019. Between 2015 and
2019, he acted as the chief executive officer of Changzhou X|ngKong
Medical Clinic Co., Ltd.* (B MM E LB EEXZRMZ AR A7) and
the chairman of Jiangsu XingKong Health Management Consultmg
Co., Ltd.* (IR 2 = f#RE LA B R A 7)) He served as a senior
execuhve of Jiangsu Zhenai Company Limited* (L&A ZE BR A
A]) between 2006 and 2008, a semor executive of Wuxi Shencai
Company Lwnﬂed*(ﬁ&i%%$7N¥§H§ 7)) between 2004 and 2006
and a senior executive of Changzhou Meichen Company Limited* (&
MZEZ AR A F]) between 2002 and 2004. Mr. Wang Chuang is the
president of the Chamber of Commerce of Changzhou Lishui* (& /|
SEK B € @ &) and the vice president of the China’s National Alliance
for Maternal and Child Health Development* (% B i 41 & BE (2 # 35 &
B 82). He was a committee member of the Organization Committee
of the 2017 Boao Forum for Biomedical Sciences (2017 F 182 £ 4
B 218 H 44 % 8 9) and the founder of Bomei Angel Charity Fund*
(%%%ﬁ%%%A)

Mr. Wang Xuejun (“Mr. Wang Xuejun”), aged 52, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company. He is also
the chief executive officer of the Stem Cell Division of the Company,
and serves as a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Wang Xuejun joined the Group in September 2018. He graduated
from Nankai University and obtained a master’s degree of business
administration and medicine. He was an executive deputy general
manager of Vcanbio Cell & Gene Engineering Corp., Ltd. (stock code
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange: SH600645), general manager of
marketing center of Union Stemcell & Gene Engineering Co., Ltd.”
(A=A ERE TIEHFR A A]) and head of its subsidiary, and a
director and general manager of certain subsidiaries of Heze Biotech
Co., Ltd.* (FZ AW B A R A Al). He was also a director and
general manager of Heze Biotech Co., Ltd.* (B4 WEHT AR A 7)),
and a doctor at Tianjin Rehabilitation Center.

Mr. Qiu Bin (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 52, is an executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Qiu Bin joined the Group in May 2020. He holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the City University
of Macau. He had worked with various large corporations in
mainland China and been responsible for project investment, assets
restructuring, property development and property leasing and
management. Mr. Qiu has over 15 years of experience in investment
management. Mr. Qiu was the general manager of China Technology
Education Trust Association during the period from January 2009 to
October 2011. Mr. Qiu was the executive Director of Suncity Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sun Century Group Limited)
(Stock code: 1383), the shares of which are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, during the period from June 2012 to May
2015. He was also the executive Director of Sheng Yuan Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 851), the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, during the period from July 2017 to
February 2020. Since March 2020, he has been the Chairman and
CEO of HongDa Financial Holding Limited, a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1822).

*

for identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTBRARGN

Mr. Wu Weiliang (“Mr. Wu”), aged 57, is a non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Wu joined the Group in November 2019. Mr.
Wu obtained a bachelor’s degree from the PLA Nanjing Political
State College* (Bl A R 78 E @ = EUA 2 FT) in July 2009 and
an executive master’s degree in business administration from the
Shanghai Advanced Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiaotong
University (E/BRBAZEH LR EF) in July 2017. Since
September 2018, Mr. Wu has enrolled in the executive master’s
degree in business administration of Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business (£)T B £Ft). Mr. Wu served as the general manager of
Jiangsu Hengde Mechanical Company Limited* (I &k {5 28 # 4% & [R
7~ A]) between January 2000 and March 2004. Since March 2004,
Mr. Wu has served as the chairman of Jinxin Group* (& 715 % & [
AR A7) Since December 2016, Mr. Wu has acted as a director of
Jiangnan Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited* (/T F 25 & 2%
$R1T R 1D B R 2 &)). Mr. Wu was the representative of Changzhou
to the National People’s Congress (& N AKX F). Mr. Wu is the
president of the Changzhou Tianning District Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce* (EMMAZERFEHEEEER).

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 34, is a non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in January
2020. Mr. Tsang was admitted as a solicitor in Australia and Hong
Kong in May 2012 and December 2013, respectively. Mr. Tsang is
currently a senior associate of Stevenson, Wong & Co., specialising
in corporate finance and commercial law. Mr. Tsang obtained a
bachelor in laws degree and a bachelor in commerce (accounting)
degree, both from the University of Melbourne, Australia in August
2008. Mr. Tsang obtained a master in laws degree from the University
of Melbourne, Australia in August 2010. Mr. Tsang obtained the
postgraduate certificate in laws from the City University of Hong Kong
in July 2011. Since May 2019, Mr. Tsang has been the company
secretary of Mabpharm Limited, a biopharmaceutical company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2181). As a company secretary,
he has been responsible for company secretarial matters for the
said company. Since November 2019, Mr. Tsang has been the joint
company secretary and authorised representative of Sunshine 100
China Holdings Ltd, a real estate development company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2608), where he is
responsible for company secretarial matters. Since February 2020,
Mr. Tsang has been appointed as the company secretary and the
authorised representative of Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited,
a mobile game and packaging company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1439).

*

for identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
EFLEHTBRARGN

Dr. Fang Jun (“Dr. Fang”), aged 57, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He is also the chairman of each
of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company and a member of the audit committee. Dr. Fang joined the
Group in December 2017. He served as an executive member and
the executive vice-chairman of the Cross-straits Medicine Exchange
Association* (8 I /il /= B8 B2 87 4 X 1% ®), an executive member
and the vice-chairman of China Sexology Association* (73 Bl 14 £l &),
the publisher and the executive chief editor of the China Sexology
Journal* ({#F B 14 %)) and the deputy head of the Sexology
Research Center of Peking University Health Science Center* (1t &
KEAB2EA ST EARfF 9T AR L), Dr. Fang also assumed various positions
such as the executive member and the secretary general of Wu
Jieping Medical Foundation (=% ¥ &£ E £ ). Dr. Fang graduated
from Peking University Health Science Center with a master’s degree
in Social Medicine and Health Service Management and a doctorate
degree in Epidemiology and Health Statistics. Dr. Fang also served as
an independent non-executive director of HongDa Financial Holding
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (1822.HK) from
July 2014 to May 2018.

Ms. Huo Chunyu (“Ms. Huo”), aged 45, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huo joined the Group in
January 2020. Ms. Huo obtained a bachelor degree from Hebei
University of Economics and Business (7] 1t 4% & K ). She has over
20 years of commercial and professional experience with companies
including the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Hebei Branch
(fF B T p5 88 77 ) 48 & 9 77), Shijiazhuang Haowei Optoelectronic
Thin Film Technology Co., Lid (A RSB N E FEERMERA
7)) and Hebei Youyuan Certified Public Accountants (i 3t & R & &1
B = 75 F7). Since September 2012, she has been a Partner of Ruihua
Certified Public Accountants (3 £ & &1 A 25 75 F).

Ms. Yang Ying (“Ms. Yang”), aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Yang joined the Group in
October 2019. Ms. Yang has been a member of the Beijing Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 1999 and is a certified public
accountant of the People’s Republic of China. Since August 2014,
Ms. Yang has served as the managing partner of the Beijing branch of
Shanghai Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
(L& SR ST (k@4 X)), Between September 2005 and
September 2011, Ms. Yang was a shareholder, the chairlady and the
chief accountant of Beijing Jiuzhou Haotian Accounting Firm Co., Ltd.
AERNINEXREETRIEB AR E T2 F). Ms. Yang obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from Asia International
Open University (Macau) in December 2010.

*

for identification purposes only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present hereby the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”), i.e. from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Group believes that high standard of
corporate governance provides a framework and solid foundation for
achieving, attracting and retaining the high standard and quality of the
Group’s management, promoting high standards of sound internal
control, accountability and transparency to all shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) and also meeting the expectations of the
Group’s various stakeholders.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG
Code”) throughout the Reporting Period, with the exception of code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.

Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board is required to attend the annual general meeting. Dr.
Ray Yip, the then chairman, did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting in person held on 18 June 2019 (the “AGM”) due
to his engagement in other business commitment outside Hong
Kong. Other Board members, including members of the audit,
remuneration and nomination committees, attended the AGM and
made themselves available to answer questions to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company. As an action
plan to address the aforesaid deviation, the Company will require all
the chairman to attend all future general meetings in order to comply
with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.
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CODES AND POLICIES
Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions as set out in the GEM Listing Rules as the
required standard for securities transactions by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the Directors, has
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards of
dealings regarding securities transaction by the Directors as set out
on the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Reporting Period.

Code of Ethics

The Company adopts a Code of Ethics that applies to the
Company'’s principal executive officer and senior financial officers
in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the ethical standards of all the employees,
officers and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards
of professional conduct and work performance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

Board Composition

Details of the membership of the Board together with their roles and
functions are posted on the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website and such information shall be updated as soon as practicable
whenever there are changes.

The composition of the Board reflects a balance of skills and
experience desirable for an effective leadership of the Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board had seven Directors, including
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Board Composition (Cont’d)

Given below are names of the Directors as at the date of this report:
Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Chuang

Mr. Wang Xuejun
Mr. Qiu Bin

(chairman of the Board)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Weiliang
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (member of the Remuneration

Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Fang Jun (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination
Committee and member of
the Audit Committee)
(member of each of the Audiit
Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the
Remuneration Committee)
(chairman of the Audiit
Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee)

Ms. Huo Chunyu

Ms. Yang Ying

Biographical details of each director are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Chief Executives” on pages 49
to 51 of this annual report.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Functions of the Board

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The principal functions of the Board are to:
° establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

° approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

° approve the nominations of Directors by Nomination Committee
and appointment of external auditors;

° ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with Shareholders;

° monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and Shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and assume responsibility for corporate
governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day management, administration
and operations of the Group to the executive Directors and
senior management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval. The management is responsible for the implementation
of the Company'’s strategies and policies, while the progress and
development are periodically reviewed by Directors. During the
Reporting Period, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly management updates (“Monthly Management
Updates”) in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Monthly Management Updates contained latest financials
with summaries of key events of the Group, giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom and has adopted the board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has primary
responsibility for identifying and giving recommendation suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate Board decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board has also regularly reviewed the contribution of each
Director as to whether the Director is spending sufficient time to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Board.

The Board considers that the current composition of the Board,
with core competencies in areas such as accounting and finance,
business and management, medical science, legal profession,
marketing management, media development and M&A, is appropriate
for the businesses of the Company. The Board will review its
composition from time to time taking into consideration of the specific
needs for the overall Company and its subsidiaries’ businesses.

Continuing Professional Development

The Company Secretary is responsible for updating the Board on
governance and regulatory matters.

Training will be provided to newly appointed director to his/her
individual needs. This includes introduction to the Group business
activities, their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
requirements.

The Company will arrange and/or introduce training courses and/
or reading materials for Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Continuing Professional Development (Cont’d)

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, ensuring that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the
Reporting Period, all Directors participated in continuous professional
development and had provided the Company with records (if any) on
their participation. The individual training record of each Director for
the Reporting Period is set out below:

Directors and Types of continuous professional development
programmes

Mr. Wang Chuang A B, C
Mr. Wang Xuejun A B, C
Mr. Qiu Bin A B, C
Mr. Wu Weiliang A B, C
Mr. Tsang Ho Yin A B, C
Dr. Fang Jun A B, C
Ms. Huo Chunyu A B, C
Ms. Yang Ying A B, C

A. attending seminars/meetings/forums/conferences/courses/workshops
organized by professional bodies or regulatories

B. reading journals/newsletters/seminar materials/publications/magazines

C. reading memoranda issued or materials provided by the Company

All information and materials aforesaid relate, but not limited to the
latest development of the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
and regulatory matters as well as directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities,
which is in compliance with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates
and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
nomination and retirement of the Directors.

According to the Company'’s articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are required to retire from office at each annual general
meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once in every three years. The Directors who will
retire at the annual general meeting of the Company shall be those
appointed by the Board during the year and not being re-appointed
at a general meeting thereafter during the year, and those who have
been the longest in office since their last election or re-election.

The following sets out the responsibilities for the Directors in relation
to the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements:

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements
to Shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Policy
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements,

the Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Appointment, Election and Re-election (Cont’d)

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D) EE=(E)

Board and General Meetings EFERKEAE

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly ZEHEBFELTHINAEE  ANBZTHRIT—
intervals and organises additional meetings as and when required. ¥R BT ERABEINEGH EZHRANE
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means AR QA BIHGZIRMEI B 2 HMtbE FBAS
of electronic communication in accordance with the Company’s RNHEEH - AR rBETrHESEe Rz
articles of association. Notice of at least fourteen days is given of a  + Pk [AfiBEEER L BN FEAKELFE
regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. g o

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice time HitEEE@NEZE @5 —MREANSERE L

is generally given. During the Reporting Period, the Board held nine
meetings, of which four were regular meetings. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held

during the Reporting Period:

PR AETEHEE -
tEeE

B RNMEME EFERBITAREE
TR ERE E RS HHE
21BN

Attendance/
Number of
General Meetings

H

Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings

Name of Directors EEpE entitled to attend entitled to attend

(From 1 January 2019 to (ZE—N&—A—H=z HE/ BREHE HE/ BREHE

31 December 2019) E-NF+ZA=+—BHH) REASEE ExeeEyB

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated as a non-executive  EEE+ (R_T— L&+ A+ N\H 2/2 8/9
Director on 18 October 2019) AERFENTES)

Mr. Wang Chuang THEE (R -_Z—AF+A+T/\H 1/1 4/4
(appointed on 18 October 2019) EZE)

Mr. Wang Xuejun TEELEE 2/2 9/9

Non-Executive Directors FHTES

Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated as a non-executive  EEE T+ (R=_T— L&+ A+ /B 2/2 8/9
Director on 18 October 2019) AERFENTES)

Mr. Wu Weiliang REREERZZE—NE+—A 11 3/4
(appointed on 15 November 2019) THHEEZT)

Mr. Zhang Bin REAER_ZE—NFLtA-AE N/A 0/5
(appointed on 2 July 2019 and resigned on ZERRZZT-NFT+—ATHA TE A
15 November 2019) B )

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUFHTES

Mr. Chan Bing Woon BRI R 4 A 0/1 5/5
(resigned on 15 August 2019) (RZZE-NFNB+HEBET)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (resigned HEBGEE 1/1 5/5
on 21 August 2019) (RZZE-AFNAZT—HEHD)

Dr. Fang Jun FEET 1/2 8/9

Ms. Wang Danjuan THBERZLT 11 3/4
(appointed on 10 October 2019) (RZZE-NFTATHEZT)

Ms. Yang Ying BB 11 3/4

(appointed on 14 October 2019)

(R=F-NFTATHBEZRDT)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)
Board and General Meetings (Cont’d)

Board papers are circulated at least three days (or other agreed
period) before the regular Board meetings and/or other Board/
Committees meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. In addition,
the Company has maintained a procedure for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense in discharging their duties to the Company.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
prepares minutes and/or written resolutions and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
The Company Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the CEO should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

During the year, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO were
segregated and performed by different individuals.

On 18 October 2019, Dr. Ray Yip ceased to be the Chairman and Mr.
Wang Chuang was appointed on the same date as the Chairman.

The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the CEO which allows a balance of power
between the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures
their independence and accountability. There is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman
and the CEO.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO (CONT’D)

Both Mr. Wang Chuang and Dr. Ray Yip, have taken overall
responsibility for providing leadership for the Board. They ensure that:

° the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

° the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda;

° good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and active
participation to the affairs of the Group; and

° the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xuejun as the CEO during the Reporting Period, was
responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of
the Group, attends to formulation and successful implementation
of policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all
operations of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xuejun possesses extensive experience in business
development and corporate management. He has given valuable
experience and contribution to the Group. Working with the
management team of each core business division, he ensures the
smooth operations and development of the Group. He maintains a
continuing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them
fully informed of all major business development and issues.

During the year, the Chairman had arranged meetings with non-
executive directors without the presence of executive directors.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
All non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of two years and they are required
to retire by rotation and re-election at the general meeting of the
Company following their appointments in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 12
August 2019 in respect of the resignation of Mr. Chan Bing Woon (‘Mr.
Chan”) as an independent non-executive Director, member of each
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Board with effect from 15 August 2019; and to
the Company’s announcement dated 19 August 2019 in respect
of the resignation of Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (“Mr. Wong”) as an
independent non-executive Director, chairman and member of the
Audit Committee, member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Board with effect from 21 August
2019.

Following the resignation of Mr. Chan and Mr. Wong, the number of
independent non-executive Directors of the Company fell below the
minimum number required under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules and number of members of the Audit Committee fell below the
minimum number required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the appointment of Ms. Wang Danjuan as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board
on 10 October 2019, and with the appointment of Ms. Yang Ying as
an independent non-executive Director, chairman and member of the
Audit Committee, member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Board on 14 October 2019, the
Company has complied with the GEM Listing Rules by filling up the
vacancies within the time limit.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONT'D)

The independent non-executive Directors have the same duties of
care and skill and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. Their
functions include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

° taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, if invited; and

o scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors of their independence
to the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

According to code provision D.3 of the CG code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference adopted
by the Board on 15 March 2012. The Board shall have the following
duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company:

° to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual
report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has performed the above
corporate governance functions through discussion in the Board
meeting and by reviewing the Company’s policies and practices from
time to time in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
3 subcommittees, namely the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of
the senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

According to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
to establish an audit committee comprising of at least three members
who must be non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof
must be independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom
must have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit Committee has
been established since 4 July 2001 with written terms of reference
which was revised on 16 March 2016 in compliance with the code
provision C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The principal
functions of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditors;

° to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditors, any questions of resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

° to review and monitor external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° to discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditors to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendations on any measures for improvements to be
taken;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee (Cont’d)

to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i)  major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards;
and

(vi) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have an effective internal control system;

to consider major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response;

to review the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditors to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has met once with
the external auditor without the presence of the management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Group’s results for the three months ended 31 March 2019, six
months ended 30 June 2019, nine months ended 30 September
2019 and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The quorum of meeting of the Audit Committee shall be any two
members. During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control of the Group. The following table shows
the attendance of the members of Audit Committee at the meetings
of the Audit Committee held during the Reporting Period:

EEZEE(A)
FREEE (B

ERZEBECENARBEEE_T-NAF=A
=t+—RIE=@A #EZZF-AEFXA=+H
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ARERAEE VB ERIZTRAREZE T
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L A

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Audit Committee EREESHENHS to attend
(From 1 January 2019 to (Z2—N&F—HA—8% HiE BRELE
31 December 2019) —E-NF+ZA=1+—HHH) SEAY
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest ERESLE 4/4
(chairman of Audlit Committee until date of resignation) (Bt Z B LI AFERZEEL/E)
(resigned with effect from 21 Aug 2019) (BZZ—NFENAZ+—BEET)
Mr. Chan Bing Woon BRIR M e 4/4
(resigned with effect from 15 Aug 2019) (BEZZE—NFNAT+RHRERBET)
Dr. Fang Jun B 5/5
Ms. Wang Danjuan FHHBAZ L 11
(appointed with effect from 10 Oct 2019) (BEZE—NFTATABEZT)
Ms. Yang Ying HA T 11

(chairman of Audit Committee upon appointment)
(appointed with effect from 14 Oct 2019)

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary. Minutes are drafted and finalised in sufficient details and
are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee, as the case
may be, for their comments and records within reasonable time after
the conclusion of the meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Nomination Committee

According to code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has to set up a nomination committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has been established since 22 July 2005 with
written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016 in
compliance with code provision A.5.2 of the CG code.

During Reporting Period, all members of the Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has served as chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least once a year.
The quorum shall be any two members.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

° to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

° to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review the Board structure, size, composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity as well
as the independent element of the Board on an annual basis
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

The quorum of meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be any
two members. During the Reporting Period, three meetings of the

i%;gg (u\a
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Nomination Committee were held to review and recommend the :TEESZ2HE RE BN Z LI R A

structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board. Altogether
the members of the Board bring a wide range of knowledge and
experience to the Board, which contributes to the effective direction
of the Company. The following table shows the attendance of it :

ZEEZKE

the members of Nomination Committee at the meetings of the

Nomination Committee held during the Reporting Period:

739\\&%$/\}ﬂz§\7,%%$5m&ﬂﬂzﬁ’]%ﬂ%ﬂi«
B EAPRARANBAREE - TRHEIIRES
BEMELFEREZEQERZE

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Nomination Committee ?ra% iﬁ REHH to attend
(From 1 January 2019 to —NWEF—HA—B% HiE BRELE
31 December 2019) —ﬂ¢+:ﬂ =+—BHH™) SEAY
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest EHRERE 0/0
(resigned with effect from 21 Aug 2019) (BEZE—NFNAZ+— BT
Mr. Chan Bing Woon BRI M 4 A 0/0
(resigned with effect from 15 Aug 2019) (BZZ—NFENATHBERET)
Dr. Fang Jun (chairman of Nomination Committee) HEEt(EEZEEFE) 3/3
Ms. Wang Danjuan B 3/3
(appointed with effect from 10 Oct 2019) (BEZE—NFT+ATABEZE)
Ms. Yang Ying HA T 2/2

(appointed with effect from 14 Oct 2019)

(BZZF-NFTATHBEEERT)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee

According to Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has to set up a remuneration committee with a majority of the
members thereof being independent non-executive directors. The
Remuneration Committee has been established since 22 July 2005
with written terms of reference which was revised on 16 March 2016
in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of the CG code.

During the Reporting Period, all members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

Dr. Fang Jun has served as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

° to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option scheme, based on the
skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and
by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability,
as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits-in-kind, pension rights, and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. In
developing remuneration policies and making recommendation as
to the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account of the corporate goals
and objectives of the Group as well as the performance of those
individual Directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) of each executive Director/senior management
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates
of salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to the executive Directors are determined by
the Board after considering the individual’s relative performance
against the comparable organisations. The fees paid/payable to
the non-executive Directors take into account factors such as
effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors.

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees,
including the executive Directors and senior management. The
criteria for the scheme is the level of profit achieved from certain
aspects of the Group’s business activities against targets,
together with an assessment of corporate and individual’s
performance during the Reporting Period. Bonuses payable to
the executive Directors/senior management are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board to ensure
alignment of their interests with those of Shareholders.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.

Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for participants,
including Directors, senior management, employees, suppliers
and customers. The terms of the scheme are set out in note
38 to the financial statements. The movement of share options
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
14 September 2011 during the Reporting Period is set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.
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Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

EEZEE(A)
HHWEZEEE (A

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to the Directors by the ZEMEBEARTAEETINABESIEAR T
Company in connection with the management of the affairs of the FEH & HE2E-_ZT—NAF+_A=+—HIt
Company. The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 FERZEFT I M2 BN T ERERMT 10
December 2019 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

The quorum of meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be #HEZEECEEMNETAHABTEMAEKE - B
any two members. During the Reporting Period, two meetings of &M FMEZE @ L RBITMA S EE
the Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneraton EEFE L SHEIEAB ZHHMES - TERET
package of the Board and the senior management. The following ¥ EZE& K EREHHEFEFHMEE S S #
table shows the attendance of the members of Remuneration 215t

Committee at the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held

during the Reporting Period:

Attendance/
Number of
Meetings entitled
Name of Remuneration Committee FHEEEREHSR to attend
(From 1 January 2019 to —Z-NF—HA—H=ZE HiE BRELE
31 December 2019) —E-NF+ZA=1+—HHH) SEAY
Executive Directors HTES
Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated as a non-executive Director = FH £ (R =_ZF—hLF+A+/\H 2/2
on 18 October 2019) AERERITES)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated as a non-executive Director ~ E=FEH L (R =_ZE—hLF+A+/\H 2/2
on 18 October 2019) AEREMITES)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest EHRE LA 0/0
(resigned with effect from 21 Aug 2019) (BEZE—NFNAZ+— BT
Mr. Chan Bing Woon BRI A 5 0/0
(resigned with effect from 15 Aug 2019) (BEZZE—NFNATRHERBEIET)
Dr. Fang Jun EELT 2/2
Ms. Wang Danjuan FHHBE L 2/2
(appointed with effect from 10 Oct 2019) (BEZE—NFT+ATABZE)
Ms. Yang Ying HA T 11
(appointed with effect from 14 Oct 2019) (BEZE—NF+ATHEERBEZE)
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE
OFFICER

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on
all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance development and
accounts for such when making decisions. The compliance officer
is directly responsible for advising on and assisting the Board in
implementing procedures to ensure the Company complies with the
GEM Listing Rules and other relevant Laws and regulations applicable
to the Company.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, in each financial
year an issuer’s company secretary must take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. During the Reporting Period, the
Company Secretary has complied with the rule by taking more than
15 hours of relevant training courses and seminars.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, auditor’s remuneration of
HK$1,665,000 (2018: HK$1,780,000) was charged to the Group.
Among such fee, HK$1,350,000 (2018: HK$1,100,000) was charged
for the audit service provided by BDO Limited, the existing auditor
of the Company who was appointed on 13 December 2010. During
the year, the fee for non-audit services provided by BDO Limited
amounted to HK$200,000 and was related to proposed open offer of
the Company (2018: Nil).
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes policies and procedures and limits of authority
governing the authority level and business processes. It is designed
to help achieve business objectives, to safeguard assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information and to ensure
compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The system is
intended to manage rather than to eliminate or eradicate risks.

The Group has performed risk management procedures including
risk identifications, risk assessments, risk prioritization as well as
risk owner appointment. Management’s inputs on risk exposures
were obtained through risk identification questionnaires. Identified
risks have been further assessed and evaluated by the Management
across the business lines. The risks have been evaluated in terms
of their impacts and the likelihood of their occurrences. As part of
the evaluation process, the risks have been prioritized based on the
evaluation results. Follow up action on key identified risks are being
taken by the management.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group has established an enterprise risk management structure
in line with the “Three Lines of Defense” model that defines the three
layers of roles and responsibilities of oversight, risk monitoring and
review as well as risk and control ownership.

The Group’s operating units are the first line of defense. They
are responsible for the day-to-day risk management and control
procedures. The second line of defense is led by the Group’s
Management who are responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring over the Group’s risk exposure. The third line of
defense comprises the Audit Committee and the Group’ internal
auditor department. The third line of defense is responsible for the
independent assessment of the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems. The external auditor of the Group
further complements the third line of defense by independently
auditing material internal controls over the Group’s financial reporting
processes and reports on material control weaknesses to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Internal Control

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which reports directly to
the Audit Committee, to provide the Audit Committee and the Board
with useful information and recommendations on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. During the
Report Period under review, internal audit reports are submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board for review with recommmendations
adopted to further enhance the effectiveness of the internal controls.

Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and
Dissemination of Insider Information

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached,
the Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
The Group is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Additional procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information including but not limited to the following:

(@ access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

(o)  pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by
designated members of the Group; and

(c) notification of regular black-out period and securities dealing
restriction to relevant Directors and employees.
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GOING CONCERN AND MITIGATION MEASURES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had incurred a
loss of approximately HK$447,743,000 and operating cash outflow
of approximately HK$23,332,000. These situations indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the
Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business.

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow forecast
of the Group for a period up to 30 June 2021 taking into account
the impact arising from the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020 and the expected results of the
followings arrangements and measures:

U

Disposal of its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (the “Investment”) to Mr. Xiong Qiangen (“Mr. Xiong”), an
independent third party.

On 6 January 2020, the Group entered into an agreement
with Mr. Xiong to dispose of 15% of the Investment (the “First
Disposal”) for a consideration of US$5.8 million (equivalent
to HK$45.2 million) and Mr. Xiong is obligated to settle the
consideration in full on or before 30 June 2020. Details please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 6 January 2020.
The First Disposal is completed on 29 May 2020.

On 21 February 2020, the Group entered into another
agreement with Mr. Xiong to dispose of the remaining 85% of
the Investment (the “Second Disposal”) for a consideration of
US$32.9 million (equivalent to HK$256.6 million). Mr. Xiong shall
pay first instalment of US$3.9 million (equivalent to HK$30.4
million) on or before 31 May 2020 to complete the Second
Disposal. Mr. Xiong shall pay the remaining consideration of
US$9 million (equivalent to HK$70.2 million), US$10 million
(equivalent to HK$78.0 million and US$10 million (equivalent to
HK$78.0 million) on 30 June 2020, 30 September 2020 and 30
December 2020 respectively (the “Further Payments”). Details
please refer to the Company’s circular dated 20 April 2020.
The Second Disposal is approved by the shareholders of the
Company on 7 May 2020 and completed on 29 May 2020.
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GOING CONCERN AND MITIGATION MEASURES
(CONT'D)

U

(i)

(Cont’d)

During the year, Mr. Xiong granted loan facilities amounted to
HK$100 million to the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the
amount due to Mr. Xiong by the Group amounted to HK$55
million and recognised as other borrowing and repayable on or
before 31 March 2020. On 17 March 2020, the Group signed a
supplementary agreement with Mr. Xiong to increase the facility
amount from HK$100 million to HK$180 million and extend the
repayment date from 31 March 2020 to 30 June 2021. On 2
April 2020, another supplementary agreement was signed to
increase the facilities amount from HK$180 million to HK$200
million.

According to the supplementary agreement dated 2 April 2020,
the considerations of the First and Second Disposals shall first
offset the amount due by the Group to Mr. Xiong on respective
settlement dates (the “Offsetting Arrangement”). In case of delay
by and/or failure of Mr. Xiong in settling the Further Payments,
the Group has the right to unwind the transfer of the Investment
for which the consideration is not received proportionately.
Details please refer to the Company’s circular dated 20 April
2020.

On 30 June 2020, the consideration for (i) the First Disposal;
(ii) the first instalment of the Second Disposal; and (iii) the
instalment due on 30 June 2020 of the Second Disposal
amounting to HK$145.8 million in total have been offset with
the amount due to Mr. Xiong by the Group. After the offsetting,
on 30 June 2020, the amount due to Mr. Xiong by the Group is
amounted to HK$70.6 million and the outstanding consideration
for the Second Disposal is of HK$156 million which will be
due on 30 September 2020 and 30 December 2020. Taking
into account the Offsetting Arrangement, the remaining
consideration payable by Mr. Xiong is amounted to HK$85.4
million (the “Remaining Consideration”) on 30 June 2020.

On 2 March 2020, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with joint placing agents to procure not less than
six placees to subscribe for up to 500 million ordinary shares
of the Company at the placing price of HK$0.20 per share. The
placing was approved by the shareholders on 15 April 2020
and completed on 15 May 2020. The net proceeds from the
share placing of HK$98 million was received in cash on 15
May 2020. Details of the placing are included in the Company’s
circular dated 27 March 2020;
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GOING CONCERN AND MITIGATION MEASURES
(CONT'D)

(i)  The substantial shareholder, All Favour Holdings Limited,
undertakes that no repayment on the shareholder’s loans of
HK$221 million as at 31 December 2019 will be demanded until
30 June 2021 (the “Undertaking”). The beneficial controlling
party of All Favour Holdings Limited also undertake to provide
sufficient financial resources to the Group so as to enable the
Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due and to carrying on its
business without a significant curtailment of operations; and

(iv)  The directors of the Company will continue to implement
measures aiming at improving the working capital and cash
flows of the Group, including close monitoring of general
administrative expenses and operating costs and soliciting
more potential customers.

Taking into account the expected results of the above arrangements
and measures, the directors of the Company believe that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its operating and financing
needs as and when they fall due for a period up to 30 June 2021.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty exists depending
on the outcomes of the arrangements and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the settlement of the Remaining Consideration
as scheduled by Mr. Xiong, the successful implementation of the
Group’s cost control measurements so as to improve working capital
and cash flow position; and the financial ability of the beneficial
controlling party of the substantial shareholder of the Company to
provide sufficient financial support to the Group to meet its operating
and financing needs in foreseeable future.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that may be necessary should the going concern basis of preparation
be determined to be inappropriate. These would include any
adjustments to write down the Group’s assets to their net realisable
amounts, to provide for any liabilities which may arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

The Company values communication with Shareholders and
investors. The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. Enquiries and suggestions from Shareholders or investors
are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders or investors may
be put to the Board through the following channels to the Company
Secretary:

1. By mail to the Company’s head office at Rooms 3006-10, 30/F.,
China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong;

2. By telephone at (852) 3966 8388;
3. By faxat (852) 2802 0026; or
4. By email at info@crmi.hk

The Company uses a number of formal communication channels to
account to Shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key information
of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its Shareholders and investors;
and (v) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its Shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear and detailed information of the
Group and on a timely and regular basis to Shareholders through
the publication and/or dispatching of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, circular, notices, and other announcements.
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3. {EEZE(852) 2802 0026 : 5k
4.  FIH ZF info@crmi.hk
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

The Company strives to take into consideration its Shareholders’
views and inputs, and address Shareholders’ concerns. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting (for which at
least 20 clear business days’ notice will be given). The Chairman as
well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, the Directors
are available to answer Shareholders’ questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual
general meeting. He should also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. The management will ensure the external auditor to attend
the annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence. All Shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by Shareholders.

According to the Company’s articles of association, general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company. The poll will be conducted by
the share registrar of the Company and the results of the poll are
published on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT (CONT’D)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a
written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong at Rooms 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2)
of the GEM Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must
be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/
documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent
of publication of his/her personal data. The period for lodgement of
the Notice shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting. In order to
ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider
the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit
and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least 15 business
days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such
election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
on 15 March 2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness to comply with the code provision E.1.4 of the CG
code.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website (www.crmi.hk) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there had been no significant changes in
the constitutional documents of the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (“CRMI”) (Stock
Code: 8158) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”) are pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”) and express commitment of the Group to sustainability.
This is the fourth ESG Report of the Group which discloses the
management, policies, performance, targets and feedbacks of the
business in providing services of the Group in People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong in relation to sustainable
development. The Group would like to take this opportunity to
present ESG performance to all investors and stakeholders, and put
forward the commitments and contributions on social responsibility.

Report Compilation Basis

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide enclosed in Appendix 20
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to fulfil all general disclosure
requirements.

For details of the Group’s financial performance and corporate
governance issues, please refer to the previous sections of the annual
report of which this ESG Report forms part.

Source of Data

The data and case studies reported in this ESG Report were
prepared based on internal statistics, internal policy documents and
other internal records. The Group hereby confirms that no false or
misleading statements were made in this ESG Report.

This ESG Report contains forward-looking statements that are
based on several assumptions and expectations at the time of its
publication. Those assumptions and expectations are deemed to
be reliable after internal reviewing process. The statements consist
of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which implies that
that actual results may differ from the expectations, forecasts and
conclusions made herein. No guarantee is expressed as to the
accuracy of the statements and the Group expressly disclaims any
liability for and assume no responsibility to correct or update those
forward-looking statements in the event that any of the statements
does not materialize or turns out to be incorrect.
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OUR VALUE

To become a global
leading force in medical
innovation
RIS LRI
R - 5|1REIR
BB

EMMEE

To become one
of the pioneers in tissue
engineering and
bio-medical industry in China
B 3 BR 4B A5 TAZ AN
AYBEERLE . —

Strive to enhance health
and improve quality

of life

BOsE Mg AR

EEMEREERE

To develop cutting-
edge medical products
and technologies with a

focus on innovation in

regeneration medicine

BIEERREME

Bl - IR BERE
B R AT

A value-creating business — this is what the Group aims to be. The
Group achieves this goal by leveraging the biological science research
competence to create a positive impact to the world. The research
contributes the society by catalyzing bio-pharmaceutical research and
development. The services make biological sciences research more
efficient by shortening the time required for biotechnology research
procedures. Since the Group is brave in taking innovative steps, it
has contributed to breakthroughs in medical and biological science
research over the years — thus living out our value.

To lead a new era into
the construction of
human’s organs and
tissues from tissue
engineering development
S|EAEHTIREE

R A2 B AERREE
BRFTATT

KR —REEEBENRR  BAEEHBIEREY
BiR - REBEY N BRELE LY EM XA EE
N REREERENTE - AEBE T
HBEYBEMENER  RESFELER -
P9 &Y AR 765 7] 8 2% 4 5 AR W B AT B SR A2 S P 7R B B
B RSEVHREMARE - ZER - BEER
BIFTRORE S AKRBERNERZHEREREYH
BMRRE > ROTBEEREE-
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group's Corporate Social Responsibility Model

The ESG Report provides detailed explanation with regard to the
Group’s corporate social responsibility model, shown in below,
on different aspects, including stakeholder communication,
environmental protection, employee welfare, health and safety, fair
operation, social contribution and maintaining sustainability.

Stakeholder Communication

KOEBRE

Environmental Protection
RIERE

Employee Welfare

EEEH

Health and Safety

BERZE

CRMI
hEN S B8

EMMEE &)

FEEHEFEH S EFR
B MR REAREFANBTALE TR

BB IRIERE
HEERK

EHeaERA - @%%ﬂ
BERAN REAZE RFEE
MBAIRERREIME -

Fair Operation

DNPEE

Social Contribution

HEER

Maintain Sustainability

HERTRHERE
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OUR VALUE (CONT’D)

The Group's Corporate Social Responsibility Model
(Cont’d)

The Group continually strengthens communication and relationship
with investors. Designated senior management personnel keep
close communication with shareholders and investors through
email, teleconference, one-to-one meetings, participation in broker
forums and non-trading roadshow or other forms, so as to ensure
shareholders and investors can get latest information of the Group in
a fair and timely manner, helping them make investment decisions.
The Group will give a detailed and timely response to inquiries from
investors. The Group has made a materiality evaluation to identify
material matters in the Group’s businesses which have significant
influence on economy, environment and society, and are most
important for stakeholders. In accordance with evaluation results,
the Group hopes to make the commitments and undertake the
responsibilities to all stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The Group understands that the long-term success is due to the
commitment to the sustainability of businesses and the diligent and
innovative employees who deliver quality services to the clients and
business partners and make worthwhile contributions to several
stakeholders of the Group.

The Group has consolidated and identified different groups of
stakeholders that are related to its main business. These stakeholders
include customers, employees, government, media and shareholders/
investors.

The Group regards stakeholder’s opinions as a key to the long-term
success and sustainable development. The Group will increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation in order to
achieve long-term prosperity.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT AND BFHENZ2EEBEEM (B)
MATERIALITY (CONT’'D)

Stakeholder Communication Channels

BHHE BEEE

Customers 1. Company news updates

F NEVEE

2. Conference
&

3. Customer Service Hotline
EPRIEERLR

4, Email, facsimile and phone contacts

BH - FELRERBESA

Employees 1. E-mail
Es EH
2. Internal website
A EB 48k
3.  Regular meetings
=
Government 1. Cooperate with the government and regulatory authorities on
B compliance inspections

EARFREERENS RS

2. Conference
&2
=

3. Email, facsimile and phone contacts
BE  FAEKEFEBKTN
Media 1. Company website
e N a8 uh

2. Press releases

¥ A
Shareholders/Investors 1. Annual General Meeting
BRRBREE BERBFRE
2. Company news updates
NSNS EE

3. Email, facsimile and phone contacts

BH  FELBEREBESR

4. HKEx Website: Announcements, Notices, Reports, etc.
BEZGF#EM - N BE BEF

5. Press releases

il
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group recognizes the importance of good environmental
stewardship and is committed to protect and conserve the
environment. The Group hopes that the concept of environmental
sustainability lies in all aspects of daily operation.

Specifically, the Group strives to balance quality, price and
environmental impact when consuming resources and materials.
The Group is closely monitoring the energy consumption and water
consumption through the concept that it is part of the communication
priorities to educate staffs on the rationale of environmentally friendly
choices, and for making them available.

As principal operation is based in the PRC, the Group is principally
subject to the PRC environmental laws and regulations such as
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF 2 A R EMEIRE (R
%), Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution of the PRC
(P FEAREFMBE KIS A %), and Law on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC (fF 2 A R £ M E K&/
y5 247578 7%). The senior management team are delegated to perform
the maintenance of the Group’s sustainability. The representatives of
each operational department, will actively manages business in an
environmentally and socially responsible manner. The Group will meet
annually to review the key processes and identify possible aspects
underlying the operation of such department. The senior management
team will also discuss on any significant aspects identified, and
design measures accordingly. These measures will be documented
for reference to ensure effective implementation.

=i

AEBERAZRENREEENEEN YD
RERR - AEEFLZREVFEERNESE
HRATREENSEZH -

HBME  EEREREMHNREE  AEBEH
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

The Group’s ultimate goal is to minimize the adverse impact of the
businesses on the environment. The efforts being made throughout
the Reporting Period can be concluded as follows:

BRiE (&)

ZlS'E EH&EE T?%Hﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂa%ﬁ’]?ﬂ%
RIE o REE R IRE R PTER TR AN

Practice
28

1. Avoiding generating waste that polluted the environment
iR EE VS A IRIBE A R R

2. Compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, rules and requirements of environmental protection

ETHARBRERBNER ZR REREX

3.  Creation of an environment for sustainable development
BIER BB RAIRE

4. Provision of training for employees on the protection of the environment

RBTRHARRERENE

5. Reduction in the consumption of various resources including raw materials and fuel

S BEIREERE - BIERY A RRE

6. Reduction in the generation of waste, recycling and reusing as much as possible of the waste

A BESEL - WE A EHERGETT R MERER

7. Using environmentally friendly materials as well as design, technology and raw materials capable of conserving

energy and reducing waste

A BITEEM B OE R £ RERARRAR

BETR AR D BE Y

8.  Vigorous promotion and implementation of the recyclable economy, minimizing and avoiding negative effects due to

the Group’s development and the environment

ANHEMERBREE  BAOMBELANEBNERGRFERNAATE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has conducted
comprehensive inspection regarding the environmental management
situations of all controlling subsidiaries to facilitate the improvement
and promotion of controlling subsidiaries on environmental
management, and demanded the completion of its construction
and implementation with stipulated deadlines, ensuring effective
sustainable development of the Group. During the Reporting Period,
there was no environmental pollution incident in the Group.

RBERE - AEBHAAZRMNBRRNRE
E.ﬁﬁﬁxﬂaﬁ@?i%iﬁf‘tﬂ’] R TE%ET P Bt 8

RAERBREBAEANNERIES  RATKE

BEERBENER ﬁxﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%$‘$lﬂ’]—ﬁif

B

R -NIEHME  ARBERBEEEAIREZREN -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)
A(l)  Emission

90

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s types of
emissions and respective emissions data are showed as below:

2019
—B-NEF
Emission Data
(approximately)

Types of Emissions

Rz ESR HEREE (K)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) @&/t ¥ 110.9
Sulfur Dioxide (SOx) i &1t ¥y 0.3
Particulate Matter (PM) %% 4 10.0

Direct greenhouse gas emissions (scope one) are resulting from
gasoline used by vehicles. Indirect greenhouse gas emissions
(scope two) are mainly resulting from electricity consumed in
production and R&D units of the Group. Due to the nature of
our Group, the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group were
mainly generated from scope two.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity are showed as
below:

2019
—B-NEF
Emission Data
(approximately)

Scope of Greenhouse Gas

BEREEE BB (1)
Direct Greenhousg Gas Emissions 45.9
BEEREREHR
Indirect Greenhoqse Gas Emissions 1,654.30
B A E R HEK
Greenhouse \Gas Emissions in Total 1,700.20
BERIBEERERE
Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Intensity 8.0

BREREBHFREE

The Group proactively makes its great efforts to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions by improving our production
process.

IRIE ()
Al) LY

HE—T—AF+-A=+—BILFE-
745 1 B0 TR TR B B R T R

FE TS
2018 Increase/
—E-N\E (Decrease)
Emission Data Percentage
(approximately) Unit (approximately)
2, Ci)
B B (1) By Aotk (4)
126.3 Kg T3 (12.2%)
0.3 Kg T3¢ _
12.1 Kg 3% (17.4%)

BERREREINES S EWERMNTH
(BE—) FEEERBHERTIERERN
AEBAERMBBEUNE N ER (B
Z) cERAKENEBME  HRAERE
HMEEREREE_ -

HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—HILFE-
AREEEFRBRENSHEER TR

2018 Increase/
—E—N\F (Decrease)
Emission Data Percentage
(approximately) Unit (approximately)
2m, O A)
BB (1) By B2 (8)
59.0 tCO.e (22.2%)
WE— S b E 2
3,482.50 tCOe (52.5%)
WE—SEALIRE S
3,541.50 tCOe (52.0%)
MR EE
10.6 tCOze/number (24.5%)

of employees
WE—SYLixE S
TEHETAH

AEBBEHER IR BEBRZHMANEES
BRI R RABERRREPMELNAE
RABTE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D) IBIE ()

A(l) Emission (Cont’d) Al) BEHLY) ()

Waste Management
The Group promotes the “3-R” concept which aims at
minimizing, to the extent practicable, the amount of wastes

produced during the course of the Group’s business operations.

The term “3-R” represents:

Concept Practice
B ¥

(@  Reduction

BRYEE

REBEMETIS-RIESD - EENIEAITH
BATROAGEEXRGREBESAE
ERBERYMBE -

[3-R]¥E :

Reducing the volume of daily wastes generated to the extent practicable, by using

R alternative materials, processes and procedures

FERERBERME  REREARIDEATOBER TS ELAEERZEMNEE

(b) Reuse Reusing wastes generated and returning unused materials
BIRBH BERBRELNERY REERNEAOME

(¢) Recycling

Converting waste materials into usable materials or extracting useful substances from

BIRAE them, such as recycling packaging material and paper

HEMER SRR EETRRARYE  fIMBERBEREMH AR

Due to the nature of the Group, various hazardous wastes and
non-hazardous wastes are generated during our production
process. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
quantity of these wastes was as follows:

2019
—E-hE

Emission Data Emission Data

$%IJ§%%%@%{;ET2\% :
2018 Increase/
(Decrease)
Percentage
(approximately) (approximately) Unit (approximately)

i‘“bu/ (R 2)

BEREIE (K9) By A H(#)
1.0 Tons (10%)
15.0 Tons M (26.7%)

B &S (1)
Hazardous & 0.9
Non-hazardous FE1& k2 11.0

Hazardous wastes are strictly segregated from non-hazardous
wastes for proper collection and treatment purpose. Hazardous
wastes are collected with leakage-proof containers (e.g. scrap
metal bucket) to avoid leakage during transfer. A hazardous
wastes warehouse is established for collection and classified
storage of hazardous wastes. Licensed waste collectors have
been engaged for disposal of hazardous wastes.

The Group does not involve in any material discharge of
industrial sewage. Domestic wastewater will be discharged into
the municipal pipe network after being processed.

—2-N\F

ENAEENEBLE  SEEREED
&#JiﬁMT%%EAﬁszﬁEFLEqﬂﬁﬁ?io
BE_T-NFT_A=t—HLFE"

FQJE;E%EE;EF % iR 2 W) B AR 0 R A
EWERRE -EREZDEERDR
Rezs(METEWH WS NE2EBBRE
qﬂﬁjiﬁ/ﬂ/ﬁ ERRERY R EINEELIA
WEREDBHEFERERY HEEED
WEREREERZERRERY -

REENY RERERNTEREKER - &
BRI BEATIRER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)

All)

Alll)

92

Emission (Cont’d)
General compliances

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there was
no material non-compliance with the applicable local rules and
regulations relating to air emissions, greenhouse gas emissions,
water discharges, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes in all material aspects.

Use of Resources

The main resources used by the Group in the production
process are electricity, water and paper. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group strive
to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of resources
consumption in the production process for minimization
of wastage and avoidance of excessive usage of precious
resources.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that there is
no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the energy
consumption by type in total of the Group are showed as
below:

2019
—B-NEF
Emission Data
(approximately)

Direct/Indirect Energy by Type

HE BEERZEE BEREIE (K)
Gasoline J3H 16,934.20
Electricity & 77 2,107,432.4
Water 7K 8,353.60

The Group is conscious of environmental protection. Further
details of which are disclosed in the section “The Environment
and Natural Resources” below.

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group mainly uses paper boxes and plastic bags as
packaging material for our products. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group purchased 69.3 kg of packaging
material for sales of our products (2018: 86.4 kg). If possible,
we would aim to increase the effectiveness of packaging
material through continuous examination of using lighter and
environmental-friendly packaging materials from the market.
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2018 Increase/
—E-NF (Decrease)
Emission Data Percentage
(approximately) Unit (approximately)
Zm, Gfd)
B BE (R9) B B2tk (] ’J)
21,786.3 litre A F+ (22.3%)
4,418,483.6 KWh - FL B (52.3%)
10,724.8 m3 375 K (22.1%)
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ENVIRONMENTAL (CONT’D)
A(lll) The Environment and Natural Resources

Environment protection is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. The Group is committed to sustainable development
and delivering our premium and quality products in a manner
with minimal impact to the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Apart from those details disclosed in the section “Emissions”
and “Use of Resources” above, the Group also continuously
implements “green” concept with the following measures:

° Office Power Saving: Policy to turn off lights when not
in use, air-conditioning temperature control, printer and
computer hibernation management, shut down of lights
and computers during lunch break, etc.

o Paper Saving: Implement paperless office, use email and
online signature system for document review, signing and
communication where possible, reduce the frequency
of printing and/or copying, and reduce the use of office
paper. If necessary, employees are also encouraged
to re-use paper and conserve paper usage by printing
double-sided to the extent practicable.

° Increase equipment and vehicle efficiency: Arrange for the
equipment and vehicles to undergo regular maintenance
in order to improve their performance and dispose high
energy consumption equipment as part of the efforts to
conserve resources at source

° Reduce the Use of Bottled Water: Provide drinking water
supply equipment at all production bases for the use by
factory employees, meetings and visitors. Employees are
encouraged to bring along their own reusable cups to
reduce the use of bottles.
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

B()

Employment

The Group has set up a comprehensive set of human resource
policies stipulating rules on recruitment, compensation,
training, welfare, promotion guidelines and dismissal. In
order to safeguard benefits for the employees, the Group
abides by Labor Law of the PRC (1 #E A & #£ A B 45 &)%),
Labor Contract Law of the PRC (FE AR EME 4 84 [
5%), the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong (& /& 1& & &
f51) and employment laws applicable to relevant jurisdictions
where operations are located. Labor contracts or employment
agreements are entered into between the Group and the
employees. Moreover, the Group regularly monitors information
related to employment to prevent non-compliance with labor
laws and regulations.

In order to increase efficiency in hiring and to ensure consistency
and compliance in the recruitment and selection process, as
well as to promote fair opportunities to each candidate, the
Group has detailed recruitment policies in place. An objective
and carefully documented recruitment process will ensure that
any discrimination risks are minimized and will give us the best
possible chance of identifying the right candidate. Regardless
of nationality, gender, age, race, religious belief or disability, etc,
candidates with relevant professional qualifications and working
experience receive equal consideration for employment.

The Group provides our employees “5 Insurances and 1
Pension”, business trip allowance, birthday allowance, wedding
allowance, body check, and holiday allowance. Employees are
entitled to national holidays, company holidays, annual leave,
funeral leave, marital leave, maternity leave and sick leave as
well. In addition, The Group also adopted measures, such as
distributing gifts and benefits, as well as holiday lengthening, to
further enhance the benefits system and its staff satisfaction.
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EBRERSIER
B() 1EE

AEBCBER - FB - 8B B/H - B
ol MERRI-E2ENANERRE
RE - RRERERERN AEBEETHE
ARKMBEEEE hEARKMELH
BRE - BB REGD REEMREMRDE
KB EARERER BB R KERI
EIOBAAEEEREAY - MO AKE
EHERREEABEAMAAERTTE S

ERREREER -

RTRSHEBEERENRE  YHRERBER
BEBETN—FMUELARL URARE
fREAREATFORE  AEECHEY
FANBERER - THRA/NLRENHEE
RABEREETAERRAR  XSHMAD
BAEEFREARKRERS - THEE-
Rl Fik - Bk RBEMREES A
BHBEEXRER R TIEEROBEER
BeRTHZTHAFFHET-

rEBERESRHE AR —2]  ZROFR -
ERERE BIEER B RRAER-
BENAZXEZOEELRA - RARY
FRB/ERER ERAEMR - U &K
S B TR R BUR 35 48 5 B @ F A B &= R HA
S E—PRITENFHERETREE -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2019

—E=—

SOCIAL (CONT’D)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (CONT’D)
B(l) Employment (Cont’d)

The Group actively recruits talents in a fair and equitable
manner through social media such as online platforms and
newspaper advertisements. Across the Group’s diversified
business portfolio, as of 31 December 2019, the Group has a
workforce of 213 in a number of locations in the PRC and Hong
Kong (2018: 334). The composition of staffs is as follows:

2019
—ZE-NF

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
g E by

MEIT/AZ

49% 51%

. Male S 1%

52%

NFRE - 2 NEAWE

HE (@)
EBEREIER (B)
B() 1E1E (&)

AEBEGHBASE L FERREEESH

CEEAFRAEWIBEAL - Eﬁ%@;
nk%%W@A¢ AEBHEZ-Z— AN
F+-_A=Z+—HEEREEHEBEF213
HET(ZF—N\F :334%) - B THERN
T

2018
—E-)N\F

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
B RIE D

HETHEZ

48%

. Female Z 1%

Categorized by employee’s gender, male employees accounted for approximately 51% (2018: 48%) and female

employees accounted for the remaining 49% (2018: 52%)
as of 31 December 2019. The Group believes in equality of
opportunity and treatment between male and female employees
because it is just and fair and promotes good business and
better performance. The Group recognizes that equality at work
between male and female employees means (a) discrimination
is not existed in the recruitment process to get the best
candidates for the appropriate vacancies; and (b) equality of
opportunity in providing assignments based on candidate’s
merit and choice.

EREREMANSE B=2-_Z—NLF+=A
=+—HE I$E/J£ﬁ5W6L_$ NE
48%)  MZ R B M T 49% (ZZ— N\
F:52%) - AEERABBLEE ZERH
ERFBRTE BAFEALIRERTFE
BEEREERR - AEBERAUTERESR
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ﬁ VASEE 2 B = BRERER SR =R E A 5 & (b)
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BARBIEOKS -
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) HEg (&)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (CONT'D) {EfER% T HEIR (&)
B(l) Employment (Cont’d) B() 1E1E (&)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —Z2-N\F
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
REBESNETAR RERBBSNSTHEY
12% 9%

S R0 oza0s  @izsor  @hsis
As for employee distribution by age, aged below 30 accounted LREEGHRSE BE_Z jLE +=A
for approximately 28% (2018: 29%); aged 30 to 40 accounted =+ —H30BMN MEZ28% (=T — \F :
for approximately 48% (2018: 47%); aged 41 to 50 accounted 29%) i 30Z 405G 4)48% (=& —)\E :
for approximately 12% (2018: 15%); and aged above 51 47%) M EB0BRIG 4 12% (ZZ — )\ F
accounted for approximately 12% (2018: 9%) as of 31 15%) + 251 BRIA EME#12% (=& — )\ 4F ¢
December 2019. 9%) °
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (CONT'D) 1{Efg&% T E &K (&)
B(l) Employment (Cont’d) B() 1E1E (&)
2019 2018
—hE —E-NF
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION TOTAL WORKFORCE BY EDUCATION
BRBBEKEEDNETRE BHEKEEDNE TR
6% °* gy 12% 3% &%

39% 44% 47%

%o;to(r orffgﬁj)sg)phy (“Ph.D”) . ggajs:ter . Bgajc:helor . g%?ma . %ther

Professionals in different fields are the Group’s precious EREFHNEEASTZAEENEEELE -
assets. Categorized by education level, employees with Ph.D BHAEKEDE BE2E-FT—NLF+=A
background accounted for approximately 2% (2018: 3%) of —t+—HEEBELEENREELEESE B
the total number of employees; employees with Master degree RH2% (ZFE—NF :3%) : EEBELE
accounted for approximately 9% (2018: 6%); employees with MHEEBELOI% (ZE—)\F :6%) : #
Bachelor degree accounted for approximately 44% (2018: EEBLTBEMNEBEN4M4% (ZE—N\F

47%); employees with diploma accounted for approximately 47% ) BB EE R IEBE(H#139% (=
39% (2018: 32%); and others accounted for the remaining 6% T—N\F:32%)  MEMEBMHRT6% (=
(2018: 12%) as of 31 December 2019. T—\F :12%) °
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SOCIAL (CONT’D)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (CONT’D)
B(ll) Health and Safety

Safe, effective and cozy workplace is essential to support
the precious asset, employees. To create a safe working
environment, the Group has established safety policies on the
prevention and remediation of safety accidents, and detection
on potential safety hazards in workplace, including regular
safety inspections and launch of safety promotion and safety
training.

To mitigate the health and safety risk during production and
R&D processes, protective equipment would be provided to
operating employees, such as protective suit, glove, mask etc.

Our staffs are briefed and trained with safety and environmental
knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone understands the
risk of the task they are involved, has safety and environmental
consciousness and is familiar with safety and environmental
precaution measures.

Hazardous materials and wastes are handled separately with
great care. Emergency and evacuation procedures for fire were
established for timely and orderly response to any major safety
accidents.

The Group monitors the workplace safety continuously, and
performs a regular examination of workplace safety hazards.
To ensure the effectiveness of fire emergency control, the
Group appointed a third-party institute to test its fire alarms and
inspect its fire safety equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, there was no
occurrence of any fatal accident (2018: nil).
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES EBERSIER (&)
(CONT’D)

B(ll) Development and Training B(Il) /& R 3= 5

The Group recognizes the importance of empowerment through
development and training in the Group. Equipping employees
with the appropriate knowledge not simply benefits the long-
term development, but the society as a whole.

The Group has devised training schedule to provide different
types of trainings to employees every year. The categories
include personnel, finance, medical instruments, environmental
management and fire safety. Through education and training,
the Group can enable its employees to enhance their personal
qualities, strengthen their working skills and reinforce the team
performance. Moreover, employees can grow with the Group
by realizing their own values on the basis of their personal
interest and expertise.

Besides, all employees are subject to regular performance
and career development appraisal in order to ensure the
efficiency and quality of our employees and to foster the stable
development of the Group.

Promotions are made in accordance with the needs from
the Group’s business development and the employees’
competence. Vacancies of the Group’s internal management
positions will be filled up internally by promoting the most
qualified employees within the Group. This offers the employees
with the opportunities for promotion and enhances the
efficiency of the Group.

B(lV) Labour Standards

As the Group strictly adhered to the Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors (/7 2 A R H F1 B K pk &F AR &%), the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and other laws and
regulations in all aspects, the Group does not permit forced
labour or child labour under any circumstances. All new
employees’ identification card should be checked before they
entry the Group to ensure their age meets requirements of laws
and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify
any material non-compliance or breach of relevant laws and
regulations in child labour and forced labour. (2018: Nil)
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SOCIAL (CONT'D)
OPERATING PRACTICES

B(v)

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are the Group’s long-term business partners. Stability,
safety and effectivity of product quality is directly influenced
by the selection of suppliers. To effectively manage the supply
chain, the Group has developed a comprehensive system for
assessing new and existing suppliers. The Group has further
regulated the operational procedures of evaluation and approval
for main suppliers, and clarified the suppliers’ qualification,
selection principle, quality evaluation methods, evaluation
standard, and approval procedure for main supplier. The Group
requires suppliers to comply with local laws and regulations
in all aspects. Most of the supplies of the Group are procured
from the PRC. The PRC government has strict laws and
regulations governing social and environmental risks.

Agency Contracts Management

The majority of the Group’s business and product distribution
are relied on agents to introduce and promote the products to
hospitals for sale. Therefore, the management of the agents is
very crucial to the Group. To avoid inefficiencies in agents and
to strengthen the sales performance, the Group has tailor-made
contracts for each agent in accordance with its selling ability
and respective target customers in the PRC. The contracts
clarify the province or area in which the agents are responsible
for, as well as the hospitals they cooperate with. The contracts
also list out the compensation they get, and the sales amount
that is targeted to be achieved during the contract period. The
Group will evaluate agents from time to time following their
performance against the contract terms. The Group believes
that the management of agency contracts can help to control
the quality of agents and to implement the business strategy
efficiently.
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SOCIAL (CONT’D) e (&)
OPERATING PRACTICES (CONT'D) EAE I ()
B(V) Product Responsibility BV) EmEF

The Group strives for products and services excellence
across all the business activities. To protect the samples
from contamination in the laboratory, the Group has devised
procedures for operations in the laboratory. The Group also
requires the laboratory technicians to wear protection suits
and to regularly clean and disinfect the laboratory equipment,
in order to maintain workplace hygiene and prevent the cross-
contamination of the products.

Apart from the hygiene control in laboratory, the Group also
understands the importance of an accurate testing result. Thus,
the Group has developed policies in relation to the management
and maintenance of laboratory equipment, especially the
calibration of laboratory equipment. Our equipment is calibrated
externally by professionals and internally when necessary to
ensure its accuracy. Qualified personnel is assigned to each
equipment for the daily management and maintenance, to
make sure equipment that we are using is in good condition.
Damaged equipment will not be used until they are fixed by the
suppliers.

Also, listening to customers about their experiences with
products and services is the key to the Group’s success. The
Group constantly interacts with customers by reviewing their
enquiries and feedback so that performance can be tracked
regularly. Also, the Group is dedicated to provide after-sale
maintenance and operational technical supporting services
to customers. Training is provided to employees in offering
comprehensive services to customers.

Health and safety

Being a responsible corporation, being accredited with the ISO
13485:2016 Quality Management Certificate, we strictly monitor
the quality of our products, and the safety issues in using our
products.

We are committed to complying with local rules and regulations
on product safety, and protecting consumers’ health on using
our products. In accordance with the requirement of the ISO
13485:2016, the Group implements stringent internal rules and
procedures for quality check during its production process. Any
non-conformity products must be handled properly, including
proper labelling and recording.
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SOCIAL (CONT’D)
OPERATING PRACTICES (CONT’D)

B(V))

Product Responsibility (Cont’d)

Advertising

The Group understands our customers’ rights and is committed
to providing accurate product and service information for
customers in connection with their purchase or consumption
decision. The Group requires careful review of advertising
materials to protect customers’ interest.

Labelling

The Group is committed to providing sufficient and accurate
information and product label to customers and considers that
it is an extended responsibility of product safety management.
The Group provides clear and simple instructions, including
the danger, precaution measures and emergency treatment of
products and contact information.

Privacy matters

The Group has stringent measures in place to protect
operational and customer data privacy. Non-disclosure
agreements are signed by all suppliers. A systematic approach
is implemented internally to ensure that only designated
employees have access to sensitive and confidential
information.

In view of the customer confidential information, the Group
implemented a strict confidentiality system. According to the
system, the Group should enter into a confidentiality agreement
with the client who provides the confidential information.
Meanwhile, for ensuring no betraying confidential matters, risk
control department of the Group is responsible for investigating
the confidential information to delimit secrecy scope and
ascertain information-security. The Group also provides
employees with education regarding confidentiality, including
specifies the confidentiality obligation of employees in employee
manual.
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SOCIAL (CONT’D)
OPERATING PRACTICES (CONT’D)
BW\VI) Product Responsibility (Cont’d)

Methods of redress

Although the Group ensure the quality of our products and
services, at the same time, it requires that products with quality
issues should be returned or compensated in accordance with
terms of sales contracts. Return, recall, or compensation of
products is required to be offered to all customers who are
affected with consistent treatment and procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, to the best
knowledge of our Directors’ knowledge, we did not identify
any material issues on product health and safety, advertising,
labelling, privacy matters and methods of redress. (2018: Nil)

BWVIl) Anti-Corruption

To ensure honest, loyal behaviour and ethical conduct among
employees, the Group has adopted code of ethics and anti-
corruption regulations, so as to enable employees’ conducts
and behaviours to be monitored throughout daily operations.
The Group performs annual self-evaluation to look at the
implementation of code of ethics and relevant regulations,
the objective of which is to ensure the thoroughness and
consistency in actual operations and management practices,
with a view to balancing and safeguarding interests of the
stakeholders and establishing long-term partnerships. The
Group employs independent auditors to carry out external
audits on the Group, aiming at preventing corruptive behaviours
within the Group through internal supervision and external
audits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with any relevant standards, rules,
codes and regulations. There were no complaints of corruption
against the Group or any of the Group’s employees during the
Reporting Period. (2018: Nil)
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SOCIAL (CONT’D)
COMMUNITY

BVl Community Investment

Community

With the market’s focus on corporate behaviour, the
short-sighted behaviour of maximizing financial returns to
shareholders is no longer the management goal of business.
The Group stays proactive in fulfilling the responsibilities as a
corporate citizen of the community.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed
to extending the efforts from own operation to the wider
society. The Group believes that staff members are the core
value makers in the society. The Group will continue to pool
the strengths and commit itself in increasing community
participation, balance of interests of stakeholders and strives
to build a corporate-community relationship that promotes
harmony, security and prosperity.

Although the Group has not established and documented a
specific community policy, social care is deep-seated in the
Group’s corporate culture. Employees are encouraged to
participate in various charitable events and community service.
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The Directors present to the Shareholders the Company’s annual
report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are engaged in the R&D of bio- medical
and healthcare products, and medical techniques; the provision
of the production and sales of tissue engineering products and its
related by-products; as well as sales and distribution of medical
products and equipment. In accordance with Schedule 5 of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, further discussion and analysis of these
activities including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing by the group and an indication of likely future developments in
the group’s business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 8 to 48 and notes 43 and 45 to the consolidated
financial statements of this report, which form part of this directors’
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the Reporting Period as
well as discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance under
review and the material factors underlyings its financial performance
and financial position are provided in sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 6 to 7 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 48 of the annual report and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 123.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 243.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2018:
HK$170,817,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 127 and note 35 to the financial
statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Chuang (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman with effect from

18 October 2019 and re-appointed on 22 January 2020)
Mr. Wang Xuejun (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated as a non-executive Director

with effect from 18 October 2019

and resigned on 30 January 2020)
Mr. Qiu Bin (appointed with effect from 20 May 2020)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Weiliang (appointed with effect from 15 November 2019 and
re-appointed on 22 January 2020)

Dr. Ray Yip (re-designated as a non-executive Director
with effect from 18 October 2019 and
resigned on 30 January 2020)

Mr. Zhang Bin (resigned with effect from 15 November 2019)

Mr. Tsang Ho Yin (appointed with effect from 30 January 2020 and
re-appointed on 15 April 2020)

Indepenaent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Bing Woon (resigned with effect from 15 August 2019)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (resigned with effect from 21 August 2019)

Dr. Fang Jun

Ms. Wang Danjuan (appointed with effect from 10 October 2019,
re-appointed on 22 January 2020 and resigned on
30 January 2020)

Ms. Yang Ying (appointed with effect from 14 October 2019 and

re-appointed on 22 January 2020)

Ms. Huo Chunyu (appointed with effect from 30 January 2020 and
re-appointed on 15 April 2020)

G
F:;—ﬂ¢+:ﬂz+—ﬁ’$ﬂﬂﬂh
DPERFBRRZBEEHNEEBT(ZE—\F

170817000%%5 ) o
AREBEARBDRBREPANZEEBESFIS  H
RN E127TAZ A RS EER LY BIRERM
FT350

M BENKRE

ARERBERNENDE - BERREZ 2
BRI REM T 157 -

E
RENRBERRSE QB2 EEMT -
HITEE

£ Pt (£F)

(BEZZ-NFTATN\REEZE
REFIR-T-_FTF-A-1_H

EEHZA)

TEFELEE (7TH#%)

EEEL (RZZ2-NET+A+N\H
BERERTES IR-_FT=ZF
—A=1+HEE)

B 5 A (BEZZ-SFRA-_THRBEZM)

FHITEE

RERLE (BZ2-NE+—-AThAREZ{T
VYRZE-TF-A-+-HESEH
Z1E)

EERT (BEZZ-NETATN\BHREEAE
FRTES RN _Z-TF
—A=Z+HET)

R (BZ2-NE+—-AThBREET)

LEBESE (BEZZ-ZF-A=THREZIR
RZZ-TFMATABEEHNZME)

BUHHTEE

BRI E (BZ2-NENATRAREE)

ERETE (BZE-NENAZ+—BRET)

HEEL

FABERL (E T ﬂ¢+ﬂ+5iﬁif
;E&m—7—7¢ A= +H%T)

BELtT (B2 - NETATHERERAE
VYRZE-TF-A-+-HESEH
Z1E)

EEERL (5_7_7¢ AZTHREZIR

R-Z-TFEMATHARERZE)

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2019



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEGHE

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Xuejun, Dr. Fang Jun and Ms. Yang Ying
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Qiu Bin shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are set out on pages 49 to 51 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
the date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company and GEM Listing Rules.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period, each Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto, save for matters in respect
of his/her fraud or dishonesty.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those set out in note 39 to the financial statements and
under heading “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in this report, none
of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 14
September 2011 is for the primary purpose of providing incentives to

directors and eligible employees of the Group.

The movement of share options under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 14 September 2011 during the year
ended 31 December 2019 was as below:
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2019

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) IB IR #E (4E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2019

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
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exercise asat asat
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and 31 December 31 December
price (Note) - exercise period of the Exercisable portion of the 2018 Granted Exercised  Reclassified Lapsed 2019
Eiigible persons  Date of grant HKS) (HK)  Share Options Share Options granted (Notg) (Note) (Note) (Notg) (Notg) (Note)
a3z W=8-NF RZZ-1%
fFE BREL tZR=t+-8 tZA=1-H
fFE (M) BEBERR HAGE BEH B CENSE BEN  HAME
S2EEAT  RAAH () () WGEHE BRLERETOEEH (Hzh) () (Ht3E) ik (HzH) (st
Drectors 992016 0291 5820 9September 201710 Upto 20% (First Optons) 139000 NL NL NL 83000 4600
5% 255 8 Seplember 2018 S5 (E-1EE) 8 & £
NANA (oot days st
{te *Firt Peviod)

TR-LEARNRE
“B-\EARNR
(BEERR)
(@)

9 September 201810 Upto20% (*Second Options’) fogether wih any
8 September 2019 First Options which have not been exerosed
(ooth days incusive) duing the First Period)

{the “Second Period) ?y20%\[ ZhERE) (ERRE-E
“Z-)ENANBE BRRRAR ENE-HERE)
ZZ-NENANE

(BfEEEMA)

(F-E=E)

9 September 201910 Upto 20% (Third Options’)fogether withany
8 September 2020 Firstand Second Options which have notbeen
(ooth days incusive) exercised ouring te First Perod and Second
{the “Third Periof) Perod)

ZR-NEARNRE B50%( = 0ERE) (BARE -
ZEZEEAANA BRRE-EEREAGR ERE -0
(BEERR) RE-hEhE
(F=E=E)

9 September 202010 Upto 20% ('Fouth Options’)fogether wih any
8 September 2021 First, Secondl and Third Options which have not
(ooth days incusive) been exercised duing te First Period, Second
{the ‘Fourt Period’) Perod and Third Perod)

ROREARARE B50%(F00ERE) (BARE-
ZE-ERANA 45 F-RERREZEHERANR

(BfEEEMA) JEAE-1 ERRE=HERE)
(ZmEER)

9 September 20210 Upto 20% (‘Fith Options’)fogether with any
8 September 2025 First, Second, Thid and Fouth Options which
(ooth days incusive) have not been exercised during the Frst Period,
{the *Fith Period) Second Perod, Third Perod and Fourth Penod)

SECCEARARE  SSOEDNERE)(ERNE-E
“EZREAANR o0 S 5= m%ﬁ&%wm

(BEERR) HERATELENE 1 220 2
ESacE) =HEEDHERE)

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EETHE
SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) IBRFE (48)
Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2019
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Adjusted
exercise
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and
price (Note)  exercise period of the
Eligible persons ~ Date of grant HKS) (HK§)  Share Options
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2019

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
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Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2019
(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)
Adjusted
exercise
Exercise price  Vesting schedule and
price (Note) - exercise period of the
Eligible persons  Date of grant HKS) (HK)  Share Options
g
fFE BREL
fFE (M) BEBERR
S2EEAT  RAAH () () WGEHE

BIRE (E)

Movement of Share Options during the year ended 31 December 2019

(adjusted number of option after share consolidation)

BECT-NEToAST-ALEEZBREZD(WROAGANTIERRRYE)

Outstanding
asat
31 December
Exercisable portion of the 2018 Granted Exercised  Reclassified
Share Options granted (Notg) (Note) (Note) (Notg)
HoB-NE
tZA=1-A
HAL BEH B CENSE
BRLERETOEEH (Hzh) () (Ht3E) (st

Lapsed
(Notg)

B&H
(Fit)

Outstanding
asat

31 December
2019

(Note)
H=g-n%
tZB=1-A
HAGE
(st)

For Gentses who are new enployess who heve foed the Compary frkess than 12
months or are et to commence work with the Compary on the rebvant cétp of

gant s the case gy gt

HREBRL BB RN (BIAEAAYR T BRAA R AT
HBZHER)RZ (EEIRE) -

9March 201810
8Merch 2019
(ooth days incusie)
{the I Period)
“Z-)[EZANBE
ZE-hEZANA
(BfEEEMA) (571

IMarch 2019t
8March 2020
(ooth days inclusive)
fihe ‘I Pesoc!)
ZE-NEZfNAE
ZECEESA/A

(RAEEERE) ([5R1)

IMarch 202010
8March 2021
(ooth days cusie)
{re 1 P’

CECTECFfEE
Z32-E-F/H
(pfEEERA)
(Tean))

9IMach 2021 o
8March 2022
(ooth cays incusive)
{ihe ‘I Period)
Z5C-E-fnAE
ZZ-2EZR)A
(BiEEERA)
([&@N)

9Mach 202210
8 September 2025
(ooth days incusive)

Z5CRENAA
(BfEEERA)

Upto20% (‘Options )
5520 [HE)

Upto 20% (‘Options I)together with any Options
I which have not been exerdsed ouring the |
Perod)

5520 ([ BREI) BRRERIATR
L fEERE)

Upto20% (‘Optons I fogether with any
Optons and llwhich have not been exercised
duing thel and Il Perioas)

SHA% (BN (ZRRERI R EE
fift AERE R

Upto 20% (Options V) fogether with any
Qptons |, Il and I which have not besn
exercised dung tel, land Il Perod)

S5A%([EREN)) (EEREE 1R
HATTREZ EAERE 1R

Upto 20% together with any Options |, and
which havenot been exercised duing te | I, 1
and IV Perods)
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SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

Note: By virtue of a share consolidation of the Company whereby every 20 of
then existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company was consolidated into 1 consolidated share of
HKS$0.20 each. The share consolidation took effect on 16 May 2019.

The number of shares and exercise price under the share option
scheme were adjusted accordingly.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed to have interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws

BIRE (E)

M AR AREETRD AN AR RRAFEESE
20 BER0.01BITHE BT R REITRG A G
BIRERO20BITHE RGN - RIDEHRZ
T—NERA+BER -

Bﬁﬂx%ﬁ'% TR BB RATEE R EHRE

st

%%%@g és IR K AE B

%%&%%ﬁmq%&&%g

S |

»%%ﬁ\@ﬁ”ﬁﬁ‘r%m}ﬂﬂ?ﬁ
00
> D
R 2
)
>
|
mE}

of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required to be notified to 57 & AR =) R B § ﬁfr Z % it /k
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and & (£21E f)ﬁ—rﬁhz BHENMHAEGRY B BIEHE
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which HREEE 2B FORR) ¢ () RIEE T K
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the BB & {515l 58 352 (& 7B ;0 A X G ATl B 50 2 kg 2%
SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, A Sk (i) 1B B GEM £ T 45 Rl 8 5. 46i5 67
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were, EBEHEEETESLSI IR EBNE AN
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules related to B AT Z HEZF AR
securities transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:
Long Positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RELGRERIEEEIR G 2w
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage of
Name of Directors/ shares and the issued
chief executives Capacity underlying shares share capital
RERG R HE BT
HERGZ RAB A
BEE BeTBABHS &5 Rt ERale
Wang Chuang Beneficial Owner 25,140,000 2.86%
THE EnBAA
Wu Weiliang Beneficial Owner 22,620,000 2.57%
REER EnfBA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the R EXFEEEIIN R_ZE—AFE+-A= ‘f’—

Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

A BEEERARD TmeﬂEﬁU\E\E’\\$
BB EIE (T RESFMRE ﬂ%W%XV*B)Z
&1 - BERDRESPHEE R EIERES ()R
TJ%?M%&HETMW% 45%7&8“* AHE AR
NEIRBR Az ERSAR (BREEERIEES
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FEHE] ﬁi& L A+ R BR 1D K AE S
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND I% 10 2 fE
UNDERLYING SHARES
Long positions HE
Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company REXARGREER G 2D
Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage
shares and of the issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity underlyin%shares share capital
A R 1EE e Hﬁ ZF
BEREEEHB g1 B0 2 17 = 45t BXED
China Orient Asset Management Held by controlled Corporation 157,794,659 17.95%
Co., Ltd (Note 1) AXEEXERA
RER S EEEERHERD
(M7E1)
China Orient Alternative Investment Held by controlled Corporation 157,744,659 17.94%
Fund (Note 1) (Ff7E1) BEXEEERFE
All Favour Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 262,907,765 29.90%
AR A, (es EA A A
Dai Yumin (Note 2) Held by Corporahon 262,907,765 29.90%
HEH(E2) RXEEEEE
Beneficial owner 875,000 0.01%
Em ik
Mr. Xu Yi Held by controlled Corporation 262,907,765 29.90%
BEEE Eﬁﬁi‘* EERB
Notes: BEE

1.

Based on the disclosure of interests form both filed on 25 January
2018 by China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd (“COAMC”) and
China Orient Alternative Investment Fund (“COAIF”), Optimus Prime
Management Ltd. (“Optimus”) has a security interest in 262,907,765
Shares and China Orient Asset Management (International) Holding
Limited (“COAMI”) has an interest in 19,200,000 Shares. Optimus is
wholly owned by COAIF. COAIF is owned to 45% by COAMI. COAMI is
owned as to (i) 50% by Wise Leader Assets Ltd. (“Wise Leader”) which
is wholly owned by Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited (“Dong
Yin”); and (i) 50% by Dong Yin which is wholly owned by COAMC.

By virtue of the SFO, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and COAMC are deemed
to be interested in 19,200,000 Shares held by COAMI, and COAIF,
COAMI, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and COAMC are deemed to be
interested in 262,907,765 Shares held by Optimus as security interest.
As a result, Wise Leader, Dong Yin and COAMC are deemed to be
interested in an aggregate of 262,907,765 Shares. Based on the
disclosure of interests form both filed on 7 January 2020 by COAMC
and COAIF, Optimus has decreased its security interest to 157,744,659
Shares and COAMI has remained its interest of 19,200,000 Shares.
Based on the disclosure of interests form filed on 24 January 2020 by
COAMC, COAMC has an interest of 157,794,659 Shares and COAMI
ceased to have an interest in 19,200,000 Shares.

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT

BREFRRSEEEEROGERAR ([PRRS
EEEIE]) &China Orient Alternative Investment
Fund (TCOAF) M =T~ N\F—A_-+HAE
REERF TR Optlmus Prime Management
Ltd (FOptlmusJ) 262,907,765 f% B (0 A 15 A (R
ERZATHERESAETE (EB)IERERA
T (T ERTEEEERHE]) 719,200,000 i
RO EEEL - Optimus £ COAFZE#EH -
COAIFRI B3R 75 & 7= & 12 B R 1 B 45% ©
FRIRAFEEEEBIES B A () HBRRER (IF
B AR AR ([HRIE]) =& A HWise Leader
Assets Ltd. ([Wise Leader ) # A 50% : K (i) B3R
(HPERFEEEE2EWE) BE50% °

RIEFESFREE 55 Wise Leader ~ H R K /P
B AECB R AR NEE S EESE
B T4 A #919,200,000 & B 0 R #E B A 25 0 1
COAIF - mBIEE F EEE BB « Wise Leader *
%%E&EPlﬁﬁéﬁ(ﬂ%%&ﬁ%ﬁommusm’ﬁ
B HE2E MY 262,907,765 IR % {0 A i
JH: Wise Leader * ifﬁ&qﬂl??ﬁﬁ?aﬁ?&ﬁ
BRA 262,907,765 X 15 #E B = o IRIK
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONT’D)

Long positions (Cont’d)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’'d)

2.

All Favour Holdings Limited (“All Favour”) is beneficially owned as to (i)
40% by Nat-Ace Wood Industry Ltd. (“Nat-Ace Wood Industry”) and
20% by Honour Top Holdings Limited, of which Nat-Ace Wood Industry
is ultimately and wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Yi (“Mr. Xu”) and Honour
Top Holdings Limited is ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Dai Yumin
(“Mr. Dai”), and (i) 40% by Mr. Dai. Moreover, All Favour has been the
beneficial owner of 262,907,765 Shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai,
Mr. Xu and Nat-Ace Wood Industry are deemed to be interested in
262,907,765 Shares in which All Favour is interested in.

On 16 September 2015, Mr. Dai was granted 17,500,000 share
options by the Company under the share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 14 September 2011 entitling him to subscribe
for 17,500,000 Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per Share,
subject to the terms and conditions of the share option scheme of the
Company. The number of Shares to be issued upon full exercise of
the said share options and the exercise price per Share were adjusted
to 875,000 Shares and HK$9.00 per Share with effect from 16 May
2019 as a result of the share consolidation of the Company, details of
which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15
May 2019. Assuming the share options granted to Mr. Dai has been
exercised in full, Mr. Dai shall hold an aggregate of 875,000 Shares
as beneficial owner. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Dai, together with his
deemed interests in All Favour, was deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 263,782,765 shares of the Company. All Favour has
pledged its interests in 157,744,659 Shares in favour of Optimus.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors are
not aware that there is any other party (other than the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (i) which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (i) which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

£
A%

%

Eﬁﬁgﬁﬁki%&ﬁ&ﬁ@
2 (1)
B (&)

RERBROGRIEER G2 Ea ()
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2.
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AR ([ ARZE]) B 25 % B 40% K Honour Top
Holdings Limited B ##E 5 20% + H A F & AR H
BREE(HREE]D) REE2EHE - MHonour
Top Holdings Limited B3 8 2 85 & ([H L4 1) &
REBER RFIAETIHEEA0% © B -
2 #85262,907, 765 i1 2 B A A o IRIE
BEREEED  FAE B RIBERER
RAR2EE A /262,907,765 I i& {7
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BER  BRAFBEEERARRIBRAZZT—A
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BERBTE BELEBERAEZMEARES
875,000 M fn - IRIFFH REE GG - #ER
BHRAREZBHAB 2w BLERE BN
4 263,782,765 AR AR HEE R - 2
1 2 G B 157,744,659 A% B (0 R AE 2R KR T
Optimus °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES” in this report, at no time during the
Reporting Period were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or chief executive of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights or
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company had not entered into any connected transaction during
the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and chief executives and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to
the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 14% of the Group’s total turnover for the year. In
particular, sales to the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 4% of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 33% of the Group’s total purchases for the year. In
particular, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 12% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates (as
defined under GEM Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests in the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 52 to 82. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to make
short term gains at the expense of long term objectives.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors acknowledge the importance of stakeholders’
engagement, and would make effort to share the Group’s results
with shareholders by dividend payment. The Directors will determine
the portion and actual amount of distribution out of profits based
on various factors, including but not limited to the Group’s financial
condition, funding for R&D, cash availability and future plans.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has three members, comprising of our
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Yang Ying (the
chairman of Audit Committee), Ms. Huo Chunyu and Dr. Fang
Jun. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Chuang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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|IBDO

EEE © +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FETHER11158
TKEHID2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA REGENERATIVE MEDICINE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 1283 to 243, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion
the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Scope Limitation Relating to the Going Concern Basis of
Preparing the Consolidated Financial Staternents

As set out in note 3(b) in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group had incurred a loss of approximately
HK$447,743,000 and operating cash outflows of approximately
HK$23,332,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019. These
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONT’D)

As detailed in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
in view of the above circumstances, the directors have prepared
a cash flow forecast of the Group which takes into account of the
major assumptions including (i) Mr. Xiong, buyer of the Group’s
financial assets, would be able to settle the remaining consideration
for the acquisition of financial assets from the Group (the “Remaining
Consideration”) amounted to HK$85.4 million in full by instalments
due on 30 September 2020 and 30 December 2020 as scheduled;
and (i) the beneficial controlling party of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, who undertakes to provide sufficient financial resources
to the Group, has the financial ability to provide continuing and
sufficient financial support to the Group to meet its operating needs
and financial obligations. Based on the cash flow forecast, the
directors consider the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its operating and financing needs as and when they fall due for
a period up to 30 June 2021. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

The appropriateness of the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis largely depends on whether
the above-mentioned major assumptions are reasonable and
supportable.

However, the directors of the Company have not provided us with
sufficient documentary evidence to support Mr. Xiong has sufficient
financial capacity to fully settle the Remaining Consideration as
scheduled and the beneficial controlling party of the Company’s
substantial shareholder is capable to provide the financial support
to the Group. Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to conclude on the appropriateness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments
that may be necessary should the going concern basis of preparation
be determined to be inappropriate. These would include any
adjustments to write down the Group’s assets to their net realisable
amounts, to provide for any liabilities which may arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN A2 AR S

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms
of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P05325

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= O NP
reEm M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

Hﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ&)@%

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E2-hEF —N\&E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T
Revenue Wz 6 47,971 72,952
Cost of sales S5 55 B AN (19,052) (45,946)
Gross profit EH 28,919 27,006
Other income, gain and loss HEalA -~ Wz K E1E 6 18,111 23,857
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAX (56,264) (134,695)
Administrative and other expenses TR E AT (201,055) (324,017)
Fair value loss on contingent consideration &I sk AKE 2 A FEEE
receivables 19 (4,587) (26,271)
Recognition of expected credit loss on BREZEWRIBEREE
trade receivables &8 23 (1,149) (139,006)
(Recognition)/Reversal of expected credit  (FE=R) /B [0] E {h & Uy 5018
loss on other receivables AHMEEER 23 (19,636) 2,458
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at & A FER Bz HIEE 2 & &t
fair value through profit or loss BEZAFERSE(EB) 1,224 (113,803)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 18 - (202,292)
Impairment of property, plant and Wz - BRERZERE
equipment 15 (94,118) (168,486)
Impairment of other intangible assets H b & ERE 20 (70,697) (275,896)
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 17 (52,049) =
Finance costs MBER 8 (5,343) (21,654)
Loss before income tax BRETE R AT AR 9 (456,644) (1,352,799)
Income tax credit FriSfiik e 12 8,901 68,884
Loss for the year rEEEE (447,743) (1,283,915)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2w A
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently £ RIREEF D HEE R Z
to profit or loss: BE :
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation BMEBINEFI B IwE 2
of financial statements of foreign P& 5 ek (E518)
operations 13,573 (14,311)
Release of translation reserves upon HE—WB A Mgk 2
disposal of a subsidiary H (4,245) -
ltem that may not be reclassified HEeTrEmsEEEny
subsequently to profit or loss: BH -
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEREMEEKE
other comprehensive income PR TR EE (129,923) (3,777)
Other comprehensive income for the year — AN4F & H fh 2 E U A (120,595) (18,088)
Total comprehensive income FEZEAKRA
for the year (568,338) (1,302,003)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AreEm REMEEWAK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E2-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET T
Loss for the year attributable to: UTATEEEREEESE :
Owners of the Company RAREE A (395,006) (1,193,501)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR SR A 2 (52,737) (90,414)
(447,743) (1,283,915)
Total comprehensive income forthe LU N A X E{EARFEE
year attributable to: 2HARA :
Owners of the Company RARER A (515,683) (1,210,195)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AR SR 2 (52,655) (91,808)
(568,338) (1,302,003)
Loss per share for loss for the year KAREEAEELREEER
attributable to owners ZBREE
of the Company
(restated)
(FE351)
Basic (HK$) EAR(BT) 14 (0.449) (1.357)
(restated)
€<=27l))
Diluted (HK9) #5E (B T) (0.449) (1.357)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(=R UE T Ri\%

/\\/T\
As at 31 December 2019 R —ZE—hF+-A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\&F
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB k&G 15 1,516 105,245
Land use rights T bR R 16 - 4,091
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 - -
Goodwill Bk 18 - =
Other intangible assets HmmpaE 20 16,345 111,844
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WEERI B AR 2% 37 146,512 145,457
Pledged bank deposits SR ITIER 25 - 28,200
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEREER=IEZ
other comprehensive income CREE 21 31,522 161,445
Non-current rental deposit ERBEELRS 23 14,044 =
209,939 556,282
Current assets REEE
Contingent consideration receivables FEW S AR E 19 - 4,587
Inventories FE 22 6,738 32,375
Trade receivables U E 5 ER1A 23 4,012 4,128
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENRER
receivables H e U IR 23 14,514 117,825
Financial assets at fair value through EAFERERVIEZ
profit or loss T EE = 24 299,520 298,296
Pledged bank deposits SR ITIER 25 - 389,368
Cash and bank balances He RIBITHER 25 19,210 20,062
343,994 866,641
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables e E 5 ERE 26 19,638 24,210
Accrued charges and other payables FERTE A R E b FETBRIE 27 181,153 143,959
Contract liabilities GHEE 28 21,169 28,676
Lease liabilities TE Ea8E 17 24,094 =
Shareholder loans R E 29 - 58,334
Bank borrowings RITEN 31 - 366,400
Other borrowing H b &R 30 55,172 =
Current tax liabilities ENBIEAE - 1,520
301,226 623,099
Net current assets BERBEE 42,768 243,542
P o
£
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NN BT Ri%

As at 31 December 2019 R —ZE—hF+-A=+—H
2019 2018
= —N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FHET THTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBAE 252,707 799,824
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Shareholder loans AR R E K 29 207,298 200,000
Bank borrowings RITE 31 - 22,900
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 25,425 =
Deferred taxation JRIEFTE 32 2,351 9,661
235,074 232,561
NET ASSETS FEE 17,633 567,263
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRI E
Share capital A& A 33 175,858 175,858
Reserves fFEf (83,032) 429,921
Equity attributable to owners EAREEAEGER
of the Company 92,826 605,779
Non-controlling interests FERREER (75,193) (38,516)
Total equity MR 17,633 567,263
On behalf of the directors REES

Wang Chuang
S
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/T\

dEN 7
T Z \Il\l:lll\%bi%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

—“NEFEFTZA=+—HIFE

Non-
controling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
FiR
KRFIER AR kxR Eaa
Share
Share Share  Translation Specil Other option FVOCI Accumulated
capital  premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve losses  Sub-fotal
BATE
REH2E
WG
ke RiYEE AEER  BRER  ZbRE BRERR  ORE  ZHER st
HKG000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKSO00  HKBOO0  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O0O
Thn  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr TR TEr TEr T
(note 33)
(3£ 33)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-5-A
PAi: 175858  31969%  (20,079) (2000 (410463 52929 5204 (1230813 1816523 53292 1869815
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (1193501) (1193501 (90414 (1,283915)
Other comprehensive income A 2ERA
Exchange loss on ranshation of francial  #Z 5 EREKRX 2
statements of foreign operations ER’E}% - - (12917) - - - - - (1219 (1394 (1431)
Fair vale change of FVOC| BRATEREMRERAGIEZ
ATEES - - - - - - 3177 - 3177 - 377
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 NG LE - - (12917) - - - (3777)  (1,193501) (1,2101%)  (91,808) (1,302,009
Eauity-setfied share-based payments ~ MRIEEEHMRA BERA 3
(note 38) (K3t3s) - - - - - (549) - - (549) - (49)
Lapse of share opfions (note 38) RS - - - - - (10224 - 10 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-E-NEtZA=1-A
PA 33 175858  31969%  (329%) (000 (410463 42,156 48517 Q414000 605779 (38516) 567,263
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—||— N/
/ \Il\l:lll\
/\\/T\ T %b%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

—“NEFEFTZA=+—HIFE

Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
FER
KAAEEAER hERE  BEAT
Share
Share Share  Translation Special Other option FVOCI Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve resernve reserve losses  Sub-total
BAVE
REH2E
BATIE
RE  REEE  HERE  BEEE  EN8E BRERS WEE 2R it
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén TEn TEn TEn TER TR
(note 33)
(H333)
Balance at 31 December 2018~ R=E-NE+Zf=1-A
268 175858 319699 (32999 Q0 (MO 4215 48517 (414000 60579 (8516 567,263
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (305008 (395008 (5273 (447749)
Other comprehensive income ~~ E2EUA
Exchange gan ontransationof B E S EREEHE
financial statements of foreign Efla
operations - - 13,491 - - - - - 13,491 82 13,573
Release of translafon reseneupon B E-HBAATER 2
disposal of a subsidiary EkE - - (4.245) - - - - - (4.245) - (4.245)
Fair value change of FVOC RATERABZENA
G ATEZS - - - - - - (12999 - (12999 - (1299
Total comprehensive incorme ERRENREE
for the year . - 0M - - - (1992 (95006 (515683 (265  (5683%9)
Deemed capital contrbution RIERERRME
from shareholder - - - - 13,341 - - - 13,341 - 13,341
Eouity-setfled share-based payments  MIREEERI R BERH
(note 38) i3 (A33) - - - - - 5,367 - - 5,367 - 5,367
Lapse of share optons (note 38) ~ EERREX R (A3£38) - - - - - (7.224) - 7,204 - - -
Aoguistion of non-controling interest  WEE SE IR R R iEEE - - - - (15078 - - - (5018 15978 -
Balance at31 December 2019 R=Z-A%+ZA=1-A
248 175858 3196996  (23749) Q00 (3100 40299 (81406 (A0 %8 (5eY 17633

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 2001.

The other reserve represents (1) the difference between the fair value
of consideration paid to increase the shareholding in subsidiaries and
the amount of adjustment to non-controlling interest; and (2) deemed
capital contribution from shareholders, represented the difference
between the principal amount of the shareholder’s loan and its fair
value. The fair value is determined by discounting the estimate future
cash flows throughout the expected life of the repayment.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\/\EE stz ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BZE HZE
—EB-NF —E-)\F
+=Z—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2HERE
Loss before income tax BREF1S B AT E 18 (456,644) (1,352,799
Adjustments for: EEE
Amortisation of land use rights o+ M {5k R A A 5 16 - 106
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hh 8 B 6 20 22,845 43,386
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 17 20,154 —
Depreciation of owned property, plant and EEYE  BEX
equipment HEITE 15 8,692 26,210
Interest income F 2 Uz A 6 (415) (7,026)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR 2 Kas 44 (8,676) =
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HEME - BEK
equipment, net 2 et (F8) 6 (587) -
Fair value change on financial assets at fair & A FERIEZRTRE 2
value through profit or loss @Eﬂéﬁzai@“éﬂ 24 (1,224) 113,803
Fair value loss on contingent consideration ERHIAREBRAFE
receivables B8 19 4,587 26,271
Equity-settled share-based payment A\ es 45 8 2 RS A
expenses =453 9 5,367 (549)
Interest expenses MEEA 8 5,343 21,654
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREBE 18 - 202,292
Impairment loss on property, plant and VI - HEREE
equipment BEEER 15 94,118 168,486
Impairment loss on intangible assets | EE 2 REEE 20 70,697 275,896
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets o AR ER TE B8 17 52,049 -
Recognition of expected credit loss on trade TR & 5 F& Y 5K 18 78 HA
receivables EEEE 23 1,149 139,006
Recognition/(Reversal) of expected credit R, (B [B) H th fE UK
loss on other receivables %ﬁ’\lﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁ B EE 23 19,636 (2,458)
Inventory written off FE R 9 22,598 =
Operating loss before working capital EESSBHAIZ
changes "EBER (140,311) (345,722)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,(Em) 1,859 (5,079)
Decrease in trade receivables FEW R 5 AR TER 1,730 117,654
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and e A RIEREA
other receivables & R TE R 88,117 347,636
Change in financial assets at fair value RAFERERIIERZ
through profit or loss TREESDH - 74,097
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BB SERECRD)
0 (3,965) (202,080)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities a®aECRd) i (7,507) 5,107
Increase in accrued charges and FEFT B A R H AL FE H BRIE
other payables 0 36,745 27,138
Cash (used in)/generated from operations K& %% (F£A) 5z
Be (23,332) 18,751
Income taxes paid B ATSEL - =
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (ER) B
operating activities REeFHE (23,332) 18,751
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/\\/T\/\EE stz ;ﬁ:%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Bz HZE
—g-hE T )\F
+=Z—A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHZRERE
Interest received B UHE 415 7,026
Decrease in pledged and restricted deposits £ 3 4 7(_ K Z R S F 50
deposits > 407,647 400,494
Payment of deposits for acquisition W EEKT B A AR 5K
of subsidiaries (2,195) (45,457)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEEW ¥ - ME M & E (2,190) (13,221)
Purchase of other intangible assets HEEMEBLEE 20 (3,549) =
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiary HEMBRARIZEERA
HEE 44 4,998 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and H &2 « E &R H
equipment Fr1S 3R 1,666 1,315
Net cash generated from investing REZTBHFBRESFEHE
activities 406,792 350,157
Cash flows from financing activities A E Zfﬁﬁ‘b‘ﬁé 36
Repayment of shareholder’s loan EBEREREE m (37,695) (214,208)
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITIER (389,300) (343,500)
Repayment of principal elements of EEHEAaBEREHS
lease liabilities (18,235) -
Interest on lease liabilities paid ENEERETE (2,285) =
Proceed from other borrowings H A G5 e 55,172 =
Interest paid on bank borrowings BARITIER T A8 (1,405) (21,654)
Net cash used in financing activities METEHERARSTE (393,748) (579,362)
Net decrease in cash and cash HeRRESEEEBHZ
equivalents WD R (10,288) (210,454)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HZRERESE
of the year ZLEER 25 20,062 244,373
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXSHHRERAS
cash and cash equivalents ZEERAZEE (485) (13,857)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZEER
of the year RE&ZEER 25 9,289 20,062
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law (Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20 April 2001. The
address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal
place of business is Rooms 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to
the financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group” hereafter.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 30 June
2020.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on
1 January 2019

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combinations,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11 Joint Amrangements, HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new
and amended HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and had no
material impact on how the results and financial positions
for the current and prior periods have been prepared and
presented.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) —
(CONT'D)

132

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on
1 January 2019 (Cont’d)

()

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for
accounting for lessees. It replaces HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 177), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int
15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. From a lessee’s
perspective, almost all leases are recognised in
the statement of financial position as a right-of-
use assets and a lease liabilities, with the narrow
exception to this principle for leases which the
underlying assets are of low-value or are determined
as short-term leases. From a lessor’s perspective,
the accounting treatment is substantially unchanged
from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16 regarding
its new definition of a lease, its impact on the
Group’s accounting policies and the transition
method adopted by the Group as allowed under
HKFRS 16, please refer to section (i) to (iv) of this
note.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. The comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS
17 and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BNBREEDN(H)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - BB EEE |) (&)
(CONT’D)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on 2.1 BRANFTAT, /?&‘/fnf & BB KR
1 January 2019 (Cont’d) 7 2E Al — —= —NF—A
— Hi#B4£ ,«3(7 (#&)
(i) Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Cont’d) () BENEBHEHEERE165
L (E)
The following tables summarised the impact of TEREABEERAEYHERE
transition to HKFRS 16 on statement of financial EHFEIGRHENR T —\F
position as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1 +—A=+t—HE-_ZT—hfF
January 2019 as follows (increase/(decrease)): —A— BB RIRZEE
(38, (k) -
HK$’'000
T
Statement of financial position as at R-ZE-hFE-—A—BNHBERRE
1 January 2019
Right-of-use assets EREEE 106,858
Land use rights 3 B R A (4,091)
Lease liabilities (non-current) HE&EGERE) 81,534
Lease liabilities (current) HEEE(RD) 21,233
The following reconciliation explains how the LWTEHERHABRE ST —N\F
operating lease commitments disclosed applying +—A=+—BEABESH
HKAS 17 at the end of 31 December 2018 could be HERIFE17THRNE 2 KL HE &
reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of initial EmfrAER—_ZE—NF— A
application recognised in the statement of financial — B Z BRI K R RN H X
position as at 1 January 2019: JEFBHHE & EETEHER
Reconciliation of operating lease commitment to HEHERIEHAAESEZ
lease liabilities Eof- 3
HK$’000
:F/%TE
Operating lease commitment as of RZZBE-N\F+ZHA=+—HH
31 December 2018 B TH B AR 118,731
Less: short term leases for which lease terms & : A EHBENR T —NLF+ =7
end within 31 December 2019 St—RNERZEHEE (4,465)
Less: leases of low-value assets W REEEERE (177)
Less: future interest expenses W ARRFERX (11,322
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF—HA—BrHEE
BEARE 102,767
The weighted average lessee’s incremental RZE-—NF-—HA—B2ZHH
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised MAKRAERZEESR f$ FFr &
in the statement of financial position as at 1 January Az nkEFgEHE AL EER
2019 was 4.93%. M *R4.93% e
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) —
(CONT'D)

134

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on
1 January 2019 (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract,
or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use
an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. A contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time when the customer, throughout
the period of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and (b) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset.

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the statement of
financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to
be capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB BUMBBREER ([EH)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — MRHmEEL]) (8)

(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on
1 January 2019 (Cont’d)

(i) Accounting as a leasee (Cont’d)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The
Group measures the right-of-use assets applying
a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. mmE B BRE = (&
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — R ELER ) (&)
(CONT'D)
2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on 2.1 f”’%ﬁ??f:f NS ET & BB IR
1 January 2019 (Cont’d) ER-H—F—AF—H
—E@Iﬂ%ﬁ
(i) Accounting as a leasee (Cont’d) (iii) ERARBAZEB5EE ()
Lease liability HEEBE

136

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group shall use the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) —
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on
1 January 2019 (Cont’d)

(iv) Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach. The
comparative information presented in 2018 has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by
the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at
the date of 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating leases applying HKAS 17
and measured those lease liabilities at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-
use assets at 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified operating leases under HKAS 17 at an
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before the date of
initial application.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

138

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) —
(CONT'D)

2.1 Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on
1 January 2019 (Cont’d)

(iv) Transition (Cont’d)

The Group has also applied the follow practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (i) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases with term that will end within 12 months
of the date of initial application (1 January 2019)
and accounted for those leases as short-term
leases; (iii) exclude the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at 1 January
2019 and (iv) used hindsight in determining the
lease terms if the contracts contain options to
extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is applied
to all of the Group’s lease contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and (ii) not to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMERDBREEA(F)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — Mm-S D) (&)
(CONT’D)
2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been 2.2 EAEMAE [ K £ X H) FT 5] AL
issued but are not yet effective 185 & BB IR EER
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to VAT B 7K £ (8] B 75 3R R VB E AR B 2 3
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but B EIEET BB SRS ER B & HE
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by o BERAERR BREREFRRSE
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these Ry o NEE B I8Nz E XA £
changes on the date they become effective. WEHERZEEE -
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Defition of a Business' BEYLREENEE  EEIER
HE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definffion of Materia? BELHENZIHR ERLER?
and HKAS 8 BRI ENEST
HE
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform? BEYERSENER . RREEYE:
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 BRGENE0HR
BEUHREEN
R ACHE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BEYEREEAETE  RRANS
Amendments to HKFRS 10and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and EANBREEANSI0RR REBEARENAGAEL
HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture* EEeiEa£8 X/ AMEELES A"
HE
1 Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions L RKEEBHA—T_TF—A—H
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning s AR B 85 A9 R 1R
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January KB EBEHREEREER -
2020.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZZE_TF—-—H—-Hsz®&RAR
2020. 2 FEHRER -
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 8 RZZT——F—A—H=kz%&RAR
2021, ZFERBER -
4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective 2 BIARARHRAR_T—N\F—HA—H
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The 2 BBz B AR o AR A H
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early WEL®E/BUE BT AH T iR
application of the amendments of the amendments FrER -

continue to be permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

140

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) —
(CONT'D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
a “business” to focus on returns from selling goods and
services to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into the
definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 -
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of
the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark
reform. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMERMBHREZEA(E]
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) - MR EZER ) ()
(CONT'D)

2.2 New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-
based standard for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts in the
financial statements of the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies and financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
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@)

©)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are stated at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 5.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
incurred a loss of approximately HK$447,743,000 and
operating cash outflow of approximately HK$23,332,000.
These situations indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the
Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.

3.
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B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company have prepared a cash flow
forecast of the Group for a period up to 30 June 2021
taking into account the impact arising from the outbreak
of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) in
early 2020 and the expected results of the followings
arrangements and measures:

M

Disposal of its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (the “Investment”) to Mr. Xiong
Qiangen (“Mr. Xiong”), an independent third party.

On 6 January 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement with Mr. Xiong to dispose of 15% of the
Investment (the “First Disposal”) for a consideration
of US$5.8 million (equivalent to HK$45.2 million) and
Mr. Xiong is obligated to settle the consideration in
full on or before 30 June 2020. Details please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 6 January
2020. The First Disposal is completed on 29 May
2020.

On 21 February 2020, the Group entered into
another agreement with Mr. Xiong to dispose of
the remaining 85% of the Investment (the “Second
Disposal”) for a consideration of US$32.9 million
(equivalent to HK$256.6 million). Mr. Xiong shall
pay first instalment of US$3.9 million (equivalent
to HK$30.4 million) on or before 31 May 2020 to
complete the Second Disposal. Mr. Xiong shall
pay the remaining consideration of US$9 million
(equivalent to HK$70.2 million), US$10 million
(equivalent to HK$78.0 million and US$10 million
(equivalent to HK$78.0 million) on 30 June 2020,
30 September 2020 and 30 December 2020
respectively (the “Further Payments”). Details please
refer to the Company’s circular dated 20 April
2020. The Second Disposal is approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 7 May 2020 and
completed on 29 May 2020.
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(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Cont’d)

M

(Cont’d)

During the year, Mr. Xiong granted loan facilities
amounted to HK$100 million to the Group. As at
31 December 2019, the amount due to Mr. Xiong
by the Group amounted to HK$55 million and
recognised as other borrowing and repayable on
or before 31 March 2020. On 17 March 2020, the
Group signed a supplementary agreement with Mr.
Xiong to increase the facility amount from HK$100
million to HK$180 million and extend the repayment
date from 31 March 2020 to 30 June 2021. On
2 April 2020, another supplementary agreement
was signed to increase the facilities amount from
HK$180 million to HK$200 million.

According to the supplementary agreement dated
2 April 2020, the considerations of the First and
Second Disposals shall first offset the amount due
by the Group to Mr. Xiong on respective settlement
dates (the “Offsetting Arrangement”). In case of
delay by and/or failure of Mr. Xiong in settling
the Further Payments, the Group has the right to
unwind the transfer of the Investment for which the
consideration is not received proportionately. Details
please refer to the Company’s circular dated 20
April 2020.

On 30 June 2020, the consideration for (i) the First
Disposal; (i) the first instalment of the Second
Disposal; and (i) the instalment due on 30 June
2020 of the Second Disposal amounting to
HK$145.8 million in total have been offset with the
amount due to Mr. Xiong by the Group. After the
offsetting, on 30 June 2020, the amount due to Mr.
Xiong by the Group is amounted to HK$70.6 million
and the outstanding consideration for the Second
Disposal is of HK$156 million which will be due
on 30 September 2020 and 30 December 2020.
Taking into account the Offsetting Arrangement,
the remaining consideration payable by Mr. Xiong
is amounted to HK$85.4 million (the “Remaining
Consideration”) on 30 June 2020;

3.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(v)

On 2 March 2020, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with joint placing agents to
procure not less than six placees to subscribe for
up to 500 million ordinary shares of the Company
at the placing price of HK$0.20 per share. The
placing was approved by the shareholders on 15
April 2020 and completed on 15 May 2020. The net
proceeds from the share placing of HK$98 million
was received in cash on 15 May 2020. Details of
the placing are included in the Company’s circular
dated 27 March 2020;

The substantial shareholder, All Favour Holdings
Limited, undertakes that no repayment on the
shareholder’s loans of HK$221 million as at 31
December 2019 will be demanded until 30 June
2021 (the “Undertaking”). The beneficial controlling
party of All Favour Holdings Limited also undertake
to provide sufficient financial resources to the Group
so as to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as
they fall due and to carrying on its business without
a significant curtailment of operations; and

The directors of the Company will continue to
implement measures aiming at improving the
working capital and cash flows of the Group,
including close monitoring of general administrative
expenses and operating costs and soliciting more
potential customers.
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Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Cont’d)

Taking into account the expected results of the above
arrangements and measures, the directors of the
Company believe that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its operating and financing needs
as and when they fall due for a period up to 30 June
2021. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty exists
depending on the outcomes of the arrangements and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend
upon the settlement of the Remaining Consideration as
scheduled by Mr. Xiong, the successful implementation of
the Group’s cost control measurements so as to improve
working capital and cash flow position; and the financial
ability of the beneficial controlling party of the substantial
shareholder of the Company to provide sufficient financial
support to the Group to meet its operating and financing
needs in foreseeable future.

The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that may be necessary should the
going concern basis of preparation be determined to
be inappropriate. These would include any adjustments
to write down the Group’s assets to their net realisable
amounts, to provide for any liabilities which may arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b) Subsidiaries

©)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Group is able
to exercise control. The Group controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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(©)

(@)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HKS at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rate over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and
other items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:
Buildings over 50 years or the
terms of the leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5%-25%
Computer equipment 33%

Motor vehicles 20%—25%
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

(€

®

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land use rights (accounting policies applied
until 31 December 2018)

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method
over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the
land.

Gooadwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(note 4(0)).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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)

Intangible assets (other than gooadwill) and
research and development activities

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Trademark 15 years
Patents 7-15 years
Capitalised development costs 10 years
Licensing agreement 7 years

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

° Adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD) 4. EESFTEUE (&)
A BE (B =F—HF—A—A

(h)A Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

January 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at
the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy
to account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.
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(h)A Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

January 2019) (Cont’d)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to
be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change
in future lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(h)B Leasing (accounting policies applied until
31 December 2018)

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

()

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exception:

= land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon, at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease (see
note 4(h)B). For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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() Financial Instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments as following measurement
category:

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(i) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

()

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Debt instruments (Cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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(i) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

()

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLS”) on trade receivables and
other financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(i) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12 months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is aged
more than 90 days.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired or default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is aged more than 90 days.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with
the Company.
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Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

4. ETEEFEE (E)

E2HT A (&)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)
(i) Financial Instruments (Cont’d) (1)

HBEREXN

(vi) Financial guarantee contracts (vi)

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with principles of the accounting policy set out in
note 4(i)(ii); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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0

4. EESFTBER (&)

Financial Instruments (Cont’q) () ZATAE)

(vij) Derecognition (vii)

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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Inventories ) FE
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net GFEZNA LA SR FEME ZRIE

realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. In the case of work in progress and
finished goods, cost also comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. 7K o
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
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ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of SHERSETE -

completion and applicable selling expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in
hand, time deposits with banks within original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time when
the goods are transferred and the customer has received
the goods, since only by the time the Group has a
present right to payment for the goods delivered. For the
provision of service, revenue is recognised over time as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity
performs.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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()

(m)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

In determining the transaction price, the Group
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. There is no right of return, volume rebate
and warranty arrangement for the sales of goods and
provision for services.

There is no significant financing components for the
contracts and the consideration is not variable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group completes
the delivery under such sales contracts but yet certified
by customers. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If
the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(n)

(©)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating
to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, right of
use assets, land use rights and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they
are impaired. All other assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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(©)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods including impairment losses
recognised in an interim period. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss has
been recognised.

4. ETEEFEE (E)

(©)

AL E B E ()

SERHEREMS MEEELZRS
MARB LS NBIREMEE - 7
WO BEANRABIELRERAL
ROBEMR (AREELEMN)EFE -
E ik - #R 0 & 2 (8 B E TR E RO
SEMNERTELEURE - BHE
PEEZFAHAXERNERELS
HHRREZRSELEM XK
EARAREREBOMEEREZR
INEEAT o

RENERECRSELEMER

HERE ML AREREIE - K
BB AR B 1 & FE R =K E (E B
D FAERH & R Ak E A (EE (0 F
BE) S E R SRBE BB AR
PlEaZBReELEN c HWEENR -

BERERE (BET MR ZE
BE) TERNE KRB - E MW
BEMS  WARNEEEERWER
B AT IR AN E R - Bl ER
BER BABERAETTHR K
WEERBEBERNREETE ZKE
B (R ETE S EH) BR -

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2019
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(o) Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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(@),

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share-based payment reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the end
of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether the
market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. The value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss with a corresponding credit to
share- based payment reserve, net of deferred tax where
applicable. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
share options expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of share options expected to
vest differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification,
is also recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(@),

()

Share-based payments (Cont’d)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services,
the fair value of goods or services received is recognised
in profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or
services received.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the vested share options are lapsed, forfeited or still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset
is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualified asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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(s) Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid
at the reporting date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

(s) Accounting for income taxes (Cont’d) (s)

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented

in net if, and only if,

(@ The Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled

or recovered.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

172

()

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors,
being the chief operating decision makers of the Group,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

(i) Dermatology, cosmetic products and others —
production and sale of dermatology, cosmetic
products and others;

(i)  Cell and healthcare products and services —
production and sales of cell and healthcare

products and services;

(i) Ophthalmology products — production and sales of
ophthalmology products;

(iv)  Stomatology products and others — production and
sale of stomatology products and others; and

(v)  Medical equipment — trading of medical equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

()

Segment reporting (Cont’d)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that:

= fair value changes on contingent consideration
receivables

- finance costs
- income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets except contingent
consideration receivable, FVOCI, FVTPL and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include deferred tax liabilities and liabilities incurred
for financing rather than operating purposes.

4. ETEEFEE (E)

()

2019 3} HEIBEBRERAERA T {

DB E ()

AEERBEEW B REENFESHR
B EDREEMRAHAERE
HRBEREMBREEIR B HRE
PRER R EOAER - MELA N Pt 3 B 9b -

- RRIRRELAFEEZ

- UHBEA
- %

— AFEERBRNEALES B
P2 0 LS YN R

RAERENHNEEEERLTE
BEA -

BRAEERBBEBREAREN XD
EBZREEARE  BAFERE
o2 EWAFRR A FERERT
BREEEEEY TEERE— 288 (B
HXZAAREEAEMA) I 28
BERRMAEE -

DHMEBETERAERRBNEMNL
ENR e EBEB AL TEHRBENK —
DHMZEERBE - -ZEOHAEERE
BEERERENMARE (MFZER
M) MELZBIE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

4. EESFTBER (&)

174

(u) Related parties

@

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)
(i
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(vi)

(vil)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(u) Related parties (Cont’d)

(v)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iiy  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

()

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
ageing analysis for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECLs to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve
a significant degree of management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. The information about the ECLs and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note 43. If
the financial condition of the customers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance would be higher than estimated. The Group’s
management determines the impairment of trade and
other receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is
based on the credit history of its customers or debtors
and current market conditions. Management reassesses
the impairment of trade and other receivables at the
reporting date.

For other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, they are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. The
Group recognised the provision for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
debtors, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and
considering the prevailing economic conditions.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

(i)

Estimated impairment of gooawill, other
intangible assets, right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equijpment related to cash-
generating units

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4(0). The carrying values of other
intangible assets, right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
there are any indications that the carrying value of other
intangible assets, right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use/fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates about future cash flows and discount rates.

In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues
and profits. The assumptions about future revenues are
mainly based on the actual financial performance of the
Group’s revenue from respective cash generating unit for
the year, the current market demand of the products in
the PRC, the current supply of the similar products in the
market, the estimated utilisation of the Group’s production
capacity and the management’s current assessment of
the economic outlook. The unit selling price is assumed
to remain constant throughout the forecasted period.
The assumptions about future profits are mainly based
on the available market data of the profit margin ratio of
companies engaged in respective cash generating unit in
the PRC and global market. As these assumptions relate
to future events and circumstances, the actual results
may vary and may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of goodwiill, other intangible assets, right-
of-use assets and property, plant and equipment within
the next financial year.

Determining the appropriate discount rate involves
estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk and
for asset specific risk factors. The management has taken
consideration of risk-free rate (reference to the yield of the
long term bond issued in the PRC), the cost of equity and
debt of the companies in respective industry and other
possible risk factors such as the market capitalisation of
the Group in estimating the discount rate. Details of the
estimates of the recoverable amounts of cash generating
units are disclosed in note 18.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

178

(i)

()

Share-based payment transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees/consultants by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at
which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determining the
most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate
also requires determining the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them. The assumptions and models
used for estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in note 38.

Fair value measurement

A number of financial assets included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair value
hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market
data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

The Group measures the financial instruments (note 21
and 24) at fair value. For more detailed information in
relation to the fair value of measurement of the items
above, please refer to the applicable notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND 6. WaREMEKA - WakEE
LOSS

The Group’s turnover represents revenue from its principal AEBZEXEERNERFTERNREEE
activities, measured at the net invoiced value of goods sold or 2R HREEERAECRERBERF
service provided during the years presented. Bt & 2 iz o
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Sales of goods (point at time) & B i (R REEh) 41,549 72,241
Services income (point over time) RR7E U A (BFRER) 6,422 711
47,971 72,952
Other income, gain and loss recognised during the year is as RERAEBREMUA e REFELAT :
follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx THTT
Bank interest income |RITH EHA 415 7,026
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - HE K&z K
plant and equipment 587 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 44) HENB ARz (HsE44) 8,676 =
Government grant income (note) BT B WA (B 5E) 7,193 12,830
Others HAith 1,240 4,001
18,111 23,857
Note: These government grant income refers to the government B E © 5% 55 BURT 7 BO WA 3B R BB B A B A B B
subsidy received by the PRC subsidiaries for the research and 18 B s TEm e —E IR N U B E B o
development project or upon satisfaction of specific conditions. HEEWRZERFFLTE Ffrﬁ B A
They were received and complied with all attached conditions &M BN FANIE B ER

and therefore recognised in profit or loss during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —T—NWF+_A=+—

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company have identified the
Group’s five business lines as operating segments as further
described in note 4(t). The operating segments are monitored

HIEFE

7. DEER

KRBT ESEERASEERGELR
B E DI (FEBE M FE4) - BRIBLZT

EOBMEEXRENRETREDHEMEE

and strategic decisions are made on the basis of adjusted RIEHRBORE - WRiREEEm (REHE
segment operating results. Revenue is disaggregated by major ZhER) &HWTX (Be R Rl fERR) D4 -
products (recognised at a point in time) and services (recognised
over time).
Dermatology, cosmetic Cell, healthcare products Ophthalmology Stomatology products
products and others and services products and others Medical equipment Total
RANER tHRRAE AR AREEGARR BNER NENERRAH BRRE it
2019 018 2019 018 2019 218 2019 218 019 018 2019 018
ZE-nF 2R\ CE-AF R0 B ZE0E ZB-AE CR0E ZR-AE DR\ ZR-0F R
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
T#n Thn &L Thn THL T T#n Tt THL ThT TEn Thn
Revente fiom conracts wihcustomers.— BR B BEHHE 2|5 15
it the scope of HKFRS 15 FEERNRRAIME:
- From extemal customers -KEnREP 9464 12494 12,533 6,867 4401 534 21,504 19386 [] 28864 a9n 72,96
Reportable seqment revenue: Bredndha 9464 12404 1253 6,867 4401 534 21,504 19386 [ 28864 a9n 72,92
Reportable segment loss Er2RnEE (140,047) 10129 (125,761) 289817) (28.861) (36624 (81,202) (232,100) (30,142) 7039 (406,013) (075,769)
Amortisaton of e use rights - 106 - - = - ° - S - 106
Amortisation of other infangole assets 14,368 16,59 2,381 7,663 - - 6,096 19128 - - 2845 43386
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2313 6954 4,650 14968 1,385 3054 k) 1,19% - ki) 8,692 %6210
Depreciation of ght-of-use assets 6,008 - 11,529 - 117 - - - - - 20,154 -
Impaiment of goodwil - 146619 - 55,673 - - - - - - - 202,292
Impaiment of other infanglole assets 8072 73048 21,630 67,102 - - 40,99 135,746 - 25,352 70,697 215,89
Impaiment of property, plent and equipment 1% + Bi7E i i 56,448 5,286 2,385 %3 7484 6,136 3801 11,760 - - 94,118 168,6%
Witen off inventories i 10434 - - - 3,164 - - - - - 2,5% -
Impaiment of right-0f-use assets 6,873 - 36,03 - 2289 - - - - - 45197 -
Interest income flg W\ an 3 3 b 3 % 3 38 1 8 45 49
Reportable segment assets SEL k(] 8,755 14570 25,381 53325 13470 53361 24,136 10383 625 97,863 72,367 33175
Addiions tonon-curent seqmentassets RIS BAE AR
during the year s 3288 1,79 8601 3 9 [ 626 - - 2190 12474
Reportable segment liabities S v | 101,502 16517 1,151 7004 24,385 25,765 4012 7990 33 480 210917 192,168
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 7. DEER (&)
The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments IR B A8 & o B0 5 TR B 48 KR B N £ [ 70 B
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the BRI RN BRV EEEERNOT ¢
financial statements as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FE 7T
Reportable segment revenue AT EmD P 47,971 72,952
Group revenue EE W 47,971 72,952
Reportable segment interest income Al =& 9 AL E A 415 419
Interest income from corporate assets RNAEEENEHA - 6,607
Group’s interest income ANEE M F B UWA 415 7,026
Total of reportable segments’ loss AT EWMDEPEIBREE (406,913) (975,769)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR 2 W 8,676 —
Unallocated corporate income ROBEEWA 2,961 8,631
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMEEMT (56,283) (223,933)
Fair value gain/(loss) on FVTPL EAFEREBERSIRR
R ERM, (BR) 1,224 (113,803)
Fair value loss on contingent consideration ~ FEMWELAKE 2 A FEEE
receivables (4,587) (26,271)
Finance costs &R (1,722) (21,654)
Loss before income tax Br TS AT ES 1R (456,644) (1,352,799)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

7.

182

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7. DEER(E)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BT EWMDEEE 72,367 383,175
Financial assets at fair value through EAFERERYIRZ
profit or loss SEEE 299,520 298,296
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR ZIES 146,512 145,457
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEREMEEKA
other comprehensive income IR S REE 31,522 161,445
Contingent consideration receivables FEU S ARE - 4,587
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE R 1,948 2,828
Pledged bank deposits BEHERRITIFER - 417,568
Other corporate assets HEmbHEEE 2,064 9,567
Group assets EEEE 553,933 1,422,923
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities BATERDEEE 210,977 192,168
Bank borrowings RITER - 389,300
Shareholder’s loans REE R 207,298 258,334
Deferred taxation EERT IR 2,351 9,661
Other borrowing H A e 55,172 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 7,023 -
Other corporate liabilities HEMEEE 53,479 6,197
Group liabilities SEAE 536,300 855,660
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 7.

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly included staff costs,
exchange loss, equity-settled share-based payments, rental
and other expenses not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segments.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets other than FVOCI, non-current rental deposits
and pledged deposits (“Specified non-current assets”) are
divided into the following geographical areas:

2 EPE R ()

ANEECEAXTIZERFERATANLE
ENMZEBEADELENETINAN EX
BR NEEEZREXNER HE
KBRS o

AEEXRBINATFHREREFRDE
E@EIAFEREMEZEKATIRR RS
ERMEE FRDESRESREEREFR
BN (TS ESERBEE ) BIBE DT :

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIREF WG BEFRRBEE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AEFE —ZT-)N\F ZZE-hE —ZFT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FABTT
Hong Kong A 6,737 2,054 102,651 125,392
The PRC (domicile) PR (EBEATTEM) 41,234 70,898 61,722 241,245
47,971 72,952 164,373 366,637

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue
derived from various customers. None of which contributed
more than 5% of the Group’s revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 14% and 12% of
the Group’s revenue depended on two customers in medical
equipment segment. As at 31 December 2018, none of the
Group’s trade receivables were due from these two customers.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on (1) the physical location of the assets (for property,
plant and equipment and land use rights) and (2) location
of operations (for goodwill and other intangible assets). The
Company is an investment holding company where the Group
has majority of its operation and workforce in the PRC, and
therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s country of
domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segment”.

2019 4% TEBsBEHARERAT { 183 )

BE_T-NFT-_A=t—HLFE"
AEEBEDREZHEF - BEFFER
HBEARE Y EH) 5% °

BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=1t—BHItEE"
REBUWZEE14% KR 12% 5 Bl K B R E &
REPBZMBREE RE—NF+=
B=+—H AEBEREEKEZZRER
BZMBREP °

BEE R R E PR 2 BRI R A
EmZMHE D - KHEFRDEEZ I
TRBENEEBERMEN CERRYE - K
B REREM LB R K (& & ATt
(BRARBEREMENEE) D AR
AR HREZERAR MAKEAZ
LERSHNAETE - Fit > PEER
RERBREEVHHRELANFESRELD
BIREMBE 2 ANKE 2 ERMEM -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMBEHR
2019 2018
—E-nE T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FET
Interest on FE -
— Bank borrowings —IRITIE 1,405 21,654
— Other borrowing —H M E 1,653 =
— Lease liabilities —HE&E 2,285 -
5,343 21,654
9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRIEHATEE
Loss before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/ B EHBEYAEBEENR, (Gt A) 75
(crediting): £ IF
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Amortisation of land use rights o b {5 P AR 5 - 106
Amortisation of other intangible assets, H b & EEs
included in administrative expenses (BEBFBEETHRRAYF) 22,845 43,386
Auditor’s remuneration 2% A BN & 1,665 1,780
Depreciation of owned property, plant BEWE BERZEITE
and equipment 8,692 26,210
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 20,154 =
Advertising and marketing, included in S i R R
selling and distribution expenses (ERREEHEER T HEHRASTF) 37,896 102,181
Equity-settled share-based payments NHEREE 2 RESNER 5,367 (549)
Exchange difference, net b 5 =5 OFFH) (404) 21,122
Inventories written off WiETE 22,598 =
Short term lease expense SHIHEMR Y 4,465 =
Low value lease expense KEEAEMRY 177 =
Operating lease rentals in respect of MAEMEZKEHERS
office premises - 42,060
Research and development costs i 2% A A 16,331 32,443
Employee benefit expense (including EERMAZ (BEEEE)
directors’ emoluments (note 10) (note 11) (FF7E10) (BFEE11) 70,264 110,072
Less: Employee benefit expenses included & : B2 FEFERTEE AR AR 2
in research and development costs EEEHHZ (2,937) (2,012)
67,327 108,060
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of the emoluments paid or payable to

the directors are as follows:

10. EEM £
BN sk ENEENBS @EnT -

Defined
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances scheme Total
e FeREE  EEERHY &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Thr Th7r THER
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-hE
TZAZ+-HLEE
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Wang Xuejun TEFEGA - 2,300 - 2,300
Mr. Wang Chuang TREE
(appointed on 18 October 2019) (RZB-NFTATN\BEZfH) - 245 - 245
Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTES
Mr. Chan Bing Woon PRIR I 72 A
(resigned on 15 August 2019) (RZE-NENATHART) 149 - - 149
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest ERGLE
(resigned on 21 August 2019) (RZE-NENBZ+—HEM) 153 - - 153
Dr. Fang Jun HEET 210 - - 210
Ms. Wong Danjuan FRERT
(appointed on 10 October 2019) (RZZ-NF+ATREZME) 27 - - 27
Ms. Yang Ying o)L
(appointed on 14 October 2019) (RZB-NFTATHREZM) 25 - - 25
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Ray Yip (re-esignated from executive £ & %4
director to non-exective director on (R=Z-NF+AT/\RE
18 October 2019) HOESEMHNTES) 600 570 - 1,170
Dr. Zhang Bin (appointed on 2 July 2019 RxtfE+
and resigned on 15 November 2019) (RZE-NELAZREZMER
RZZ-NF+-ATHARE) 397 - - 397
Mr. Wu Wei Liang (appointed on RER%AE
15 November 2019) (RZE-NFT—-RTRREZE) 32 - - 32
1,503 3,115 - 4,708
P
£
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D) 10. ESE £ (8)
Define
Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances scheme Total
ik EoREl  EREFHE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THT T FEL
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-E-N\F
TZA=+-HLEE
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Ray Yip EEik 647 897 - 1,544
Mr. Wang Xuejun TEFEGA
(appointed on 3 September 2018) (RZZ-NFNAA=REZ) - 1,500 - 1,500
Mr. Chen Chunguo AR A4
(resigned on 6 July 2018) (RZE-N\ELARAET) 2,099 455 14 2,568
Independent non-executive directors ~ BYFHTES
Mr. Chan Bing Woon FRIA IR 75 A 240 - - 240
Mr. Wong Viu Kit, Emest ERGEE 240 - - 240
Dr. Fang Jun HEELT 242 - - 242
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny THBLA
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (R=F-N\FRA—HEL) 100 - - 100
Non-executive directors FHTES
Professor Cui Zhanfeng EHEYR
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (R=F-N\FRA—HEL) 500 - - 500
Mr. Xiong Chengyu REFLA
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZE-N\EA—HE{) 250 500 - 750
4,318 3,852 14 7,684

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments in respect of those
persons’ other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

BE - ZT—NWFrR-_ZTE—NF+ A
T+ HLtFEREEERENREHNE
ERE 2 28 -

AEBEYERNEENEMME  (ERMN
AR B SR I A & B B 2 B2 B 3 B B
e

XN TFROTEFZES FeLEUBE
RAZEANTERERARTREWNBAR
AEBHEMRE N 22 -
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

Employees’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments including share-based
payment expenses were the highest in the Group for the year
included two (2018: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining three individuals (2018: 2 individuals) were as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

10. ESE £ (8)

ES M Z

AEBFALAR=H

AT (EMEBERE

AN BERZARFA) BEMRE (ZF
—N\F:=ZR)EZ EeRBREAD
TAR-BT=R(ZFT-N\F:WB) AL

MBS T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\EF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Salaries and other benefits e hEMET 4,484 4,390
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRI AT &I 3K 33 36
4,517 4,426

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell
within the following band:

HFEENRSFALHMEN FUATEHE

AR

Number of individual

AE

2019 2018

—E-hF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THET

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,600,001 & 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 # 7T % 2,600,000 8 7T -

3 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

1. RERNRAX (BRESH2)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FE 7T
Wages and salaries TERES 58,406 98,824
Equity-settled share-based payments DR EE 2 BRES T EB 5,367 (549)
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R KE KA — E RE 7K EHE] 4,749 9,795
Other staff benefits BB TEF 1,742 2,002
70,264 110,072

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year. The PRC enterprise income tax
of 25% is applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

12. FI8HIK R

BEBFB B TR A FE BT ERR G T
H)16.5% 5T & - AN B R K B A 7 E A
25% 2 Bl EFTSH  HINFIB R THR
BAFEMATRRTEFNIRAEEBLE AT
e 2 RATRRETE -

{188

in the countries in which the Group operates.

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E2-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Profits tax MBS
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFE (BERE)
prior years BETE (1,633) 35
Deferred taxation (note 32) IRIERIE (F7E32)
Income tax credit FrigtiEa (7,268) (68,919)
(8,901) (68,884)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

12.

13.

14.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONT’D) 12. FISRIRR (8)
Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting loss RERBMEFECMEHER R STEE
at applicable tax rates: ZHEERAT
2019 2018
—EB-NF —TN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT TAT
Loss before income tax expense FMRETS BB XA EE (456,644) (1,352,799)
Notional tax calculated at the rates applicable & BT I8 Al A R v &8 E A
to the loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned ZHERGTENBETIE (98,140) (289,355)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for T RENR AT BHE
tax purposes 85,996 212,199
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEFRBARN RS2
tax purposes (2,449) (5,171)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised m AR RN IB BB RS2 7,325 13,408
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years  B1EFE GBEAEE)  BETE (1,633) 35
Income tax expense Frig BB X (8,901) (68,884)
DIVIDENDS 13. RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EEWTEBRNAFERE (ZF—/N\F:
the year (2018: nil). =) o
LOSS PER SHARE 14, BRREE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$395,006,000
(2018: HK$1,193,501,000) divided by 879,289,500 (2018:
879,289,500 (restated)) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

During the reporting period, a share consolidation of twenty
existing ordinary shares for one new share was completed
thereby reducing the number of shares in issue. The
comparative numbers for the prior year have been restated as
though that share consolidation had taken place on 1 January
2018 to enable direct comparison. The basic loss per ordinary
share and number of shares in issue of the Company without
the share consolidation as reported at 31 December 2018 was
HK cents 6.787 per ordinary share and 17,585,790,000 shares
respectively.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 is the same as basic loss per share because the
impact of the exercise of share options was anti-dilutive.

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT

EREABEDRERERARAHER AR
1l /85 8 395,006,000/ 7T (=T — N\ & -
1,193,501,000/8 7T) BrLAE A B 81T L B AX
879,289,500 & (=& — J\ & : 879,289,500
fR) (&5t E -

MEHAR - ARQ BT A 0% I8 A T @A
BB E G - Emmd B BEITRDER
BHe E—FEMNLEREFELEL - B0
BHEHERZ_E—NF—A—B#ET "
NEETEEE R NF+ A
=t+—H ARARESREBENERNEE
AR EAE.787 Bl R AN A HE
B21TIRME B & 17,585,790,000 f% °

BHE-_Z—NLEFk=ZZE—-—NF+=A
T+ —HALEFEMNEREEFEEHEGRAE
AEEMER REAITHEERENTEA
REEHER o

V.
£
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BATS R I =E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% BERRME

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Computer Motor
Buildings improvements ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
S | ;
BT HENEZE B ERRE RE ait
HKSO00  HKS000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKSOD  HK$00
Thn Thn Tén Thn TER TER
At1 January 2018 RZB-NF-A-H
Cost 5@7‘1‘ . 108,847 104,096 134,682 5,086 4,825 357,436
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiTE (0,855) (13,548) (33,743 (2,446) (3,191) (62,783)
Net book amount FRFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1,634 294,653
Year ended 31 December 2018 H% :fﬁ -N\§+ZfA=t-A
It
Opening net book amount BNREFE 98,992 90,548 100,839 2,640 1,634 204,653
Exchange difference EHER (4958) (376) (1,775) - - (7,109
Disposals i3 - (23 (1,229) (62) (19) (1,315)
Additions /ﬁv‘ﬁ = 4875 5114 2,860 863 18,712
Depreciation Tﬁ% i (1,872) (11,018) (12,187) 817) (316) (26,210)
Impairment losses HEER (41,499 (83,269) (39,324) (2,367) (2,031) (168,486)
Closing net book amount HREEFE 50,663 741 51,442 2,264 135 105,245
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NE+ZA=1-H
Cost Ao 108,341 108,368 133,146 9,323 5,710 359,888
Accumulated depreciation and ZIHTERAEER
impairment losses (52,678 (107,627) (81,704) (7,059) (5,579) (254,643)
Net book amount REFE 50,663 41 51,442 2,64 185 105,245
Year ended 31 December 2019 ﬁéﬁ:fg -hE+=R=t-A
Opening net book amount BNEEFE 50,663 741 51,442 2,264 135 105,245
Exchange difference EX =R (1,032 @ (349) (405) - (1,788)
Disposals e - - (1,076) 9 - (1,079)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR - - (242) - - (242)
Additions %E; 503 576 521 590 - 2,190
Depreciation ﬁ% ) (1,079 (973) (6,152) (477) 1) (8,692
Impairment losses HEBR (47,686) (342) (44,019) (1,954) (117) (94,118)
Closing net book amount HARERE 1,369 - 125 15 7 1,516
At 31 December 2019 R=B-nE+=A=+-H
Cost A o 101,095 107,257 129,500 7,820 5,197 350,869
Accumulated depreciation and ZAEERRERE
impairment losses (99,726) (107,257) (129,375) (7,805) (5,190) (349,353)
Net book amount REFE 1,369 - 125 15 7 1,516
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all the Group’s buildings RZE—NWFR-_TE—N\Ft+_A=1+—
are situated in the PRC and are held under medium term B AEBEFRAZFHMPF E B LA E
leases. HMERARFE -
During the year, the directors of the Company reviewed the FR ARAEEEEEME B &%
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment. The details B2 RHEE  BEN G ZFEH FF18 °

of the impairment assessment are stated in note 18.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s land use rights represent payments to acquire
interests in the usage of lands situated in the PRC, which are
held under medium-term leases.

16. L i AAE

AEEZz L ERERRBLRTEZ L
e AEs CARBMEERARA) 2X
50 -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FET

As at 1 January, previously reported R—H—B8  %aZ% 4,091 4,416

Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note) AN E B s R 165

(MI5E) (4,091) -

As at 1 January, as restated R—H—HB: &&F7| - 4,416
Exchange differences PE N A= - (219)
Amortisation 5 - (106)
As at 31 December RT—_HA=+—~H - 4,091

Note: As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s land use rights represent
payments to acquire interests in the usage of lands situated in
the PRC, which are held under medium-term leases. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16, land use rights were reclassified as right-
of-use assets on 1 January 2019.

17. LEASES

HKFRS 16 was adopted on 1 January 2019 without restatement
of comparative figures. For an explanation of the transitional
requirements that were applied as at 1 January 2019, see note
2.1. The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019, as disclosed in note 4(h)A.

izt R=FT—N\E+-_A=+—8 A&EZ
T30 AR BB AL N P B 2 3t 2
ez AP HEERAFE) 2 X NHE -
RERBBVHEREENF165RE - L1
ERAER-_E-NF-—A—HEHIER
ERAEEE -

17. F8E

ERMERELENFEI6HER T —NF—
A—BERM REEVLLEET - FRE
BT NF—F—HRAERNBEMEE
KRR F2EWE21 R T —hF
— B — BB XERBHEMERNEHK
FIHEE4NAFTHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

17. LEASES (CONT'D)

192

(@) Right-of-use assets

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

17. HE (&)

@ RAEEZE

Land use

rights Offices Total

=+ i f5F A fE WAE st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FATT FHTT FHTT

At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE-—NF—H—H 4,091 102,767 106,858

Additions = = 34,106 34,106
Modification 1 - (67,500) (67,500)
Depreciation e (99) (20,055) (20,154)
Impairment loss B EE (3,888) (48,161) (52,049)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 44) tlj E B AR (ME44) - (1,085) (1,065)
Foreign exchange movement PE R & H) (104) (92) (196)

At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF

+=—A=+—H - - -

2019

—E-NEF

HK$°000

FHET

— Short term lease expense —EHEERY 4,465

— Low value lease expense —EEEHEEMX 177

— Total cash outflow for leases —HER &R AazE 20,520
In 2019 and 2018, the Group leases a number of RZE-—NERZZT—N\F A5H

properties and offices for its operations. The leases run
for an initial period ranged from one to five years (2018:
one to seven years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

During the year, the Group entered into new leases
and recognised addition of right-of-use assets of
HK$34,106,000 and lease liabilities of HK$34,106,000.
The Group also early terminate certain leases with the
deduction of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$67,500,000 and HK$67,500,000 respectively.

Mﬁ%%ﬂf“¥%¥&%“*o
HMENTNLTHENT—22AF (=
—NF: —ZEF) - EHRTIEEH
A EEER  BRESETEGER&IE
15 o PAEE TE R HA B & (i 71 AT 4R (2] A B
RIS AEBEAGANERTET
AR R BIENITH AR -

FRAEBE BT ERET
1 {5 FH 4 & £ 34,106,000 7T M 7
S B 1534,106,00078 7T > A EE IR 2
T4 IEE TRL - 2 BlR 2 F A
L ENMEE S E67,500,000 7T &
67,500,000 JT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

17. LEASES (CONT'D)

(b) Lease liabilities

17. A& (&)
b) HEEE

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FHET
Lease liabilities: HEBIE
— Current portion —mEEB S 24,094
— Non-current portion —JERBNZB D 25,425
49,519
Future lease payments are due as follows: ARBEENREEBEROT :
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
BREMEEMRK FE R{E
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET T T FHET
As at 31 December 2019 R=—Z— 1L F
+=ZA=+—H
Not later than one year —FR 25,913 (1,819) 24,094
Later than one year and —FLAEFRRER
not later than two years 19,124 (708) 18,416
Later than two yearsand ~ FIF LA ER AFR
not later than five years 7,094 (85) 7,009
52,131 (2,612) 49,519
As at 1 January 2019 R=-Z—N#F
—HA—H
Not later than one year —FR 24,790 (3,557) 21,233
Later than one year and —FAERRER
not later than two years 34,060 (2,935) 31,125
Later than two yearsand ~ RIFLA E R A FER
not later than five years 38,813 (4,034) 34,779
Later than five years AFEMNE 16,426 (796) 15,630
114,089 (11,322) 102,767

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. No comparative
information as at 31 December 2018 has been restated.
See note 2.1 for further details about transition.

R <K R BRI A 5 TR ) 5 B
MRS EANE 165 DB
—E—nE— A RNBAEHN

RERIEEEREHEAB 175 %
415 A4 70 B 070 AR 0
EEE —F—\ET-A=f—
B8 b B4 B AR B 5 o A DR
M — S BLBKE2] -
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£
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

18. GOODWILL

194

The goodwill arose from (1) the acquisition of FD(H)
Investments Limited and its subsidiaries, which are engaged
in the production and sales of tissue engineering products,
in 2008 and the acquisition of Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai
Technology Co., Ltd (“Kechuang”), which is engaged in
development and sales of information technology software
related to lamellar keratoplasty recording in 2017 (“Aierfu
Business”); (2) the acquisition of Maylion Management Limited
and its subsidiary (“Reshine Business”), which is engaged in bio-
medical engineering, research and development of regenerative
medical products in relation to tissue engineering technology in
December 2013; (3) the acquisition of Passion Stream Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Weikai Business”), which is engaged in
the design and manufacturing of pre-clinical cell and stem cell
related equipment, especially in 3D cell culture bio-reactors
and their related consumables, as well as provision of CRO
services in April 2015; and (4) the acquisition of Frame Sharp
Limited and its subsidiaries (“AK Business”), which is principally
engaged in providing service and equipment for human cell and
stem cell related clinical applications in August 2015.

18.

]

BEDNELEAN ST N\FKREFDH)
Investments Limited 2 E B A 7] - HH{ =
SENMBEABTIREESR MR- —+
FEBRYBEERENBR 2R (TR
gl)  ENE=MEkiEEEREARYE
SCERARRE 2 B BT (R E )
QZZE—=F+-_AUBEXHREREER
ARRAIREMBAR (MnkEHK]) HiES
EYBEETE  AEAKTIERITNEE
BEELOME Q- —HFmAKE
Passion Stream Limited & E [ff B 2 &) ([
L) - B SR R B AR M AN 2 40 jR AR
Bk 2 SR ET RS (S5 R =7 = # AR
BEEYRERESHEBRFEM) A RIEH
ARATMHAXRSE : RGO —HFEN
A U B Frame Sharp Limited & £ K & A 7
(R XK EXZRELSABERK
B 70 M A B G PR FE R TR AR 7S Mo s o

I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

18. GOODWILL (CONTD) 18. B (&)
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows: BECEEFEZONAT -
Aierfu Reshine Weikai AK
Business Business Business Business Total
NEEER hERER HAER  ROER &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR FEL FET

At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\E—HF—-H

Gross carrying amount RE&E 146,619 162,615 96,213 8,902 404,349
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - (152,615) (49,442) = (202,057)
Net carrying amount REFE 146,619 - 46,771 8,902 202,292

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-Z—/\F

+-A=+-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount H AR A 146,619 - 46,771 8,902 202,292
Impairment losses REEBE (146,619) - (46,771) (8,902  (202,292)
Closing net carrying amount HAERFE - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 R-EB-NE+=ZA=+—-H

Gross carrying amount RE&E 146,619 152,615 96,213 8,902 404,349
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (146,619)  (152,615) (96,213) (8,902)  (404,349)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 R-EB-hAE+=-A=+—-H

Gross carrying amount RE&E 142,943 148,790 93,801 8,679 394,213
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (142,943)  (148,790) (93,801) (8,679)  (394,213)
Net carrying amount REFE - - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

18. GOODWILL (CONT'D)

196

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
four cash generating units, Aierfu Business, Reshine Business,
Weikai Business and AK Business.

The recoverable amounts for these cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use (“VIU”) calculation
using discounted cash flow technique, covering detailed five-
year budget plans. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates as stated below.
The discount rates used for VIU are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant cash-generating unit.

The key assumptions used for recoverable amounts are as
follows:

18.

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

mE ()
BETRERY AEEIRENERS
EEBA LABEY REXS G

ELNS T

ZERGELABUNAINESESRERE
ﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁiumg/‘z‘ (ngiiﬁfﬁﬁz%tﬁ'%m
AEZEREERE(EREBEDEE -HF
,HHL‘M%:Zﬁi/;mEE&L/(TﬁﬁE‘HEﬂri‘E
R ANEREEFTRERREA
W AR ARRR IR & B A BB AL 2 15 E LR

A El SR ERNERREMAT

Basis Growth rate Discount rate
B BR% R%

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AE “E-)\F ZE-hE “E-\F ZE-NF “E-)\E
Ajerfu Busiess IBREE VU EREE VUERERE 3% 3% 18% 21%
Reshing Busiess ST VU ERER VUERERE 3% 3% 20% 28%
Welkal Business SEES) VU EREE VURREE 3% % 2% 26%
AK Business RS VU EEE VUERERE 3% 3% 19% 5%

The key assumptions are those regarding the discount
rate, growth rate and budgeted gross margin, which had
been determined based on the market comparables and
budgeted revenue, which had been determined based on the
management’s expectation for the market development and the
production capacity of relevant cash generating units.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit, the
Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in their key
assumptions. However, the estimate of recoverable amount of
the Group’s cash generating units is particularly sensitive to the
discount rate applied.

TEBRSBEBEARXR BRXREAE
M - REREM S A LLBRERAE RS (B
REEEBHMENERNEBARCES
BUMEERNZAMEE)EE -

RriErReEEEUr KESE2E
BHREI AEBZEEERFEL A
EREMBAgE 8 CHFTEBREE
B A AEERSELBEM A MBE
AU Bl & BEE TR A 2 TR R AL R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

18. GOODWILL (CONT'D) 18. P92 (&)

The recoverable amount has been determined by an
independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited
(2018: Roma Appraisal Limited) with the discounted cash
flow approach. The total recoverable amounts of these cash
generating units are amounted to HK$17,860,000 as at 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, based on the results of the reviews of
the recoverable amount of the cash generating units containing
goodwill, the carrying amounts exceeded the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets less liabilities of the cash
generating units, the management considered that impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets
and right of use assets of HK$94,118,000, HK$70,697,000
and HK$52,049,000 respectively were recognised in profit or
loss for the year. The impairment loss is mainly due to the poor
financial performance of these cash generating units during the
year and the change of the Group’s operating strategies.

As at 31 December 2018, based on the results of the reviews of
the recoverable amount of the cash generating units containing
goodwill, the carrying amounts exceeded the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets less liabilities of the cash
generating units, the management considered that impairment
loss on goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets of HK$202,292,000, HK$168,486,000 and
HK$275,896,000 respectively were recognised in profit or loss
for the year. The impairment loss is mainly due to the poor
financial performance of these cash generating units during the
year and the change of the Group’s operating, marketing and
sales strategies.

A EERTEBLEXGEMES R
HEERAR (ZE—N\F : EEERG
BRAR)EAMBRRERELEE - % F
BeELBEUMATERSER_F—N
F+=-HA=+—H%17,860,000%& T °

R-E—AF+_A=+—8 BERSL
EEBMABREE (SEE) R4
EHREEFREEBRBIRRKSHERRGE
SENNERE BEEEZENFEIBRRE
ROE - -BERZE HUEFEERE
A& ERERES B A&94,118,0008 7T
70,697,000 7T & 52,049,000 7T ° (&
BEFTZEANFAZSRESELEENNE
BRETMERAEBESREBEL -

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8 BERSL
EXBMABREE (SEE) R4
EHREEREEBRBARKSHRRSE
ABEVHEBE BEEERERFEERZ
REE -VE BEREBEAREMER
& EREEE D R A&202,292,000 % JT
168,486,000 7T M 275,896,000/ 7T ° i
EEEFTZENTFAZEREGEEENN
MBERRTERAEHESL MHHEER
HERBEEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

19. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

198

19. BRI AKE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHEx FE 7T

At 1 January n—H—H 4,587 32,502
Fair value loss RNEEEE (4,587) (26,271)
Exchange differences PE 3 =58 - (1,644)
At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—H - 4,587

There are profit guarantees for the acquisitions of Weikai
Business and AK Business.

For Weikai Business, the vendor guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB25,000,000, or he
will transfer part of the shares of Passion Stream Limited (a
70% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company) held by him
and classified as non-controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statements, based on the percentage of the shortfall
in total net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The
adjustment will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

For AK Business, the vendor guaranteed to the Group that
cumulative total net profits for the years ended 31 December
2015 to 2018 will not be less than RMB8,000,000, or he will
transfer part of the shares of Frame Sharp Limited (a 70%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company) held by him
and classified as non-controlling interests in the consolidated
financial statement, based on the percentage of the shortfall
in total net profit over the guaranteed total net profit. The
adjustment will be settled after the end of the four-year period.

WREI RS RRIEHD BB ERE -

EHEBEINER BEBHIRAEERE BHE
—E-RFET-N\F+HA=1+—H
EFEZRFAREMNFEBETDORARE
25,000,0007T + % Bl H 1% ¥ 5% £ #5 Passion
Stream Limited (7N A &) 5 %2 % & 70% K /&
RNA) 2 #B50 In (R HR 48 5% ) 5 58 (R 3B
BEFFREZEBEI L  RERE VB
WMERNDBEAIEERRE ) - BEFARE
RN FHEREESE -

EHRIER BEHFRASERE  BHE
—E-RFE_F-N\FTHA=1+—H
IEFEZRFARENFEBETIORARKE
8,000,000 7T + 75 Bl E % & 5% K Fr #%5 26 15
Frame Sharp Limited (A2 7] # # 8 70%
MiE AR 2Bk (IRIR 4R T F 58 B IR F
B FHEREZEZEHEIL  REETB
WMEADERIEERIRRELZ) - BAFE
R FHGEREES -
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B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

19. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  19. B R KB (&)

(CONT'D)

As both profit guarantees of AK Business and Weikai Business
were not met, pursuant to the Group’s rights under the Profit
Guarantees, the vendor transferred to the Group respective
equity interest of Frame Sharp Limited and Passion Stream
Limited, which represents the Group’s effective interest in
20% of the entire of equity interest of AK Business and Weikai
Business respectively. Since then, the Group’s effective interest
in each AK Business and Weikai Business has increased from
70% to 90%. Upon the enforcement of the rights under the
Profit Guarantees, in the opinion of the directors, the fair value
of contingent consideration receivables on the date of the
enforcement is zero in view of the significant loss incurred by AK
Business and Weikai Business and fair value loss on contingent
consideration receivables of HK$4,587,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year.

As at 31 December 2018, the management expected that the
contingent consideration receivables will be realised within 12
months from the reporting date, accordingly, it is classified as
current assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the contingent consideration
receivables represented the fair value of the profit guarantees
in accordance with the share purchase agreements for the
acquisition of Weikai Business and AK Business and were
estimated by an independent professional valuers, Roma
Appraisal Limited. The fair value of the contingent consideration
receivables were estimated by applying probability weighted
discounted cash flow approach based on the estimated total
profits expected by management of the Group to be earned by
the Weikai Business and AK Business for the four years ended
31 December 2018 and the estimated fair values of the shares
of Passion Stream Limited and Frame Sharp Limited held by
the non-controlling interests.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of contingent
consideration represented was a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. Significant unobservable input for the
valuation approach is the marketability discount of 20.70%.
Higher marketability discount on the fair value of shares of
Passion Stream Limited and Frame Sharp Limited will result in
corresponding lower fair values. As at 31 December 2018, it
is estimated that with all other variables held constant, the 5%
increase in marketability discount will decrease the fair value of
the contingent consideration receivables by 5%.

By 5 R A TR % R & 15K 8
LEJZ BIEAR S BN & FRZIET R
A » & 77 # Frame Sharp Limited & Passion
Stream Limited % B MRN8 F AL E
ZERAEERAEED IR RIS K
I EBETIBREN200HNERER - 8
o ARERBIEFERBFINEESEDN
BB C H70%5E 112 90% ° 1T 0
FRFBTHERNE ERRINEB KRG
XEBEENERNEE ESRANTZH
FEMSARBERAFELEZSMERSKARE
B A FEE518 4,587,000 L E R FRRE
AR o

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—H BHEEHE
B sk AREE RS HEART + @A
NER - Ak EDBEERBEE -

R=ZFE—NF+_A=+—8 EBRIA
ﬁfﬁa“é*ﬁ?féﬂﬁlgﬁﬁiiﬂ%i‘%&ﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%z
BHEBEHBZN &MNREZAFE  THHA
%_Lﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂi??’é%I%ﬂﬁﬁ@/&ﬁﬁ
i o B AREZ AFEE T ERBE XM
BARRERELZBREASEEEEEL
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HIEOESF
JE B e 7% I B S| 25 7 B ER 2 {51 B 48

HE DA I FE 438 i P 3R %5 P HF Passion Stream
L|m|ted ¥ Frame Sharp Limited i% 15 2 f& 5t

NEEMGESE e

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H HAKE
ZAVTERE=ZMEETERTFEGTZE 4
BEEZERFEAER G ABIBE AT SN
73R & 20.70% : Passion Stream Limited
Frame Sharp Limited 2 i3 A F1E 2 T35 7
FIRERASHEEHAFERERD - R
*3_3*)\$+*ﬂ_+ B BEtEHR
B ERFTE - MIBRBITIREEIN5%
182 IR ARERFERLD 5% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. Hitt L & &

Development Licensing
Trademark Patents costs agreement Total
[L:d Y BRAK R ERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAT TAT TET TAT
At 1 January 2018 R-2-NF-A-R
Cost AR 79,984 493,470 123,216 23,393 720,063
Accumulated amortisation and ZEERRERE
impairment losses (48,897) (217,773) (6,027) (2,621) (275,318)
Net book amount REFE 31,087 275,697 117,189 20,772 444,745
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE-F-N%
tZASt-ALEE
Opening net book amount HERFE 31,087 275,697 117,189 20,772 444,745
Exchange difference EHESR - (12,433) (123) (1,083) (13,619
Amortisation B (5,330) (30,618) (4,145) (3,299) (43,386)
Impaiment loss HEER (21,827) (168,013) (78,195) (7,861) (275,89)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844
At 31 December 2018 R-Z2-NF+-A=t-H
Cost ﬁm 79,984 493,470 125,222 23,393 722,069
Accumulated amortisation and ZBHERAERR
impairment losses (76,054) (428,837) (90,496) (14,838) (610,225)
Net book amount REFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ=%- 1%
oAz t-ALEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 3,930 64,633 34,726 8,555 111,844
Addition hE - - 3,549 - 3,549
Exchange difference EHESR - (4,307) (696) (503) (5,506)
Amortisation B (3,874) (14,675) (1,619) (2,677) (22,845)
Impairment loss HEER (56) (39,355) (25,911) (5,375) (70,697)
Closing net book amount HAERFE - 6,296 10,049 - 16,345
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-NE+=A=1-A
Cost Jimi 71,979 481,101 125,632 22,018 706,730
Accumulated amortisation and S BERAEER
impairment losses (77,979) (474,805) (115,583) (22,018) (690,385)
Net book amount REFHE - 6,206 10,049 - 16,345

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all other intangible assets
are related to four cash generating units, Aierfu Business,
Reshine Business, Weikai Business and AK Business
respectively. These other intangible assets were mainly arising
from the business combinations as stated in note 18. During the
year, the directors reviewed the carrying amounts of the other
intangible assets. The details of the impairment assessment are
stated in note 18.

RZE—NER_ZT—N\F+_A=+—
B FrEEMEREENANERSEELES
N(DRAENBEERS mERES - GIlx
BRBEIYFER) BE ZSEMEFEEE
ZEABEMNFEISHMEREH -FR - E
ERNEMEFEENRME - BETHE
FIEHNMIE18 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EH % —

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

21.

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

ar

BN EREM2EBASIERE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EWMEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FET
Non-current EFR B
Unlisted equity securities — PRC, IELETMRAZS R EH
measured at FVOCI BERAFEREMEEmKA
BT & 31,522 161,445
This equity investment was irrevocably designated at FVOCI as HRAEBRAEZIEEBNREES -

the Group considered this investment to be strategic in nature.
This represented 2% equity investment in a private company
incorporated in the PRC namely fF #T (2 8E)T) BB N/ B E
HERRE (“RENEE).

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
did not receive dividend from this investment. F #7/\588 & with
its registered capital of RMB5,000 million was one of the top 10
in terms of registered capital base of online lenders in the PRC
according to 2018 publication of The People’s Bank of China.
On the other hand, the online lending industry in the PRC was
adversely affected by more stringent regulatory restrictions and

SRR EC TR BRI EE SR AF
EREME2ERATIR - bt T34 R R+
M FLA R B P (BEEIT) BEAE
PNEERERAR ((HHNEED FELE
2% BRI E -

Bz _2— N &Erk-_FT—N\E+=_H

ST-RLEFE AKREYEGZRENR
BE RIEBPEARRIT-Z—\FOiM

R NEENEMEASAREBETT -
RTPBEEEE T EMEARRERA+R2Z— -
A—HE FEREEETEIIE RS
M &S ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%&%ﬁﬁfb%éﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ’]T

exits of smaller players, aggravated by the COVID-19 outbreak AL k=T =T FHICOVID-19/& %
in early 2020 and lead to significant deterioration of quality of le] BlRTair & BHHH/NEEREREER
outstanding lending by # #7/\88 & and hence valuation of the HHEEEET Bzr Fi: i /7\$ SEEKEN
Group’s investment. The Board will maintain close monitor on HERE-ESSBERVERPHNEE
business development of F #71/ 58 & RIS ER o
INVENTORIES 22. 78
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Raw materials R #Y 3,853 12,508
Work-in progress RS 881 2,690
Finished goods LUK oh 2,004 17,177
6,738 32,375

2019 3} HEIBEBRERAERA T {
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—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 23. ERE 5ER1E « 2% - T FUE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES N E Ath FE UR FR 08
2019 2018
—E-hE -2 NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current assets: mMENEEE
Trade receivables Y E 5 R1E 142,074 143,805
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (138,062) (139,677)
4,012 4,128
Rental deposit HEZS 14,044 —
Other deposits Eiz® 3,946 22,667
Prepayments SN S 7,274 79,829
Bank interest receivables FEUERITFI B 73 7,234
Other receivables H i & WK IE 23,250 8,488
48,587 118,218
Less: Impairment losses of other receivables ¥ : H fth & W 5018 R (E B8 (20,029) (393)
28,558 117,825
Represented by: LATN%|IEE 57 -
Non-current assets EREN B EE 14,044 -
Current assets MEEE 14,514 117,825
28,558 117,825
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

23. BWE ZERIA - & « AR
K HAtb B WK IE ()

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONT'D)
Movements in the impairment losses in respect of trade FNE 5 MW GRIE & E fth fE W 5RI8 1R E
receivables and other receivables during the year are as follows: BN
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEx FET
Trade receivables (lifetime expected EWE ZRE (XEFEHEH
credit losses collectively assessed) 2 HEHEEEE)
At 1 January n—HA—H 139,677 4,866
Impairment losses recognised during the year £ A #E 2 & 350 (B &5 18 1,149 139,006
Exchange alignment P& 5 % (2,764) (4,195)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 138,062 139,677
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other receivables (lifetime expected H 4th fE WL SR IE (18 B FE M Y
credit losses individually assessed) 2 HEREEEE)
At 1 January nw—HA—H 393 2,851
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) FAER, (BR)WREESE
during the year 19,636 (2,458)
At 31 December R+=—H=+—H 20,029 393

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,

L 204

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONT'D)

The changes in the gross carrying amount of trade and other
receivables are mainly due to new financial assets originated
or purchased during the year. The impairment losses of trade
receivables recognised during the year were mainly due to the
long aged outstanding receivables without any settlement from
debtors and no sales transactions with these debtors during
the year. The impairment losses of other receivables recognised
during the year were mainly due to the long aged outstanding
receivables without any settlement from debtors without any
repayment plan agreed. Management identified that these
debtors are in financial difficulty and the recoverability of these
receivables was remote.

As at year end date, ageing analysis of trade receivables based
on sales invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

3. E&E
53

S8 - S AMNHE
H Rl 508 ()

B REMBUFIBENRAAEZESH T E
HRFRELEXBENTSREEMK -
FRERHE F UG IERE R R T B0
FREBARBRES M AEE 0 RUK
HAYWERZEBEHAETHER M -
FABRBEMEYWRBNRESEIER
BN AREERABE B REEEMENKE
B RIAREENEYGREMRE - EEE
HeE SRkt 5 B 75 A TED e B BRI 36 - 1 % 5 B
YRR IR Y B] 45 B 1B o

REGH BRREFRARHEEZAN
KRB EER 2 REDITAT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FHE 7T

0-90 days 0ZE 90K 2,353 3,519
Over 90 days but less than 1 year FE3BI0ARIE D1 F 1,659 609
4,012 4,128

The Group allows an average credit period of 60-180 days
(2018: 60-180 days) to its customers.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4(j). Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 43.

AEEBRTERFZIHYEEHACOE
180K (ZZE—/\F : 60=180K) °

N2 B AR 15 BT 5 4() BT it & 5T BUR R R E
ER - FUEAEEEERRARES RH
ERREEEEERRNE —PFFHES
RBIE48 ©
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24. I AFERERVIEZSREE

PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FE 7T

Unlisted private investment funds — Overseas 3F F R ALEREE S —/HI1 299,520 298,296

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group invested
HK$273.3 million into an overseas private equity fund, namely
ZhongHua Finance Acquisition Fund |, L.P. (the “Fund”). During
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did
not receive any dividend from the Fund. The Fund principally
invested in companies in the skin care and medical products
industries which continues to exhibit growth in turnover and
profitability. In response to the changes in general economic
conditions and competition within the industry, the Group
disposed all of its interest in the Fund subsequent to 31
December 2019 to Mr. Xiong so that the Group can use the
proceeds to focus on other investments, acquisitions and
organic growth opportunities in the market.

The fair value of unlisted private investment funds as at
31 December 2019 was determined by an independent
professional valuer, Roma Appraisal Limited with the market
approach, based on the investee’s financial performance and
the multiples of comparable companies. The key unobservable
assumptions used in the valuation included price to earnings
ratio (“PE ratio”) of 14.55 (2018: 13.48) and marketability
discount of 20.6% (2018: 20.7%).

As at 31 December 2019, if the PE ratio and marketability
discount shifted upward by 1 and 1% respectively (2018: 1
and 1%), the fair value of the unlisted private investment funds
would be increased by 9% (2018: 1%) and decreased by 1.3%
(2018: 0.7%) respectively. The higher the PE ratio, the higher
the fair value. The higher the marketability discount, the lower
the fair value.

R_ZE—NER T NEF+t_A=1+—
B A% E#%&273,300,0008 T R &
HNFL B BE #E A & - B ZhongHua Finance
Acquisition Fund I, LP. ([E &) - & & —
T-NEFER_ZE—NEFE+ZA=+—HI1t
FE -AEETEGESBREMRRKE -
ZESFTERERNTEEERBRE R
E¥NAR - ZE QAR EEEBERAETE
FELR - BEYH —MEBEMRRELRIT
E¥RFFE AEBAR_ZT—NE+_=A
Tt HEABEEESHNETERHET
R WEAEB A ABABREBEE
REMTE - WESEETHEE#IERD
Mg o

R_ZE—hAEFE+_A=+—8 FkLTH
SREESTHRBYEEGEMESBHE
FEARARFERAMBEAERE  WAIKRE
HERMPBERELAUELRAFTNEEAR
EEHEFERANEETAHRBREE
EMREE(MAE]) 1455 (22— N\F:
13.48) K iZ R BN ITIR £ 20.6% (ZF— N\
£ :20.7%) °

RZBE—NF+_A=+—H WW&AX
EmSREBMBEESR LA R1% (ZF
—NF A1 Kk1%) LML EREESH
NEEHDR EFAI% (ZZT—)\F:1%)
ETRBE13% (ZFE—/\F :07%) - mEX
e AFESE  mERBTEELS -
NFEBIE -

V.
£
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25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED

05, Iﬁgﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%/aﬁ#ﬂﬁ

BANK DEPOSITS (2N
2019 2018
—Z2-NF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Pledged deposits (note (a)) B IBER (M 7E(a) - 417,568
Restricted bank balances (note (b)) PR HI R 1T 45 8% (MY EE (b)) 9,921 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESFHEEH 9,289 20,062
Cash and bank balance & RIRITAE R 19,210 20,062
Notes: B &E -
(@)  As at 31 December 2018, the deposits were pledged to banks @ RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 'EFEXRE

to secure bank loans (as detailed in note 31 to the financial
statements). These deposits earned interests from 1.50% to
2.10% per annum. As at 31 December 2018, the pledged
deposits of HK$28,200,000 was classified as non-current assets
as it was pledged to secure non-current bank borrowings and
HK$389,368,000 was classified as current assets as it was
pledged to secure current bank borrowings. During the year, all
bank borrowings were repaid and there is no pledged deposits
as at 31 December 2019.

Bank balances of HK$9,912,000 were frozen by Shanghai
Municipal Public Security Bureau in relation to the source of fund
from an independent third party who involved in a criminal case.
The Bureau also restricted the sales of all buildings of Airefu, a
subsidiary of the Group. The management obtained legal advices
and in the opinion of the directors, the transactions and source of
funds received by Aierfu were under commercial substance and
the Group did not involve in the case. The management actively
applied to the Bureau to unfreeze these assets. For the remaining
balance of restricted bank balances, these are due to several
minor litigations from staff, suppliers and creditors to claim for the
outstanding payables.

Included in cash and bank balances, short-term deposits and
pledged bank deposits of the Group are HK$9,192,000 (2018:
HK$434,797,000) of bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies
through banks that are recognised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

A FIRTUNERBITER (FLR Y5
MERMES) - ZEBFERIZEF150%E
210%MMF B - R=ZFE—NFE+ A
=+—H ' B #1F5£28,200,000% 7T 7
MEAEIRBEE  RAEDEBLERIE
BV B 4R 77 f& 3K+ 11 389,368,000 7T 7 18
ERBEE  AAHDEKIFLEKRIDER
TER-FRN - TARITERHEEER
R-ZB—AFE+-A=+—BLEDEKM

RITA#R9,912,000B TLE EBET AL E
REE B RMNERMTNBLE=TES
ARG B - 523 TRIR ) A8 &= T/ 2 B 3L
AENMAETHE EEERSERR
RABERR YRBEESHNRIRES
KRBREAELED  AEEL RS REMS -
EREERBRZRRERREHEEE - =
MERGIRITHERHEREE - ERNET
HIER R B AETEOR DR EFRALAE
R NCEE G AN

AEBZRERBITES BEHERK
ERIFRITEREEF RN B ZRT
FTRAARE TARBDFEZRTSE
9,192,000 % 7t (= Z — J\4F : 434,797,000
BT ARBAUFEAIEMEBZEE -
RiphBE A2 IMNEE RGP RAE - &
ERMEEERE  AREEEEBER
REEITINE RS Z RITIG AR LRI
e o
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26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. BN E ZRIE

2019 2018
—E-nF T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
0-30 days 0ZE 30K 111 4,229
31-60 days 31 260K 166 -
Over 60 days but less than 1 year HBiB 60 RE D1 F 322 593
1 year or over 1 year 1Fs1F A £ 19,039 19,388
19,638 24,210

General credit terms granted by suppliers are 30 days to 60 HEEFELZ —REEHNTFI0RECOK °

days.

27. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. FEstE R R HAtFEATERIE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Accrued charges FEETE R 59,124 43,988
Interest payables on other borrowing H b 8 SR ER FI B 1,653 =
Other payables H b e < BR I8 90,255 71,546
Government assistances B 8 BA 30,121 28,425
181,153 143,959
Government assistances represent payments granted by the BTt RS RFREETZ
local governments in the PRC in relation to the research and A TR RAMPIER TR EREE
development of tissue engineering and stem cell projects HIBoZERIEBRNEMRTEEEIEB
carried out in the PRC. These payments will be recognised as BRERIELHEEBIERAIA °

income upon the approval from the local government on the
output of the relevant projects.
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28.

29.

| 208

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly relate to advance considerations
received from customers and arose from sale of goods.
The Group may take certain deposits from customers on
acceptance of the order, with the remainder of the consideration
payable at the earlier of delivery of the finished goods.

>
i

HWES

AMABTREKRREFREEEMES
MERKERR AEEZEATERFEE
FWEE THESE & FRERK G

\

> 1

S AREERE) o

Movements in contract liabilities BHEEZE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT

Balance at 1 January R—A—B&#% 28,676 23,569
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~FRERKFZER S LB BERD

recognising revenue during the year (6,788) (23,569)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of HEEmBWFIASHANEE

billing in advance of sales of goods N - 28,676
Exchange differences PE N A= (719) -
Balance at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H#&&% 21,169 28,676

SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS

As at 31 December 2019, shareholder’s loans were unsecured
and interest-free in which an amount of HK$100 million was for
the potential acquisition of Lung Hang Investments Limited (note
37) and repayable on or before the third anniversary date of the
advancement date of the shareholder’s loans (i.e. 19 December
2020). The whole amount of shareholder’s loans were classified
as non-current liabilities as the shareholder undertakes that it
will not demand repayment of the shareholder’s loans within
15 months from 19 December 2019 until the Company is in a
position to repay.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of shareholder’s loans
were calculated using cash flows discounted at market interest
rate of 5% per annum. Difference between the fair value and
the nominal value of the loans, amounting to HK$13,341,000 is
included in other reserve in equity.

As at 31 December 2018, shareholder’s loans were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year except for (1)
the amount of HK$100 million, which was for the potential
acquisition of Lung Hang Investments Limited (note 37)
and repayable on or before the third anniversary date of the
advancement date of the shareholder’s loans; and (2) the
amount of HK$100 million, which was repayable on 30 June
2020.

29. RRER

R-E—AF+_A=+—HB BEEX
REEB R EE - HA£%8100,000,000 %
7T T4 A 7 AT BE Uk B# Lung Hang Investments
Limited (F#5E387) + WERKR R EH T A
HEEm = BFZARZA (I _FF
+TZA+AR)EE - ARBRRAKZE -Z
—NE+=—At+hBRI5EAREETS
DREERREREEAAREHEES
I W EdREERDERIERDEE -

R-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—H REEXR
NFERBIETES% TS RELEHE
THREFE ERAFEEREEZEN
=R A 8013,341,000/8 LAt AR EAD
-

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H BRREXK
AREER RERAR-FANEE  MHQ)
< %8 100,000,000 JTBR AN+ ZEFIE T A
7 A 8 Ue B Lung Hang Investments Limited
(M337)  WEARKRRE RN B HE
ERm=—BF AR CHER: RQ &%
100,000,000 B T AR —ZE_FF A=+
HEE -
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30. OTHER BORROWINGS

31.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Xiong Qiangen granted a facility
of HK$100 million to the Group. The borrowing is bearing
8% interest per annum and repayable on or before 31 March
2020. The Group provided a guarantee and indemnity for the
account of Mr. Xiong Qiangen in favour of a third party financial
institution with financial exposure capped at HK$8 million.

On 17 March 2020, the Group signed a supplementary
agreement with Mr. Xiong Qiangen to increase the facility
amount from HK$100 million to HK$180 million and extend
the repayment date from 31 March 2020 to 30 June 2021.
The Group also entered into a deed of charge with Mr. Xiong
Qiangen to charge the Group’s remaining 85% interest of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in favour of
Mr. Xiong Qiangen as the security for repayment and discharge
of the other borrowing and all interest accrued and to be
accrued thereon. On 2 April 2020, another supplementary

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

H b & =K

—NFE+—A=+—8 B&TR:E
EWZKE.&HZ}?? &2 & 100,000,000 7%
T fERREEM  RENXRB%FTEL
AR _FE_TF=-A=+—BHHZAE
B AKRERRTREEA-—RE=Z7T2
BEBRERHEREBE MBARLERE
8,000,000 7 7T ©

RZF_TF=ZA+LH AEHEHHERK
TRAEERZEHAGE HRESLHED
100,000,000 7% 7T % 180,000,000 4 7T * I
HERAMB _—_FT_FF=A=+—HE
RE_F-_—FRXA=TH AKEHHE
RRTRALTZERRZE  BAKEHKT
85%5"?22’&”?@)5/‘?@ SR S MEERN
BEARRTRELER/RRBAETER £
ﬁﬁm&%“%ﬁfmﬁx#\u&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂ?i&
HﬁFiﬁ“JEEﬁ?ﬂ% R-ZE_TFMA_RA -

agreement was signed to increase the facilities amount from — AR HECEEZEZEUERESER
HK$180 million to HK$200 million. 180,000,000 7B 7T i1 Z 200,000,000 75 7T ©
BANK BORROWINGS 31. RITERK
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings are R-FE—AF+_A=Z+—H A&EEZ
repayable as follows: JEBERITERMOT ¢
2019 2018
—E-AEF A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHE 7T
Current B &R
Bank loans, secured — repayable within IRITER - BEM—
one year (i) —FREE() - 366,400
Non-Current FE BN HA
Bank loans, secured — repayable over RITER - BEM—
one year but less than five years (ii) —F1& 18R F NEE (i) - 22,900
- 389,300

2019 4 PEBLRSEARERAT {
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31.

32.

L 210

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

BANK BORROWINGS (CONT’D) 31. SRITER (&)

The interest-bearing bank borrowings were carried at amortised T ESRITE R IVIRE I K AN BR

cost.

()  As at 31 December 2018, the current bank borrowings ) HRZE—NEFE+ZZHAH=+—8"
represented bank loans with principal amounts of BRI ERELRASSEAARK
RMB340,000,000, which are repayable within one year 340,000,0007C ~ AR —FANEE R
and secured by the Group’s deposits with carrying LA 7K £ (2] 8R 1 {2 389,368,000 /% JT AY
amounts of HK$389,368,000. FREERORITER -

(i)  As at 31 December 2018, the non-current bank i) MRZZE—NFT+ZHA=+—8 Al
borrowings represented bank loans with principal HSRITIERIBEAR —FRERATFA
amounts of RMB20,000,000, which was repayable over B8 2 A& 8 A AR 20,000,000 7T
one year but less than five years and secured by the ZIITER  UUAARNEBERBEEAS
Group’s pledged bank deposits with carrying amounts of: 28,200,000/ 7T 2 B | IR R 1717 RIE
HK$28,200,000. o

Interest rate of the bank borrowings was 4.750% per annum for %ii: - N\F+ZA=+T—HILFER

the year ended 31 December 2018. ITEREFEE4750% °

During the year, all bank borrowings were fully repaid. RAFEEA - FIAERITEREBEEER

DEFERRED TAXATION 32. IEERIE

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary difference under BEFBRESBEEAERSE l B FTIE

the liability method using the rates of taxation prevailing in the I%Zfﬁfﬂ‘fd IR EREATE

countries in which the Group operates.

The movement on deferred tax liabilities is as follows: BEEHIBEEE 2SI :

Fair value adjustments arising
from other intangible assets
HttEREEMELE
ZAFERAE

2019 2018
—E-hEF =—\&F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT T T

At the beginning of the year F9) 9,661 81,076

Credited to profit or loss for the year (note 12) 2 ufkﬁif Bz (HsE12) (7,268) (68,919)

Exchange differences PE 3 =5 (42) (2,496)

2,351 9,661

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$92,295,000 (2018: HK$86,494,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will expire
after 5 years from the year in which the tax losses were
incurred.

RZZE—AFE+-_A=+—8 AEEEHE
7~ B B B 3 518 92,295,000/ 7T (ZZE — )\
F 1 86,494,000 70) » A] AR R s
A o R PR 2R B S48 ) 2R OR B9 71 | 8 B M 0 B
WERHBEEBERECHBEE - H1E
EREENEELEE FRASFEZIE -
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B&
Number of Nominal
shares value
[idvil 2 4= H{E
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and RZZE—N\F—H—8"
1 January 2019, ordinary shares of —E-NFE+ZHA=T—HBkK
HK$0.01 each —T-NF-A—H"
FREE0.01 BT LA 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Share consolidation (notefii)) B fn& BF (BT &k (i) (95,000,000,000) =
At 31 December 2019, ordinary shares of RZZE-—hNF+=A=+—8"
HK$0.2 each BREEO0.2/8 AT AL 5,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and RZZE—N\§F—H—8"
1 January 2019, ordinary shares of —E-NFE+ZHA=T—HBkK
HK$0.01 each —T-NF-A—H"
FREE0.01 BT AR 17,585,790,000 175,858
Share consolidation (notefii)) B fn& BF (BT &E (i) (16,706,500,500) =
At 31 December 2019, ordinary shares of RZZE-—hF+=A=+—8"
HK$0.2 each BREEO0.2/E AT AL 879,289,500 175,858
Notes: M 5E

)

(i)

All these ordinary shares issued by the Company during the
years rank pari passu with the then existing ordinary shares in all
respects.

On 16 May 2019, the Company completed the share
consolidation by every twenty existing shares of HK$0.01 each
consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$0.2 each.

In May 2020, upon the completion of share placing, 500,000,000
new shares of the Company were issued at HK$0.2 per share.
The Company also allotted and issued 200,000,000 ordinary
shares to the holder of convertible bonds as the Company
received conversion notices in respect of the conversion of the
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$40,000,000 at
the conversion price of HK$0.2 per share.

2019 R FEBLBREEEERAR ’\

ARRREEERIT2 A ERRNE
E B R 2 IR B R T A R S -

RZZ-AFRATARA ARAUE
“+IRGREEC.OI BTG KK E I
RBREREEIETHAHROHN T
HFEX AN & BF ©

R_E_ZTFRH A BOERETKE &
A A% 8 [% 0.2 7 T 2 97 500,000,000 % ¥
B - R AR E B YR E A 0278
JT K 2 % (8 & 2 K £ 58 5 40,000,000 78
TR RRESAEBNEIREBN - AR
RIMERAIRRESFE ARE RET
200,000,000 A% & 578 A%
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. QB Z BRI &
THE COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
e FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERBE - 75
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries ~ YEEHIE L2 7l 2 iR & 100,000 100,000
Investments in subsidiaries WERKTEB AR 42,278 209,888
142,278 309,963
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments o & IEN A 6,105 12,803
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG e 316,041 447,793
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEHBEEHE 76 115
322,222 460,711
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE R & E (AR 21,665 13,364
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT B B X B R IR 237,641 167,725
Shareholder’s loans &I - 41,584
Lease liabilities HEBFE 3,519 =
Other borrowings H b {5 5K 22218 =
Current tax liabilities EHMIEAE - 1,326
285,043 223,999
Net current assets RBEEZFE 37,179 236,712
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 179,457 546,675
Non-current assets FRBEE
Shareholder’s loans IR E 3 191,561 200,000
Lease liabilities HEaFE 2,135 =
(193,696) 200,000
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BB BEEFHE (14,239) 346,675
EQUITY ER
Share capital [LEN 33 175,858 175,858
Reserves 1 35 (190,097) 170,817
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/ (BEAREH) HER
TOTAL EQUITY (14,239) 346,675
On behalf of the directors N
RERES
Wang Chuang Qiu Bin
B BB 3E,
Director Director
EZE EZ
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35. RESERVES 35. f#E
The Company b/ A=
Share Share option Other  Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE BRERE HitfRE B RE 2HER @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THAT THT THT THT

At 1 January 2018 R-Z-NE-F—H 3,196,996 52,929 - 15 (1,198,283) 2,051,657
Exchange loss on translation of BB BN EBIERE 2
financial statements of foreign ~ [E{ & 18

operations - - - @ - @)
Equity-settled share based AR 4 E ) A RR 1D

payments ABEBKEH - (549) - - - (549)
Lapse of share options BIREAH = (10,224) = = 10,224 =
Loss for the year AEEERE - - - - (1,880,289) (1,880,289

At 31 December 2018 and RZE-NE+ZA=+—H

1 January 2019 R=E-hF-HA-H 3,196,996 42,156 - 13 (3,068,348) 170,817
Deemed capital contribution RERRTA

from shareholders - - 12,238 - - 12,238
Issue of share options BITRERE - 5,367 - - - 5,367
Lapse of share options FERELN - (7,224) - - 7,224 -
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - (378,519) (378,519)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+=-A=+—-H 3,196,996 40,299 12,238 13 (3,439,643) (190,097)
In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, BERESHRERAE  AARIZRMNEE
the share premium account of the Company is also available BRNAl 2k TRRR - AR AIZER BRERE
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company is BENERNE#ESIKEHE  BEAERSR
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of EBRIEREEDHER -

business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.

Deemed capital contribution from shareholders, represented the RIERERRFTEEBRRERNAESE
difference between the principal amount of the shareholder’s HEANFLERNEZE R_Z—NLF+=
loan and its fair value. As at 31 December 2019, the fair A=+t—H BRREFNAFERAEE
value of shareholder’s loans were calculated using cash flows Fo%MTHFRBOWIBLRAE - EXR
discounted at market interest rate of 5% per annum. Difference N BB R EE 2 FE R ZE512,238,0005
between the fair value and the nominal value of the loans, TLRT AR 2 Y E At 4 o
amounting to HK$12,238,000 is included in other reserve in
equity.
P
£
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36. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF 36. REMBRZIFMTE
CASH FLOWS
Recondiliation of liabilities arising from financial activities: REEHELENBE 2 HIR
Interest
payables
Bank Shareholder’s Other for other Lease
borrowings loans  borrowings  borrowings liabilities
Hity &R A
BTER RRER HitrfE R ERFIE HESE
(note 31) (note 29) (note 30) (note 27) (note 17)
(M#E31) (Mi#E29) (M#£30) (Hizx27) (H&17)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\F-A—H 771,840 472,542 - - -
Changes from cash flows: Bemned:
Repayments EE (343,500) (214,208) - - -
Interest paid ERFIE (21,654) = = = =
Total changes from financing cash flows: RMERSMELHEHE (365,154) (214,208) = = =
Other changes: Hin 25 :
Exchange difference recognised in other PYEft 2 I\ BER B0 0 3. 2 3
comprehensive income (39,040) - - - -
Interest expenses FlEFS 21,654 - - - -
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 —N\E&+=ZA=+—H
k=Z-nE—A—H 389,300 258,334 - - -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 A BI B RS LR S 165 - - - - 102,767
389,300 258,334 - - 102,767
Changes from cash flows: BeREgt:
Drawdown R0 - - 55,172 - -
Repayments 28 (389,300) (37,695) - - -
Interest paid BRFE (1,405) - - - -
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabiliies £ & & EAE X H - - - - (18,235)
Interest on lease liabilities paid ERREEERNE - - - - (2,285)
Total changes from financing cash flows: RERSRELDLE (390,705) (37,695) 55,172 - (20,520
Other changes: H‘rﬁi“ :
Additions NE - - - - 34,106
Interest expenses %IJ BRX 1,405 - - 1,653 2,285
Exchange difference EHESR - - - - (343)
Deemed capital contribution from shareholder ~ #/EK B IR K7/E & - (13,341) - - -
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBA - - - - (1,276)
Lease modification HEBH - - - - (67,500)
At 31 December 2019 -NZF+-A=1+—H - 207,298 55,172 1,653 49,519
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

37. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 37. EXRR HAhAEE
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital and other RZZE-NAF+_RA=+—RH XxEEHZ
commitments as follows: BARREMAPERNT
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Capital commitments for property, Y - BB R E A EE
plant and equipment:
Contracted but not provided for: EHESEES T
Purchased of property, plant and BEWME  BEME&E
equipment 654 1,125
Total st 654 1,125
The Company signed two sponsorship agreements with the PiN/NIE) =R ebe == i O B N R
University of Oxford for the research of stem cell therapy and TEMMMRITIMDE R - A QB
tissue engineering. The Company agreed to provide GBP9 ERHE RSB R FEKRNE S R
million (equivalent to HK$93 million) to the University of Oxford 9,000,000 £ £ (#8 & 7 93,000,000 7T) ©
by instalments over the period covered by agreements. Up HE-_—NWFTA=+—80 ' ARAE
to 31 December 2019, the Company has paid GBP 5.05 [\ 4F 32 K 2 ¥ 15,050,000 85 (FE R
million (equivalent to HK$55.90 million (2018: GBP 5.05 million 55,900,000 7T) (=& — J\ 4 : 5,050,000
(equivalent to HK$55.90 million)) to the University of Oxford. As HeE (FEE R 55,900,000 7C)) - HRZS
the agreements are executory, no liability should be recognised HEEFRIT REYHzAHTEER
at the date of signing of the agreements. BfE-
During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group entered into RBEE_ZT—tFONA=ZFTHLEFE K
the framework agreements with independent third parties SEEBTE=FITHERFE - LARF
to establish an ophthalmic clinic and a specialist hospital BRIIRK . —FRBI 2 AT ke — A BB BB o
located in Shenzhen, PRC. According to the terms of the two BIEMNIERB R G NEEBAIRE
framework agreements, the Group may use each of the two RAGAT O A 2 B & 8N\ F A AZ
sites for the first eight years following the date the relevant site M E S P - (B AR E BEZANEEF H A S
becomes available for use and the Group was required to share SNEZH D FEERER40% KB ZF ) H
49% of the audited net profit (after tax) of the specialist hospital (Fi1&) o 1 AEBE M EZLEEHEZ
with the independent third party during the term of that lease. ZERF HeB2ELFRNBITTEF
Thereafter, the Group may elect to continue to rent the sites EEFT RZE—NFRERZZE—N\F+=
at a rental to be determined by reference to the then prevailing A=+—8B HA&EEHARBAZEZFS -
market rate for the seven years that follow. As at 31 December BEfEARARARBE_ZT—NEFR_F
2019 and 2018, the Group has not yet used these sites and —NF+_A=+—"BILFERZESF
there is no rental payment paid by the Company for these sites EfNHEE -
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries: WEHRB AR &S :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT T
Lung Hang Investment Limited (note (a)) Lung Hang Investment Limited
(MF5E (@) 100,000 100,000
Other target company (note (b)) EBEAA (M b) 46,512 45,457
146,512 145,457

V4
£
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &= —

37. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
(CONT'D)

( 216

Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries: (Cont’d)

(@)

On 10 December 2017, the Company entered into the
framework agreement with an independent third party in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Lung Hang Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability. Lung Hang Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture,
distribution, trading and sale of proprietary Chinese
medicines, chemical raw materials, biochemical products,
chemical medicine preparation and health food and
other related business in the PRC. The amount of the
consideration for the potential acquisition shall be in the
region between HK$3.6 billion to HK$3.8 billion, subject
to further bona fide negotiations. Further details are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 10 December
2017.

According to the framework agreement, the Company
shall pay HK$100 million to the existing shareholder of
Lung Hang Investments Limited within 7 days from the
signing of the framework agreement. This payment is non-
refundable and if the proposed acquisition materialises,
this payment shall be applied as part payment of the
consideration.

For the purpose of this potential acquisition, All Favour
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, advanced HK$100 million to the Company to
pay the deposits pursuant to the framework agreement.
This shareholder’s loan is unsecured and interest-free. If
the Company proceeds with the proposed acquisition,
the Company shall repay the shareholder’s loan on or
before the third anniversary date of the advancement date
of the shareholder’s loan.

The Company has reached agreement in December 2017
with the substantial shareholder that if the Company
decides not to proceed with the proposed acquisition,
the Company shall nominate the substantial shareholder
as nominated purchaser for the potential acquisition and
the substantial shareholder agreed to proceed with the
proposed acquisition. In such event, the obligation to
repay the shareholder’s loan by the Company shall be
deemed discharged when the substantial shareholder
enters into the sale and purchase agreement of the
potential acquisition. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Company decided to continue the proposed
acquisition.

The deposit is unsecured, interest-free and refundable if
the proposed acquisition does not proceed. In June 2020,
the proposed acquisition is cancelled and the deposit will
be fully returned to the Group by December 2020.

37.

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

BARR HAnEE (&)

WENRBAR 2R

(@)

% (&)

RZZE—tF+= ﬂ+E PN/
BHEVE=FI CIERHZ - WA
A B W Lung Hang Investments
Limited (7% 32 &8 5z Z A¥ S sX M Ak 2 2
BRARA) 22WEEITRA ° Lung
Hang Investments Limited & £ fff B 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TRt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

38. SHARE OPTIONS 38. HEARHE

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 14 September 2011 (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the directors may grant options to (i) any
eligible employee (means any employee, whether full time or
part time employee, including any executive directors and non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and
any invested entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; (i) any customer
of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity
that provides research, development or technological support
or other services to the Group or any invested entity; and (v)
any shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group to any invested entity (collectively known as the
“Participants”), to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
the Participants thereunder for their contributions to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any invested entity. The period of the Scheme shall
not be more than ten years from the date of adoption of the
Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of the
approval of the Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s
shareholders. In addition, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the Company, or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

ARRRBE-—BER-_FT——FALA+TEA
BB ORBREM —ABREE ([
gl)) - REBFE EFAMNIALRK
BRBNARBARARND : ()ARA - H
EAHBARRERMIREER ZEMG
ERERE (BEA2BIFRBES  BFEE
MATEZRRIFATES)  (INAREIE
AR EARREMAIREERBHEE MmN
AR 7 2 AE el i FE 7+ (il AN &% B s (R AT AT IR
EERZEMER  (v)AASBESEMAAAR
KREBRIEHRMT FRIRMERE
WIRBZEMALTHER RV EMABR
AAREEEMKAERRIEMMAREER
AAREEEMKAERRAEAMAREER
BOZEMNEZ2EMARHAA GREI2 R
] -FEZEMDRER2EERAE
B E2 BERMEL B SRERRB N E R
SESURERGEESES  LARAY
AEBRERAREEEMEEE AN
BIR - 5H 8 M a8 A BEE TS
BTE-

BrIEER AR RIRERE - BIBFT SR T
Bz BRES R 2RO BETBBAA
NEIRBEEIE B EBITRHD Z210% °
SN BATERIBET SR E M M ARITEZ
BRAEm A TEITZARRBRDEE LR
TEBBARNETES TN Z30% -
REM 1218 B SR AR AER A T EE Z
BRESRZBROBETSBAERAARN
ER B EE BTN 2 1% ° WA A A"+
ERERBIERTEETREMNRESH
ZHMBARLZBREBBAQFRAZ
0.1% M B{EiR 38 5,000,000/8 7T » Bl %/E%E
BARRE PRI ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

38. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

218

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option period to be determined by the directors is at their
absolute discretion shall not be more than ten years after the
date of the grant of the share option (“Option Period”). Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during the Option Period after the option has been
granted. The exercise price should not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (i) the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grants, which
must be a trading day; or (i) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing its shares.

No share option was granted under the Scheme during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

38.

BE ()

P 2 B B AR L B HIE28 A A)
BN - T &R B IR R R 1
BT BRESRRIAEET2RNBETE -
MM SBER G BRERBES 5 (5
BREHED KRB BRER  BREDR
R BOHE A P 42 PR B 6K BB B T PATTAE
TREMERAT=E2&5% : )AL
AR EE : () NAFRORELBH (&
BRRHH)ZWHIE : i) AR B RO
ERRLARAERSH 2 FHRHE -

A AR SIS 2 1B B BN & 5 A RE SR S A
AEERHTRMOIN BEXERIEEER
1508 B 5 ST A AR ©

HE2_Z—h&ErR-_Z—NE+=A
=+— B It FEMERE R ERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

38. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

38. M iE (&)

The following tables set out the movement in share options: TR ERE 2 ZE)
Adjusted
number of
Outstanding at options after Lapsed Outstanding at
Name of category Share 31 December Share share during 31 December
of participant option type 2018  consolidation  consolidation the year 2019
ZE-NE+ Riy&pt4 RZB-1%
~R=+-H BREZ T=HET=
SREZENER BRESY i K176 Beas  EHEHA FR%XR  BEATE
Directors B2
Independient non-executive drectors BV FE#{TEE
Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny YHELE 04/2016 804,000 (763,800) 40,200 (40,200) -
(resigned on 1 June 2018) (RZZ-\FRR—AHHE) 04/2017 480,000 (456,000) 24,000 (24,000) -
Mr. Chan Bing Woon RIRREE 04/2016 1,930,000 (1,833,500) 96,500 (38,600) 57,900
(resigned on 15 August 2019) (RZE-NENATHBAEE) 042017 2,300,000 (2,185,000) 115,000 (69,000) 46,000
Sub-total NG 5,514,000 (6,238,300) 275,700 (171,800) 108,900
Employees &8
In aggregate AFt 04/2016 51,906,000 (49,310,700) 2,596,300 (749,800) 1,845,500
04/2017 80,288,000 (76,273,600) 4,014,400 (1,136,200) 2,878,200
Consultants B
In aggregate = 04/2016 32,940,000 (81,293,000) 1,647,000 - 1,647,000
04/2017 48,000,000 (45,600,000) 2,400,000 = 2,400,000
218,648,000  (207,715,600) 10,932,400 (2,057,800) 8,874,600

During the year, 2,057,800 (2018: 27,609,100) share options
(adjusted after share consolidation) lapsed as the related
directors, employees and consultants resigned/retired/ceased
to provide services to the Group. As a result of the lapse of
share options during the year, an amount of HK$7,224,000
(2018: HK$10,224,000) were debited to the share option
reserve and credited to accumulated losses.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with consultants is by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted, as the directors consider that the
share options granted is an extra incentive to the consultants
and no specified identifiable goods or services to be provided
to the Group.

FRN HREBEESZ EEXREBEE
T/ RE/THBRAAEERERE  ®AE
2,057,80017 (=& — N\ 4 : 27,609,100153 )
BRE(BROEHBRETHAZB)ERK - A
RERNERES KR - 7,224,000/8 7T (=
T — )\ £ : 10,224,000 7T) 7 B8 AR HE (5 1
RIBR I ET A RETEE o

HREZRSAE L ZBIRET &R M
e 2 BEINEED - Re A 4 % () 7 o [ 4 it

Z ¥5 7 Al &8 Bl & mh

NS EE

SRS - EREREETZ
ZBREXNERARS ZAFE
T2 EMREBRE L A FEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

38. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

38. MEME ()
KRB NER=F—\E+=P=+—

31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: B Z BRI AR
Number of options
Contractual BRESE
exercise price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAatt o 8RR
after share  Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) ife of options 2019 018
BNTRE
REBS b [ fitid) (RRfEG&RR) BRESHES ZE-0F ZE-)\E
(restated)
(&=3))
Directors and chief
executive officer
EENG
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$9.00  10years 11,580 21,340
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
“2-TENATRA ZE-REAATAEE ZEAEAATARE 000ET  10%
ZE-ENATRA ZECRENATHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$9.00  10years 11,580 21,340
15 September 2017 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATR “E-1ENATARE “E-tENATAAE 900ET  10%
ZE-tENATRA “E-RENATHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$9.00  10years 11,580 27,340
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-TENATH ZE-REAATAEE 2B \EAATARE 900ET  10%
Z5-\§hA+HR ZEZRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$9.00  10years 11,580 21,340
16 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZE-TENATE ZE-REAATARE ZE-NEAATARE 9008 10F
ZZ-NENATRR ZECREAATHRRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$9.00  10years 11,580 21,340
16 September 2020 15 September 2025
ZE-1ENAT/E Z3-RENATAEE ZEITENATSER 9008 10F
ZECZENATRR ZECRFAATERRA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2017 to HK$5.80  9years 9,200 27,800
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
ZE-EMANA ZE-"ENANRE ZE-tENANRE 580BT 9%
“E-tENAN\R ZEZRENANA
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

38.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Cont’d)

38. BERHE (&)
RZEBE—NER_E-—N\F+_A=+—

Bz BRI R AT : ()

Number of options
Contractual BRESE
exercise price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAafs o oRg
after share  Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) ife of options 2019 2018
BNTRE
RLBS b ] L) (RRBafAIRE) BRESNES ZE-0F 05
(restated)
(855
Directors and chief executive
officer (Cont'd)
ESRTHES (B)
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2018 to HK$5.80  9years 9,200 27,800
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
ZE-EMANA ZZ-"ENANRE ZE-\ERANRE 580AT 9%
“E2-\EAAN\A “E-REAANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2019 to HK$5.80  9years 9,200 27,800
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
ZE-~EMANA ZZ-"ENANRE ZE-NERANRE 580AT 9%
ZE-NERANR “E-RENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$5.80  9years 9,200 27,800
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
ZE-ENANA ZE-NENANRE ZEITERANAE 5808 9F
ZEIRENANR “E2-RENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 t HK$5.80 9 years 9,200 27,800
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
ZE-ENANA “E-AENANRE ZE-ENANAE 580%T 9%
“E--%7A/\A ZEZRENANA
Employees
&8
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$9.00  10years 369,100 519,060
16 September 2016 15 September 2025
Z2-RFAATH “E-REAATARE ZE-AEARTAEER 000AT 10§
“E-ENATRA ZEZRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$9.00  10years 369,100 519,060
16 September 2017 15 September 2025
ZE-1ENRT/E ZE-REAATAEE ZE-HEAATARE 9008 10F
“E-tENATRR “ECRENATRA
™
{
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

38. M iE (&)

RZEBE—NER_E-—N\F+_A=+—
B2 B ER RAE T - (8)

38. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Number of options
Contractual BRESE
exercise price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAafs o 0Rg
after share  Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) ife of options 2019 018
BNTRE
RILBS b ] e (RRBaHADIRE) BREGHES ZE-0F 05
(restated)
(855
Employees (Cont'd)
E2(®
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$9.00  10years 369,100 519,060
15 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATER ZE-REAATREE ZE-\EABTARE 900AT  10%
“E-\§hAtRA “E-RENATHA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019 to HK$9.00  10years 369,100 519,060
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATIR “E-RENATARE ZZ-NENATSARR 9003 10%
ZE-NENATRA ZEZRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$9.00  10years 369,100 519,060
16 September 2020 15 September 2025
ZE-RENATHA “E-REAATARE ZECEEARTAEER 000AT 10§
ZEZ2ENATRR ZEZRENATRA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$5.80 9 years 575,640 802,880
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
ZE-ENANA “E-AENANRE ZE-tENANRE 580%T 9%
ZE5-tENANR “E-RFNANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2018 to HK$5.80  9years 575,640 802,880
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
ZE-EMANA ZZ-"ENANRE Z5-\ERANRE 580AT 9%
“2-\EAAN\A “2-RFNANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2019 to HK$5.80  9years 575,640 802,880
8 September 2019 8 September 2025
- ENANA ZZ-"ENANRE ZE-NERANRE 580AT 9%
ZE-NERANR “E-RENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$5.80  9years 575,640 802,880
8 September 2020 8 September 2025
- ENANA ZE-"ENANRE ZEIRENANAE 580AT 9%
“2-ZENANAR “E-RENANR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFE

38.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D)

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at

38. M iE (&)

RZEBE—NER_E-—N\F+_A=+—

31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Cont’d) Bz BRI GHT - (&)
Number of options
Contractual BRESE
exercise price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted RAafs o oRg
after share  Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) ife of options 2019 2018
BNTRE
RLBS b ] L) (RRBafAIRE) BRESNES ZE-0F “Z-)\E
(restated)
(855
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$5.80  9years 575,640 802,880
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
ZE-~ENANR “E-ENANAE “E-FNANAE 5808 9F
ZEZ-ENANR “E2-RENANR
Consultants
Ef
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2016 to HK$9.00  10years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2016 15 September 2025
ZE-TENATRE ZE-REAATAEE . ZE-AEAATARE 900AT  10%
5 ENATHA “E2-RENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2017 to HK$9.00  10years 329,400 329,400
16 September 2017 15 September 2025
Z2-RFAATH “E-REAATARE ZE-HEARTAEER 000AT 10§
ZE5-tENATRR ZEZRENATRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2018 to HK$9.00  10years 329,400 329,400
16 September 2018 15 September 2025
ZE-IENATE ZE-RENATAEE ZE-\ERATSEE 9008 10F
“E-\EhA+RR ZECRENATERRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2019t HK$9.00  10years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2019 15 September 2025
ZE-REAATRE ZE-REAATAEE ZENEAATARE 9008 10F
“E-NENATER ZECRFAATERRA
16 September 2015 16 September 2015 to 16 September 2020 to HK$9.00  10years 329,400 329,400
15 September 2020 15 September 2025
Z2-RENATRA “3-AFAATREE ZEZREAARTRAER 000ET  10%
ZEZZENATRA ZECRENATRA
P oo
{
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

38. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) IR ()
AERZE-NE+=F=+—

The terms and conditions of the share options that existed at N
Hz BRGNS NT - (&)

31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (Cont’d)

L 204

Number of options
Contractual BREZE
exercise price Adjusted after share consolidation
(adjusted Rpap#z SRR
aftershare  Contractual
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period consolidation) ife of options 2019 2018
BNTRE
RILES BRH Gig:d:) (RRBAGHARRE) BRESHES ZE-0F 05
(restated)
(55
Consultants (Cont'd)
BE(#)
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2017 to HK$5.80  9years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2017 8 September 2025
ZE-ENANA ZE-"ENANRE ZE-tENANRE 580AT 9%
ZE-tENANR ZZCRENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 1o 9 September 2018 to HK$5.80  9years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2018 8 September 2025
“E-ENANR '5 /\ERHHBI -\ERANRE 580 9F
-NEARNE _e_ﬁiﬂﬂ N\R
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2019 to HK$5.80  9years 480,000 480,000
8 Sep tember 2019 8 September 2025
- ENANR % /\ﬁnﬂnﬁi “E-AENRNAZR 580 9%
Z-NENANR ZZ2RENANR
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2020 to HK$5.80  9years 480,000 480,000
8 Sep tember 2020 8 September 2025
“E-NEARNR “F-NENANRE “E-ZENARNAE 5808 9F
“2-ZENANA “E-RENANA
9 September 2016 9 September 2016 to 9 September 2021 to HK$5.80 9 years 480,000 480,000
8 September 2021 8 September 2025
ZE-ENANA “E-NENANRE ‘*‘—MHHEI 580%T 9%
“E--%7AN\A SZRENANA
8,874,600 10,932,400
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BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILF

38. SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’D) 38.

The Company had 6,277,600 and 5,248,760 share options
exercisable at 31 December 2019 and 2018 after share
consolidation and the weighted average exercise prices of
share options exercisable at 31 December 2019 and 2018 after
share consolidation are HK$7.28 and HK$7.40 respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 8,874,600 (2018:
10,932,400 (restated)) share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 1% (2018: 1%) of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 8,874,600
(2018: 10,932,400 (restated)) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$1,774,920 (2018:
HK$2,186,480) and share premium of HK$61,165,524 (2018:
HK$75,234,240) (before issue expenses).

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

g

BE ()

RZE-NEFERZZE—NEF+A=+—
BRI MH & B2 © N2 F) A 6,277,60017
5,248,760 FERX#ER] T 1T - RZ=ZZF— N,
ER-E-NF+-_A=+—BRKHAE
1&g - ATATE IR ER NEF T EED
R &7.28 T R 7.4078 7T °

R-_ZE—AFE+-_A=+—H8 ARaA
8,874,60013 (=& — /\ 4 : 10,932,400 {3
(BEF) FHEIIET 2 MARITE B -
MARBNZBEBZEETRMDO1% (=
T—N\F:1%) - RARRIBEERNERE
T BEHAOERTERERERARAE
778,874,600 % (== — A\ 4 : 10,932,400
(K EY) EINE BB EEBEINEAE
1,774,920/ 70 (ZF — )\ F : 2,186,480/%
7C) KR 17 4 B 61,165,524 7T (=& — )\
F : 75,284,240 70) (RETR AL ©

FERES B KNI TEENT

2019 2018
ZE-0E —3-N\f
(restated)
(& &j)
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average exercise Number of
exercise price options price options
METETRE BREHE  METHERE BREHR
HKS HKS 000
BN i i
Qutstanding at beginning of the year EMRATE 7.08 10932 6.4 38541
Forfefted/Lapsed during the year Rl &K 7.09 (2,058) 6.18 (27,609)
Qutstanding at end of year ERAATE 7.09 8,674 7.08 10,932

Note: The number of share options and exercise prices were adjusted
pursuant to the share consolidation as mentioned in note 33.

As at 31 December 2019, the weighted average remaining
contractual life for the outstanding share options is 5.70 years
(2018: 6.70 years).

During the year, share-based payments expense of
HK$5,367,000 have been charged to profit or loss for the year
(2018: share-based payments expenses of HK$549,000 were
credited in profit or loss).

BieE AR R B RITREVRIEM 33T 2
Rt & GHEH FE

RZEBE-AFE+ZA=+—8 HATE
BRENNETYNBRENFTEEAST0F
—E—N\F :6.70%F) °

FR - ARG &R A5,367,0008 L2
BAREERRZDHG (ZF—/)\FE : UKD
S & A A 549,000/ L 25t AEER) ©

2019 % FEBLESEMERAT | 225 |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ —Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Group are the directors
and chief financial officer of the Company. The remuneration
of the key management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends. The remuneration of the key
management (excluding directors) was as follows:

39. BERS
FTEEEASEHE

AREBZITZERABHNARREELE
FHBE  TE2EEAE ZBE T H
ZEERBENALZRBARTSBEE
E-TEEBABE(MEBRER) 2 H
B

2019 2018

—B-NF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$\’OOO

FET THTT

Salaries and other benefits o RKE MR 2,106 2,310
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RAREFET B 5k 21 18
2,127 2,328

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director individuals fell
within the following band:

EEpFEEEANMESNTFATEHE :

Number of individual

2019 2018

—E-hE T )\F

HK$’°000 HK$’'000

TR Tt

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 78 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7t 2 2,500,000 /5 7C - 2
2 2

XNFEEZMEFBHRP B RERME
10°

Details of the remuneration paid to the directors are set out in
note 10 to the financial statements.

BB HmERAN 2 EMEBO RIALAEES
S RBE_T-NAEFR_FT-N\Ft+=
A=t BLFEMRELMBAERS -

Save as elsewhere in the financial statements and above, there
was no other related party transaction during the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

L 206
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 40. RMYB AR 2 xS
Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 RZE-NEFERZZE—NEF+A=+—
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: B ARRZEZEMBARFELT :
Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BRTEER FARNERE
NRER ML % RE/BRER BRELA TEXRBREX LY
Directly Indirectly
Ef [
China Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1S$20,000 100% - Investment holding, Hong
(2018: 100%) Kong
REENBEREMBEERAT EBRAES 20,000% 7 REEMR  &E
China Regenerative Medicine Tissue Engineering British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100%  Investment holding, Hong
Limited (2018: 100%) Kong
TEBEREBAGTRERAR RERAHE Y REER &%
FD(H) Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 100%  Investment holding, Hong
(2018: 100%) Kong
FD(H) Investments Limited RBRUHE 100%7T REER  BA
Shaanxi Aierfu Activtissue Engineering Company ~ The PRC RMB250,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales of
Limited (“Shaanxi Alerfu’) (2018: 100%) tissue engineering skin
related products, the PRC
RENAEEATIRARAR i AR250,000,0007 HERREARTENEHR
(MREXARE]) BEm - 7H
Shaanxi AiBosin Bio-Engineering Company Limited ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Research and development,
(“Shaanxi AiBosin’) (2018: 100%) the PRC
RAELBEANIRERAR((RAXEE])  HE AR #2,000,0007C - hE
Shaanxi AiNear Comea Engineering Company The PRC RMB3,800,000 = 100%  Research and development,
Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear") (2018: 100%) the PRC
REXEEARIRERLARA(KALREE])  HE AR #3,800,0007C - hE
Shenzhen AiNear Cornea Engineering Company The PRC RMB3,800,000 - 100%  Production and sales of bio-
Limited (“Shaanxi AiNear’) (2018: 100%) engineered comnea, the
PRC
HINBEARIRERAR(RINER) & AR #3,800,0007 HERBEANIRAE .
i
Zhongsheng Medical Equipment Trading Company ~ The PRC RMB60,000,000 - 100%  Sales and distribution, the
Limited (2018: 100%) PRC
P REEMHEERAA keI AR #60,000,0007C HERDE  RE

V.
£
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

L 208

40. RFB R B 2 #

e ()

Place of Issued ordinary Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid up ownership interests Principal activities
Name of company registration capital held by the Company and place of operations
BRTEER FARNERE
NRER ML % RE/BRER BRELA TEXRBREX LY
Directly Indirectly
Ef [
Shaanxi Reshine Biotech Co. Ltd. (‘Reshine”) The PRC RMB117,000,000 - 100%  Research and development,
(2018: 100%) the PRC
RERZENHRAERAR (TR Gl AR 117,000,00070 - hE
Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 51%  Sales and distribution,
(‘Hesid") (2018: 51%) the PRC
L aErmERAR ([ LEHEE]) i AR%50,000,0007 HERNH  PE
Shenzhen Hesidi Cosmetics Company Limited The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 51%  Sales and distribution,
(‘Hesid") (2018: 51%) the PRC
A AR AR (DRI ]) i AR 5,000,0007C HERDH  HE
China Bio-Med Technology Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Research and development,
(2018: 100%) the PRC
PABENRARAT i AR 850,000,007 - hE
HK International Regenerative Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Healthcare business,
(2018: 80%) Hong Kong
BRERBARERLERAR &b 100787 BREREEY BA
China Regenerative Medicine Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding,
(2018: 100%) Hong Kong
TEBEEEERAA B 1T REEMR  &E
China Stem Cell Clinical Applications Centre Limited - Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Stem cell operation,
(2018: 100%) Hong Kong
RESARERERTOERAR BB 1T BAWER  BE
Tianjin Weikai Bioeng Ltd The PRC RMB10,400,000 = 90%"  Sales and distribution,
(2018: 70%) the PRC
REEHNENTRERARA il AR 10,400,000 HERDH 1 H
AK (Suzhou) Biomedical Ltd The PRC RMB1,470,600 - 90%"  Sales and distribution,
(2018: 70%) the PRC
Bl (BM) £ R E ARBBRA A i AR 1,470,600 HERDH  HE
Shenzhen Kechuang Guangtai Technology Co., Ltd.  The PRC RMB20,420,000 = 51%  Information technology,
(2018: 51%) the PRC
AMEERR AR A A el AR%20,420,0007 {ESRITIRT - P E

for identification purposes only
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Note: The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
Group for the period or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group at the end of the period. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the period or at any time during the period.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

During the year, the Group acquired additional 20% equity
interests in its non-wholly owned subsidiaries, Frame Sharp
Limited and Passion Stream Limited, with the consideration
of US$1 upon the enforcement of the Group’s rights under
the profit guarantees as disclosed in note 19. Since then, the
Group’s shareholding of Frame Sharp Limited and Passion
Stream Limited increased from 70% to 90%. The Group also
acquired additional 20% equity interests in its non-wholly owned
subsidiary, HK International Regenerative Centre Limited with the
consideration of HK$20. Since then, the Group’s shareholding
of HK International Regenerative Centre Limited increased from
80% to 100%. As the increase in equity interests do not affect
the Group’s control over these subsidiaries, these transactions
had been accounted for as equity transactions with the non-
controlling interests. These transactions resulted in deemed loss
on acquisition of non-controlling interests of HK$15,978,000,
which is included in other reserve in the equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

*

The Group does not have any equity interest in Tianjin
Weikai Bioeng Limited (“Tianjin Weikai”) and AK (Suzhou)
Biomedical Ltd (“AK Suzhou”). However, the Group has
entered into the contractual arrangements with Tianjin
Weikai and AK Suzhou and its equity holders, which
enable the Group to (1) exercise effective financial and
operational control over Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou;
(2) exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou; (3) receive substantially all of the
economic interest returns generated by Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou in consideration for the management
services provided by the Group; (4) obtain an irrevocable
and exclusive right with an initial period of 10 years to
purchase the entire equity interest in Tianjin Weikai and
AK Suzhou from the respective equity holders. The right
automatically renews upon expiry for indefinite period
of time until the Group specifies a renewal term; an (5)
obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Tianjin
Weikai and AK Suzhou from its respective equity holders
as collateral security for all the payments due to the
Group and to secure performance of Tianjin Weikai’s and
AK Suzhou’s obligations under the above contractual
arrangements. Accordingly, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with Tianjin Weikai
and AK Suzhou and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou and
is considered to control Tianjin Weikai and AK Suzhou.
Consequently, the Group regards Tianjin Weikai and AK
Suzhou as the indirect subsidiaries under HKFRSs.

—“NEFEFTZA=+—HIFE

40. RE B~ A 2w ()

fia: ERIHEERRIBEZEAEEGR
EENERAEBRREEFETER
1§?Z$’i@f9ﬁ ’AT°§ A DIl E
i B /8 22 g

FENBAREREREEAF

REA R N (AT - BB A A
BEREAEHES

FEM (FEA) PR /BB 2
RERARERER -

FR o RBHFE19MIEE 28 FIRETT
EAREENENR  AEBKEEELE
¥f B8 ‘A 7] Frame Sharp Limited X Passion
Stream Limited 58 97 20% &) f% 1 - K &
A1FETT e Bk - A& B K Frame Sharp
Limited & Passion Stream Limited A9#5 i% £t
{3l B5 70% 35 A 2= 90% ° 7 & B 7R LA (B
m%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#%ﬁ%%@i%%ﬁ%

B2 ER A AR FEIN20% IRHE o
%& AEBERBBBEEBLERBEDRLE

N A) B35 A% B 1l BB 80% 3% 1 2= 100% ©
EW%%W?MKQ%%K%@ﬁ%%W

NEIRIES] - WMZER 5B R EIEER
%mLﬂmk$x%A% REZHEH
W i IR 1% IR R 2 2 18 1 8548 /5 15,978,000
BT Bt A= EMEE  WHEBR
RATHEBA °

AR T EAE A

© AREREEARRENENT
BRAR (3 BAH) KR (5
gi%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂﬁ B (

I E:
uTil:t ’ﬂ%% '1§$
T@ﬁiim,ﬂ&%ﬂ(ﬁ/l
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EAREBIRENEERSHONE
GEGRSERZEABERZG
ol K2 B gl (BRI 2 20 AR HE B0 7 |] 4
HRBRER OB FHATF -
HEER R E W AEREEER
BB '\&$’i@% TEEFTFRE
ABRAN : R ) ESSEEFHE AY
KRG MRS (BRM) 2 ZBAAER
LI (EARMNALEBMATARIE
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 41, FEERER
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s material non-controlling —NE+ZA=+—0 xEEK
interests (“NCI”) included (1) Shanghai Hesidi Cosmetics EK?H Iz ([ERFEERER]) B
Company Limited, a 51% (2018: 51%) owned subsidiary, M EsHsFhRBRAT (EE51%
and its subsidiary (“Hesidi Group”); (2) Ascara Cosmetics (ZE—NF:51%) BxmE AR &
Group Co., Limited (“Ascara”), a 51% (2018: 51%) owned EWB AR ([T 5E]): (2)Ascara
subsidiary; (3) BioCell Technology Limited (“BioCell”), a 90.5% Cosmetics Group Co., Limited ([ Ascara | -
(2018 90.5%) owned subsidiary; (4) 7% JI| &t £l & 2= # fiT & R %;Eﬁfﬂ% (ZZE—)\F :51%) R B
= FEIIRA, a 51% (2018: 51%) owned subsidiary; (5) 2R (3 )Eﬁi%ﬂ& Al ([ARE]
Pass.on Stream Limited, a 90% (2018: 70%) owned subsidiary Tzﬁ H90.5% (ZF — )\ 4F : 90.5% ) 1 & ()
and its subsidiaries (“Passion Stream Group”); and (6) Frame WE AR @)xERIEEEZR R R AR A
Sharp Limited, a 90% (2018: 70%) owned subsidiary and its Al (RYIEE - EBB1% (ZF—/\F -
subsidiaries (“Frame Sharp Group”). Summarised financial 51%) = KK B A T) (5)Passion Stream
information in relation to NCI of the above subsidiaries, before L|m|ted (HEBEN% (ZZF—)\F : 70% ) #
intra-group eliminations, are presented below: =M EAR) REKEB AR ([ Passion
Stream£ & |) : & (6)Frame Sharp Limited
(HEH 0% (ZZF— \F : 70%) #E 2 KT B
Aa) REWE AR ([Frame Sharp &£ & ) ©
E/\EIWiBTJﬁ%HI B Fiift B ARIEXR
R EREEANTBEERBENT
Passion Frame
Stream Sharp
Hesidi Group Ascara BioCell RYIR A Group Group
4% Passion Stream ~ Frame Sharp
£8 Ascara BRE FIRE &8 £8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n
For the year ended 31 December 2019 Qfég-hﬂ'lﬁ =t-A
Revenue s 5,231 2436 428 2,210 2,006 3,791
Loss forthe year REEEFR (44,499 (2,19) (126,389) (17413 0.221) 29365
Total comprehensive income 2EMsLE w2.826) 2,19 (126,389 (17,404 18.965) 28629
Loss alocated toNCI SREHARESER (21,80 (1,078) (12007 85 (1649 (3787
Dividends paid to NCI BfiERERRS - - - - - -
Cash flows generated from/(used n) BEEHNE/ (FR)REHE (558) () (14,064) 1285 (3.59) (4,949)
operating activities
(Cash flows generated from investing acthities REEBMERENE - - - (106) - (1)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from BERD(FA) /FERERE 544 58 14,646 (1,390) 3,049 4,953
financing activities
Net cash nfows/outfons) BeEA/Cith) 38 (14 4 52 61) 549 (160)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=1-A
Current assets THAE 31,458 80 8,995 16,562 3,995 7%
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,116 - - - - -
Current liabilties ikl (111,849 (14,341) (226,032) 2121) (35,118) (43,380)
Non-current fabiites ERHEE - - (3,066) (4,069) - -
Net (iablities)/assets (BESE)/AERA (19.275) (14,261) 220,108) 10372 (35,118) (43,044)
Accumulated NOIs BiInRIES (38,845 6.988) 20910 5,082 (8512 (4304
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONT’D) 4. FERER (B)

Passion Frame
Stream Sharp
Hesidi Group Ascara BioCell FIRE Group Group
H4s Passion Stream ~ Frame Sharp
58 Ascara BRE RIRE &8 58
K 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TiEn TiEn Tin Tin T T
For the year ended 31 December 2018 8z ; E-NE+-A=1-A
1:3:4
Revenue g 4231 7,228 1,210 620 1,643 3,254
Loss for the year TEEFR (68,574) (37,419 (39,232) (27,163) 2,175) (53,509)
Total comprehensive income 2ENHEE (67,642) (37,419 (39,232 (28,175) (2,060) (52,549
Loss alocated toNC! SREEARELER (33.601) (183%) 68721 (13310 653 (16,052)
Dividends paic to NCI BiFERERRS - - - - - -
Cash flows generated from/(used n) BEEBRHE/ (MR BEhE
operating activities \ (24,91) 3274 (25,555) (633) 988 3,136
Cash flows used in investing actiities RERBMARERE 270) = (4542) (2,502) 29) (3.459)
(Cash flows (used in)/generated from BEEY (FB) /Fi5HETE
financing activities 9,903 (2,812 30,117 - (928) (1,906)
Nt cash inflows/{outfiows) REmA/ (L) 58 (15,338) 462 2 (3.135) 3 (2229)
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z-NE+ZA=t-A
Curtent assets NYEE 124,24 %1 8,350 19,068 8745 1007
Non-current asses FROAE 1,145 - 97 402 12,687 5,755 26,75
Cunent bifies FHEE (161818 (14417 (199.466) - 131,639 38342)
Non-current liabifties FrBaE - - - (3561) = =
Net (abites)assets (BE9E)/AESE (36,449 (13426) 93714 28,194 22,139 (10560)
Accumited NCl Tithnhis (7,860 (6579 0 13815 (664 (3,169
—
£
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42. tRIEERSREEHME

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The following table shows the carrying amount of financial

assets and liabilities:

TREJEREERABZREE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Financial assets at fair value through A ERE M E2 R ATER
other comprehensive income NEemBEE 31,522 161,445
Financial assets at amortised cost: HEHKNAFTTNEREE !
Non-current rental deposit EmEBEERS 14,044 =
Pledged bank deposits DB ITER - 28,200
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit BATEREBRYIEZ
or loss EREE 209,520 298,296
Contingent consideration receivable FEU S AR AE - 4,587
Financial assets at amortised cost: REEK AT EREE
Trade receivables JEUNE 5Bk 1A 4,012 4,128
Deposits and other receivables & N H b fE W EKIE 7,240 38,389
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRITIER - 389,368
Cash and bank balance IR e MIRTTHE 19,210 20,062
375,548 944,475
Financial liabilities oY=
Financial liabilities measured at NE#ER AT ECEMmEBE
amortised costs:
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables e 8 SR 19,638 24,210
Accrued charges and other payables FEETE A R E b FE (T BRIE 151,032 115,534
Lease liabilities HEARE 24,094 =
Bank borrowings RITER - 366,400
Other borrowings E b & 3R 55,172 =
Shareholder’s loans BERER - 58,334
Non-Current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITERK - 22,900
Lease liabilities HEAE 25,425 =
Shareholder’s loans xR E K 207,298 200,000
482,659 787,378

China Regenerative Medicine International Limited Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI oE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ—Z—hF+_A=+—HILFZ

42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42 tRIBEERSREEHME (&)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped into the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

TREHRUARFEIGRNEBRIAEZAF

BRBESN

© E-B ARANEEREENERD

BEVRE CRERAE)

s FH:AHEELRBRE —MRR
ELASN - B (AMER) REEZE (B i
ERGH) IBRGARE &

s FZH:AMBEEXRABIIMKEA
BEEmSRENHARE GEER

BARIE)

CREEFBBERATERBAZOES
BARYAFEFEBEENRGAREL

RIRKR o

REaUBRARNATFEAEZERE

E-HBAZAFERBNOT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 F_R E=H &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TAT FET
At 31 December 2019 RZE—IF
T=A=t-H
FVOCI BAFEREMZEKA
k= - - 31,522 31,522
FVTPL BAFENERSIER - - 299,520 299,520
- - 331,042 331,042
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=A=+-H
Contingent consideration FEN A AE
receivables - - 4,587 4,587
FVOC BAFEREMZERA
IR - - 161,445 161,445
FVTPL BAFENERSIER - = 298,296 298,296
_ - 464,328 464,328

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The details of the valuation of the fair values of contingent
consideration receivable and FVTPL are disclosed in notes 19
and 24 respectively. There have been no significant transfers
between levels in the reporting period. The management
appointed professional valuers, Roma Appraisal Limited, as
management’s expert to assist in the assessment the fair value
of FVOCI and FVTPL and approved by the board of directors.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment, classified as FVOCI, is estimated using asset-
based approach, based on the fair values of various assets and
liabilities of the investee, in which the fair value of each asset
and liability was determined by reasonable valuation approaches
based on its nature. The key inputs included marketability
discount of 15.8% and discount for lack of control of 22.36%.
As at 31 December 2019, if both the marketability discount and
discount for lack of control shifted upward by 1%, the fair value
of the unlisted equity investment would be decreased by 1%
and 1% respectively. The higher the marketability discount and
discount for lack of control, the lower the fair value.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose
of measuring fair value are changed from the market approach
as at 31 December 2018 to asset-based approach as at 31
December 2019 as the investee encountered financial difficulty
and in a going concern situation during the year. Therefore, the
adoption of the asset-based approach will be more appropriate
in arriving at the fair value of the investee.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment, classified as FVOCI, was estimated using market
approach, based on the investee’s financial performance
and the multiples of comparable companies. The key inputs
included price to earnings ratio (“PE ratio”) of 12.76 and
discount for lack of marketability of 15.8%. As at 31 December
2018, if both PE ratio and marketability discount shifted upward
by 1%, the fair value of the unlisted equity investment would
be increased by 1.4% and decreased by 0.7% respectively.
The higher the PE ratio, the higher the fair value. The higher the
marketability discount, the lower the fair value.

42 cHEERESHEEHME (B)

R AREBERAFEREAFERERT
RZMBEFBDRBEENHE19KR24 - 1
BREHE R ETEEEER - EIE[E
ZEFEGEMEFSEBIEER AT ({E
AEENER) BBTHEAFEREME
AR AZ R RIZ A FEREBRYERAQF
B YEEEESHHE -

R-E—AF+_A=+—8 2EAK
AFEREME2ERATIENIE ETRA
BRENAFEDERBEREAETEE
MBEMATE RABEXEM EF
REEENMBENAFENBEEED R
BEBEERLAETE TEHABREMS
T B PTIR T 15.8% M ik A 17 51 4 B9 735 K
2236% - R_ZE—hhE+_A=+—H"
i T 35 75 B HT 3R 2 K ik A 478 51 4 A T 3R K
HEA1% - BISE ETMRAREN R FEH
DAITBR1% K2 1% ° T35 8D 3T 3R R K 5k
DEFHENTREERES - BRFEBE -

R B T F B B B A IR R R R TR+
BRERR BARFERFEMNTIER
fHEXMEH-_F—-—\F+-_A=1+—H
MM EEER—_T—NFE+_A=1—
BREEZL - Btk - R & EE S EBH
REUROATFEMEBEREE -

R-ZE-NF+_A=1t—H 28RRK
RNFEREME2ERATIRRIE EHARA
BRENRAFEDRBERRETOHBERR
KA AR EBERA S A E TR
TEGARBEERETAXR(TMARX])12.76
RBROHHERBOITIRE58% N _F
—NF+ZA=t—B WMHRXEHS
MBITR K ETH1% @ RIZE EHRARE
R FER D B IN1.4% SO A 0.7% ° T
BERgs AAFEHES mHSRBTR
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42 cHEEREHEEHME (BE)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT'D)
The reconciliation for financial assets measured at fair value AFEERE=RETZATEFTENS
under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows: REEEH RN ¢
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FE 7T
FvOCI BAFEREMEEBAY R
Opening balance R RS 161,445 165,222
Fair value loss recognised in other REME2ERARRNAFE
comprehensive income E18 (129,923) (3,777)
Closing balance BR &8 31,522 161,445
FVTPL BATVERERIE
Opening balance B4R 298,296 226,605
Additions NE - 58,656
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REERNATFEKE 1,224 13,035
Closing balance BR &8 299,520 298,296
Contingent consideration receivables Bl ARE
Opening balance B4R 4,587 32,502
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss REERH AT EEE (4,587) (26,271)
Exchange differences EH Z5E - (1,644)
Closing balance HR&H - 4,587
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

236

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has a written risk management policy in place in
relation to credit risk associated with loan receivables. The
board of directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage and monitor the Group’s exposure to a
variety of risks associated with financial instruments which arise
from the Group’s operating and investing activities. Generally,
the Group employs conservative strategies regarding its risk
management to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how these risks
are mitigated are described as follows:

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency exchange rates is
minimal as the group companies usually hold most of their
financial assets/liabilities in their own functional currencies.
Currently the Group does not have foreign currency
hedging policy but the management continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Financial assets and liabilities at variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and those
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group monitors the interest rate risk exposure
on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of financial
assets and liabilities when necessary. A reasonable
change in interest rate in the next twelve months is
assessed to result in immaterial change in the Group’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses. Changes
in interest rates have no impact on the Group’s other
components of equity.

3. M mE e EE

AEERARAFEERBBRETRERELD
REREMIAMAREMBRR - M ER
REFEmERER (BEEERR  FIXER
REAMERERR) EERBRERESESRE o

AEBEGTRENERBEENEERR 2
EnRREERR EXSEHMEFRGE
EITOMALHIERE UEBREEAE
BAAXBERASERERREXBES
ZEBMTAZARARER - —RME @ K&
B YRR EERAEERR  ARERLE

RAEMFKDGEE R EZES/mT AN
B8 2 B N a0 o]k A bk S R B 2 DR SR
LN

(@) SMEEFz

HRAEBBEARNREERFEXR
HneRmEE AE WASEHER
BEE =R LB N o AN B B AT I SR SNE
BHBER BEEEE -BEEEEINE
RN AT EEEEEHERIMNE
[V o

) FUFEmE L

AFPNE s eMEENBBEREAS
EEERSREMNEAR  mABEE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

©)

Crediit risk

The carrying amounts of these financial assets presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position are net of
impairment losses, if any. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence
on credit risk but to a lesser extent. As at 31 December
2019, 38% (2018: 32%) of the total trade receivables
were concentrated in the Group’s largest debtor and
63% (2018: 65%) of the total trade receivables were
concentrated in the Group’s top five debtors (all private
companies incorporated in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Taiwan).

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks. The
credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
most of the Group’s bank deposits are deposited with
major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The
ECLs on trade receivables is estimated using a provision
matrix with reference to past default experience of
the debtor, current market condition in relation to
each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also incorporated
forward looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables.

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

BB ERE

)

IE (,-E
EERE

AEBZHMBRARANEINEREE
RMEREECD IR ERRE (WH) - K
SEZEERRIEZXEREP ZTR
ERFE BEPFREMEZITEREA
RZENRRTHEERRELTE -
HEREERE - R_FT—-AF+=-A
E—I——E  EWE B RRIR M ER 2 38%
—N\F 32%) &P REAEH
E’Jﬂ—jﬂ BA BRUEESRBREL
63% (—ZZF—/\F : 65%) EH KB A
SENAAREHEAFFEREE -+
B A EEMKIZOMARE) o

AEEREZRBITERRE - HRA
SEZBITERRBOEFRRELE R
Bz FRRIT BERE RIRITHER
ZEERRBRAR -

AEERBENEHEHEEEED
THEEE SRR E R -
BHRYFENBEREEBEERE
WEREMG  A2EEBEANBEE
HMRsk  ARSEBARBRKNIRITH
‘}R°?E\,HMZTJEST%?W&%%T%%;
EHNBERUGRIHEE NN EBELE
BRI )JD)\HIJE?\E:éfﬂ
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)
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©)

(@

Credlt risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
recognised lifetime ECLs for its trade receivables based
on individually significant customer or the ageing of

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

B EkRERE (E)
c EERE (&)
RZE-—NFRER=ZZE—NF+ZA

=t—B AEEEREENEER
PR STEANEEBE P Rk

customers collectively that are not individually significant REZZRWFIENEBEREER
as follows: B FBET
2019 2018
ZE-NF —N\F
Weighted Gross Gross
average carrying Loss carrying Loss
lifetime amount allowance amount allowance
ECLs (%) (HK$’000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
T
2HEY EEAE BERE FmaR ERERE
FEER% (F8&x) (F#&x) (FTHx) (FHT)
1-90 days 1290H 1 2,377 (24) 3130 (36)
91-365 days 91£365H 10 1,843 (184) 677 (68)
More than 365 days #8365 H 100 137,854 (137,854) 139,573 (139,573)
142,074 (138,062) 143,805 (139,677)
For other receivables, management makes periodic MEMEKZENS  EEEeER

collective assessments as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. Save as those
disclosed in the financial statements, the directors believe
that there is no other material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balance of other receivables and
deposits.

Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of
the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial
instruments. The fair value of non-current financial assets
was not disclosed because the carrying amount is not
materially different from its fair value.

(@

BESELEIBELREEMEK
ARSI B WE BE R B &
185 FFh - BRI IR PR EEE S
EERA ARENEMEWRRIEAR
ReMARBLERTELMERNE
REERR

AFE

ARARBEERREARAKREZZES
BTABASHNEHRBE - 8UR
HEMEERARZAFEREER®E
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) BRI ()
() Liquidity risk () REE LR

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group has net current assets
of HK$42,768,000 (2018: HK$243,542,000) and net
assets of HK$17,633,000 (2018: HK$567,263,000) as at
31 December 2019. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is high. Please refer to
note 3(b) for the management’s plan on improving the
Group’s liquidity.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at each of the reporting dates of the Group’s
non- derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payment computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on current rates at the reporting date) and the
earliest date the Group may be required to pay:

AEBZBRRDDEHEZERHE
CHRE BREBFAVESHEGE B
NEERBAZARBESTERK - K=
ZE-hhE+_A=+—8 K&EER
&) & E R 8 A42,768,000% 7T (=&
— J\4F : 243,542,000 7T) * B EF
B /A17,633,0008 T (=& — \&F:
567,263,000/ 7T) c EER A A&
EERREceRR EHEERE
HEAEERBESHNTE  F2H
B 5E 3(b) °

TRANAEETESRABNE
HBEBZRBRANOH  ZRIIRER
MARBAR S RE (BRI =X
FERTES  WHRERER 2 EH
MEFEZMNE ) RAKEA 8
ANz RFHHRE

Total More than
contractual 1 year
Carrying  undiscounted Within 1 year but less than
amount cashflow  or on demand 5 years
HEES: 32 R1ER BB1FE
BHE RERELH HEER DREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
As at 31 December 2019 R=-Z-N &
tT-A=t-H

Trade payables ERESERE 19,638 19,638 19,638 -

Accrued charges and Rt E R R E MR RE
other payables 151,032 151,032 151,032 -
Shareholder’s loans BRER 207,298 220,639 - 220,639
Other borrowing Hfof ?ﬁ 55,172 56,275 56,275 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 49,519 52,131 25,913 26,218
482,659 499,715 252,858 246,857

Asat 31 December 2018  A=Z-\&
+=A=+-H

Trade payables ENESER 24,210 24,210 24,210 -

Accrued charges and other  JERT B Rt fE (TR IB
payables 115,534 115,534 115,534 -
Shareholder’s loans REER 258,334 258,334 58,334 200,000
Bank borrowings RITER 389,300 391,247 366,400 24,847
787,378 789,325 564,478 224,847

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT
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44. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 44, HEME Q7]

In June 2019, the Group disposed of the entire issued share
capital of Jiangsu Yi Ze Bio-Technology Company Limited
(“diangsu Yi Ze”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, to an independent third party, at a cash
consideration of HK$4,998,000 (RMB4,480,000). Jiangsu Yi Ze
engaged in the research and development of bio engineering
activities.

The net liabilities of Jiangsu Yi Ze at the date of disposal were
as follows:

R-FE—NFARA AEERBIYIE=ZH
HEARREEZEEZENB AR IEEZEE
ME AR AR ([JIEEEE]) 23 2%
TRAS - 38 & R (B 54,998,000 7T (AR
#54,480,00070) * SIERFMEIZEBHREAY
TRRRf 35S -

THBEZENHERHZAEFEMNT ¢

HK$’'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment W - BRER&E 242
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 1,065
Inventories FE 369
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - AR EIE K& E b fE W sk IE 3,326
Accrued charges and other payables JEEtE A R H b fETRRIR (3,159)
Lease liability HEBE (1,276)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZBEFRE 567
Exchange reserve released on disposal HERERRER#E (4,245)
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary HERB AR 2 W 8,676
Total consideration by cash b o A 4,998
Satisfied by: TSN
Cash Re 4,998
Total consideration by cash b o A 4,998
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEACHESRAFEE :
Cash consideration received EUBIR e RE 4,998
4,998
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45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

o To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

o To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group has not adopted any formal dividend
policy.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose.

45 BREERERRERF

AEBEEREAZBRERS

e REAXAEERELEZREN #ER
P BR 5 2 [0 3 % 7 L 540 7 7 SR A

s HBRAREIZREMER: R

o RHEBSUAMBAKEZERERE
5 o

AEEEBERRSREREEARE
BRAGREEARBERKERRD
HABEBAEEARRESFRRENYE -
BRRBEABMNES FBRAKLERSTE
BRAEBAAS RBEARBEEREKS - K
& B 9 R BRI IE X BB B ©
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46. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

L 242

On 6 January 2020, China Regenerative Medicine Limited
(“CRML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement to dispose of 15% of its Class B limited
partnership interest in ZhongHua Finance Acquisition Fund |,
L.P. (the “Fund”), a sector fund focusing on investments in the
skincare and medical products industries, to Mr. Xiong. On 21
February 2020, CRML entered into an agreement to dispose of
the remaining 85% of its Class B limited partnership interest in
the Fund to Mr. Xiong. Details of these disposals were included
in the Company’s announcement dated 6 January 2020 and
the Company’s circular dated 20 April 2020 respectively. These
disposals were completed on 29 May 2020.

Pursuant to the prospectus of the Company dated 6 February
2020 in relation to, among other things, the proposed
open offer (the “Proposed Open Offer”) for subscription by
qualifying shareholders for 1,758,579,000 offer shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.2 per offer share on the basis of
two offer shares for every one share held on the record date,
the Company proposed to raise approximately HK$351.72
million, before expenses. The Proposed Open Offer was
subsequently terminated on 18 February 2020 as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 18 February 2020.

On 2 March 2020, the Company entered into (i) the placing
agreement with joint placing agents to procure not less than six
placees to subscribe for up to 500 million ordinary shares of the
Company at the placing price of HK$0.20 per share; and (i) the
subscription and settlement agreement with All Favour Holdings
Limited (“All Favour”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
to subscribe the 3 years zero coupon rate convertible bonds
in the principal amount of HK$120 million at its face value and
All Favour shall pay the subscription price at completion by
setting off against the shareholder’s loan. The placing and the
subscription were approved by the shareholders on 15 April
2020. The subscription of the convertible bonds was completed
on 21 April 2020. The placing was completed on 15 May 2020.

All Favour has converted its holding of convertible bonds with
principal amount of HK$40 million in May 2020.

46.

—“NEFTZA=+—HLFE

RERKRSIE

R_ZE_ZTF—FH ARQRAZ2EH
BARFREBEEZHFR AR ([CRMLI)
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46. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE (CONT’'D)  46.

During the year, Mr. Xiong granted the loan facilities amounted
to HK$100 million to the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the
amount due to Mr. Xiong by the Group amounted to HK$55
million and was recognised as other borrowing and repayable
on or before 31 March 2020. On 17 March 2020, the Group
signed a supplementary agreement with Mr. Xiong to increase
the facility amount from HK$100 million to HK$180 million and
extend the repayment date from 31 March 2020 to 30 June
2021. On 2 April 2020, another supplementary agreement was
signed to increase the facilities amount from HK$180 million to
HK$200 million. As at 30 June 2020, the amount due to Mr.
Xiong by the Group amounted to HK$70.6 million.

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the PRC and Hong Kong. There are
temporary suspension on part of the operation of subsidiaries in
the PRC and Hong Kong from February to April 2020, which will
affect the financial performance of the Group for the year ending
31 December 2020. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and further evaluate
its impact on the financial position and operating results of the
Group in the future.

2019 F3f FEBLEEBEFEBREERAT
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

D E AT

RESULTS E4
Financial
period form Financial Financial
1 May 2017 year ended year ended
to 31 December 31 December 31 December
Financial year ended 30 April 2017 2018 2019
BZT—t%F
hA—HiE #z Bz
BEMA=TALMBEFE E_EtF —E-)\F “E-0E
2016 017 +ZA=t-H +ZA=t-H +=B=t-H
“F-RE “E—+F IEHTHERR IHBEE LHBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATL THL THL TAL TEn
restated) restated)
HEL]) =R
Revenue W o o 21,751 356,987 503,680 72,952 47,91
Cost of services provided/Cost of sales ERERBRE/HERK (9,410) (219,462) (356,384) (45,946) (19,052)
Gross profit 7 18,341 137,525 147,296 27,006 28,919
Other income EfA 110,981 45,144 49,909 23,857 18,111
Selling and distribution expenses BERNHER (33,078) (66,796) (89,270) (134,69) (56,264)
Administrative and other expenses BRAMBREX (270,171) (322,464) (238,984) (324,017) (201,055)
Fair value gain/{loss) on contingent ERSARE D TEKE/
consideration receivables (B#E) - 8,556 20,097 (15,876) (26.271) (4,587)
Expected creditloss on trade receivables & HEUFERREEER - - - (139,006) (1,149)
Reversal of expected credit loss on EHENFEREEEEE
other receivables e o - - - 2,458 (19,636)
Fair value gain/loss) on financial assetsat ~~ RATERERTIG 2 AR
fair value through proft or loss ZAFERS/ (BR) - - - (113,808) 1,224
Impaiment of goodwl BEEE - - - (202,209) -
Impaiment of property, plant and equipment  #15%  BE Rk A E - - - (168,486 (94,118)
Impairment of other intanglole assets i EF BERE - - - (75, 896) (70,697)
Impairment of right-of-Use assets RRESEZRE = (52,049)
Finance costs BBER (25, 827) (24,426) (24.901) (21,654) (5,343)
Loss before income tax REERAER (191,198) 210,920) (171,826) (1,352,799) (456,644)
Income tax (expense)/credit Pﬁ%(ﬁﬁs&)/ iy (3,326) 11,728 5,610 68,884 8,001
Loss for the year/period rEE/HRER (194,524) (199,192) (166,216) (1,283,915) (447,743)
Attributable to: oI
QOwners of the Company ARAEAA (190,902) (184,502) (158,492) (1,193,501) (395,006)
Non-controling interests FERBRER (3,622) (14,690) (7,724) (90,414) (52,737)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HEER (194,524 (199,192) (166,216) (1,283,915) (447,743)
As at 30 April As at 31 December
BRBA=TAH Mt=A=t-H
2016 2017 2017 2018 2019
ZZF “E—tE Tt fF —T-N\F ZE-nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT THT THL TR
Total assets BEE 2,901,277 2,888,229 3,527,973 1,422,923 553,933
Total liabilties BafE (783,077) (980,337) (1,714,649) (855,660) (536,300)
Shareholders’ funds RRES 2,118,200 1,907,892 1,813,324 567,263 17,633
Note:  The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements. sk : BT EW AR R 2 —71D ©
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